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SENATOR ANDREW R. CIESLA (Chairman): Good morning, 

ladies and gentlemen. I'm happy to welcome each and everyone of you here 

to the hearing on bus safety that was called as a result of New Jersey 

experiencing several accidents -- a couple of more in the past two days -- on the 

highways of New Jersey. The hearing is being held at the request of Senate 

President Don Difrancesco, who has asked the Transportation Committee to 

take testimony from any and all interested parties in order to review the 

current state of affairs. Today we are hopeful that we will be able to gain some 

additional insight into the matters that have occurred over the past several 

months, which seem to indicate that there might be some corrective action 

which might be able to be taken legislatively in order to continue to promote 

safe roads in the State of New Jersey. 

I want to emphasize that we're not certain that anything may need 

to be done, but we're here today in order to collect information and to gain 

testimony in order to better understand the current state of affairs. 

So with that, I will call this public hearing to order and ask that 

our Committee Aide please take the roll. 

Peter. 

MR. MANOOGIAN (Committee Aide): Senator Turner. 

SENATOR TURNER: Here. 

MR. MANOOGIAN: Senator Sacco. 

SENATOR SACCO: Here. 

MR. MANOOGIAN: Senator McNamara. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: Here. 

MR. MANOOGIAN: Senator Allen. (no response) 
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Senator {:iesla. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Here. 

Thank you, Committee members, for taking the time out for this 

special Committee hearing. 

The first individual to testify will actually be a group of 

individuals. We have the Commissioner of Transportation, Mr. Jim Weinstem; 

the Director of Motor Vehicles, Mr. Dick Kamin; and the Executive Director 

of the South Jersey Transportation Authority, Mr. Jim Crawford. 

Gentlemen, please. 

C 0 M M I S S I 0 N E R JAM E S WE I N S T E I N: Good morning, 

Senator--

SENATOR CIESLA: Good morning. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: --and members of the 

Committee. Thank you and Senator Difrancesco--

Is this on? (referring to PA microphone) 

SENATOR CIESLA: Try it, Jim. No. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Okay. No. There's no 

indication lights here at all. 

The microphones for the hearing are working, but not the ones for 

the audio -- for the hearing room. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Jim, try it now, please. Nothing? 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: No. 

Without aid of technology, is that the-- That's fine. 

SENATOR CIESLA: We'll ask someone to come up in order--

But in the interim, since our recording microphones are working, we're just 
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going to ask the people that are in the back of the room to, please, be as quiet 

as possible, and we're going to ask that the individuals who are going to testify 

be as loud as possible. 

So thank you. 

Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Thank you, Senator. 

It's the first time I've been asked to be loud. 

Thank you for the opportunity to come here today. The issue 

before us is an issue that's of concern to all of us. This gives me the 

opportunity and our Department to express our concerns, to express our 

condolences to the families and friends of those people who have lost their lives 

and been injured over the course of the last couple of weeks. It's been an 

interesting couple of weeks for me as a new Commissioner. 

And we have concerns, and there's been a focus in our Department 

on reviewing trying to make sure that we're doing everything that we possibly 

can. I want to make it clear that I think New Jersey has one of the best bus 

safety programs in the country. In fact, New Jersey stops and checks more 

buses during random roadside inspections than any other state in the nation. 

As a heavily traveled corridor state, this program is important, and our efforts 

show that New Jersey is serious about ensuring safe travel on our highways. 

These roadside stops are in addition to the regular inspection of almost 6000 

commercial buses registered and based in New Jersey. 

Today, I want to provide you with detailed information about New 

Jersey's in-terminal commercial bus inspections, New Jersey's random roadside 

commercial bus inspections, the recent bus accidents, New Jersey's 65-mph 
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speed limit and the issue of speed differentials, our newly proposed bus safety 

regulations, and the issue of seat belts. 

An estimated 129 million passenger trips are taken by bus in,New 

Jersey each year. More than a quarter million commuters ride buses eac:h 

weekday to reach jobs in Newark, New York City, Philadelphia, and other 

locations within the state. The Atlantic City Expressway, alone 1 last year 

handled more than 400,000 buses bringing an estimated 10 million passengers 

into Atlantic City. New Jersey also has one of the largest private sector bus 

industries in the country with over 400 bus and van companies in our state. 

Private companies operate almost 3700 buses and New Jersey Transit almost 

2000. In addition, there are about 400 commercial van operations --

commercial vans in operation in our state. 

By statute, the Department of Transportation is required to 

inspect these buses and ensure their safety. New Jersey's buses are inspected 

twice a year -- once by MVS inspectors at the bus company's garage and once 

by the company itself -- with the results audited by t_he MVS staff. If during 

these inspections or audits we find a bu~ company with an extremely high 

failure rate or a general indication of poor maintenance, we take immediate 

action. 

New Jersey also conducts random roadside inspections of buses 

funded through a Federal program called the Motor Carrier Safety Assistance 

Program. During the 1997 Federal fiscal year, the last for which we have 

complete national statistics, New Jersey conducted over 6000 roadside 

inspections, representing I 7 percent of the total bus inspections conducted 

4 



nationwide, through the Motor Carrier Safety Assistance Program. Almost 

36,000 inspections were conducted nationwide. 

The Department will commit the resources necessary to ensure the 

integrity of this bus inspection program. New this year through this Program, 

we will give our field inspectors access to computers capable of producing a 

30-day report card for any bus stopped for a random roadside inspection. This 

year we will put three of these systems in use. Ultimately' we hope to have all 
of our inspectors fitted with this system. 

Buses roll day and night; so we also plan to purchase new vehicles 

with auxiliary lighting that will allow roadside inspections to take place after 

dark. Currently, we perform roadside inspections during daylight hours on 

both weekends and weekdays. 

At this point, let me address the rash of bus accidents that 

occurred during the holiday season. Out of the four accidents, three of the four 

bus drivers were not licensed in New Jersey. Two were licensed by New York 

state and one by Washington, D.C. Both of the interstate bus carriers have a 

satisfactory rating according to Federal standards. This is based on a 

compliance review conducted according to national standards examining 

accident history, roadside inspection history, and overall compliance. The 

intrastate bus company had satisfactory inspections and a good safety record. 

Mr. Chairman, as you know, there has been some discussion about 

whether the speed limit should be reduced for buses. New Jersey's 65-mph 

speed limit was implemented at the behest of the Legislature in 1997. While 

the original legislation would have required a 65-mile speed limit on all New 

Jersey interstates and limited access highways, Governor Whitman negotiated 
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an 18-month test period, which we're about a third of the way through at this 

point. As a result, 475 miles were designated for the 65-mph speed limit on 

May 19, 1998. At the end of the test period, I will submit a report to the 

Legislature recommending additions and deletions to the 65-mph speed zones 

and reporting on the overall safety and impacts of the 65-mph speed in our 

state. 

Given the suggestions by some to reduce the speed limit for buse.s, 

I have looked into the matter and have been advised by both my technical staff 

and by our attorneys that there are problems. First, it is problematic to declare 

an emergency based on these accidents and, therefore, to differentiate the legal 

speed limit for buses. To do so without an emergency would also be 

problematic legally because State statute only permits a differential speed limit 

for trucks, not buses, and only by a differential ·of 5 mph. 

More importantly and from a traffic standpoint, traffic flow is 

safest when traveling at uniform speeds. Posting differential speed limits in the 

view of the experts in my Department for different kinds of vehicles will tend 

to increase the speed variance of overall traffic creating more passing 

movements between vehicles. 

Also note that reports on states that have different speed limits for 

different types of vehicles offer no conclusions that they are beneficial. Of the 

four high-profile bus accidents experienced over the holiday period, only two 

occurred in 65-mph speed zones. From the data we've gathered. in our 

monitoring of the 65-mph speed limit so far, there appears to be very little 

difference in the before and after travel speeds indicating that motorists are 

traveling about the same actual speeds they were when it was a 55-mph speed. 
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Therefore, it is difficult to conclude that the 65-mph zone makes bus drivers 

travel faster. In fact, field operations from the State Police to date indicate 

that the traffic is traveling more uniformly in the 65-mph speed zones. 

The available evidence seems to support the following gener-al 

conclusions. Accidents rates tend to increase with increasing speed variance, 

but they do not necessarily increase with an increase in the average speed. _We 

believe both of these are true on roadways designed to handle higher-speed 

vehicles. Secondly, the differential speed between 65 and 55 has no significant 

effect in reducing nontruck/truck accident rates and two-vehicles accident rates 

compared with those for the uniform speed limit. In fact, there is some 

indication that the differential speed limit may increase the rates of some types 

of accidents such as two-vehicle accidents. 

The issue of bus safety regulations, which I know has been a 

concern to members of the Legislature, to the Governor, and frankly, to me, 

DOT has proposed new rules to establish a schedule of bus safety out-of-service 

violations and civil penalties for buses operating with bus safety out-of-service 

violations. These are generally consistent with national safety standards, 

certain Federal rules, and in particular, the out-of-service criteria of the 

Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance. These rules will apply to interstate and 

intrastate autobuses operating on our roads and highways. 

The Bus Safety Compliance Act provided for us to establish a 

schedule of bus safety out-of-service violations as either Category 1 or Category 

2 violations depending largely on the nature and severity of the violations and 

the discoverability of the defect prior to a bus trip. The civil penalty for each 
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Category I violation ranges from $300 to $5000, while each Category 2 

violation is up to $500. 

With regard to imposition of sanctions, buses will be placed 

out-of-service if found to have out-of-service safety violations and will remain 

out-of-service until the operator makes all necessary repairs. Accordingly, the 

duration of the sanction is exclusively within the control of the operator. In 

addition, DOT inspectors may issue a summons and complaint for each 

out-of-service violation for the most part returnable in municipal court. 

Presently, neither the Federal government nor any state imposes any direct 

monetary civil penalties on operators for operation of a bus with bus safety 

out-of-service violations, which are basically mechanical safety defect, that are 

consistent with these violations. 

New Jersey's Bus Safety Compliance Act and the prop<?sed rules 

are the first in the United States to impose specific monetary civil penalties for 

operating buses with bus safety out-of-service violations directly on bus 

operators. Four substantive provisions in these rules actually exceed Federal 

Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance standards, and they are outlined in the 

testimony, which I've submitted in writing to the Committee. 

Because of the thoroughness of our. inspection program, we 

infrequently see these defects, but when we do, we feel that the substantial 

penalties are fully justified. In fact, the Department feels so strongly about the 

safety provisions and the fine schedule we are proposing that we will contact 

the Federal government and state officials around the country to encourage 

other states to follow our lead in adopting such bus safety rules and fine 

schedules. 
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As we look to the future, I think what our efforts are going to be 

focused on is a renewed emphasis on inspections, safety training, and aggressive 

enforcement, and that is exactly what we' re doing. Some beneficial changes 

will be occurring to our bus inspection program this year. MVS is in the 

process of hiring additional bus inspectors to beef up the program. We are 

doing this in preparation for writing summonses and issuing fines to unsafe_ bus 

operators. We are anticipating staff will be called into court when testimony 

is required. We do not want court appearance requirements to lower the 

number of bus inspections we perform. 

I expect New Jersey to remain first in the nation in performing 

roadside bus inspections. I expect more underside inspections of buses during 

roadside inspections through greater use of portable ramps. I expect the 

roadside program to expand into nighttime operations so we can check 

operators no matter when they are traveling our highways. I expect all these 

things because the public rightly expects government to ensure their safety. 

Senators, I want to thank you again for condu~ting this hearing. 

I along with my colleagues from the Stat~ Police, the South Jersey 

Transportation Authority, the New Jersey Turnpike, and the New Jersey 

Highway Authority -- all of whom have representatives here today -- want to 

·assure you that New Jersey is one of the safest states to travel in whether by 

bus, car, truck, plane, or train. I also want to assure you that we have a sound 

industry in this state that is as concerned about these issues as I've found over 

the course of the last six weeks or so as government is concerned. They've 

worked with us. rthink Executive Director Crawford will highlight some of 

this as he talks about some of the efforts we've taken in Atlantic City. 
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I want to assure you that I will personally continue to make 

improvements and devote resources to bus safety measures. Statistically, New 

Jersey and the bus industry come up as a fairly safe way to travel when 

compared to autos, but if there's something we're missing -- and that's one of 

the real benefits of this kind of effort today -- and there's something we can do 

better, we should do it. 

Myself along with my colleagues are willing to answer any 

questions you may have. 

Now I'd like to ask Jim Crawford whose agency--

SENATOR CIESLA: Before we start, Commissioner, I think we 

have somebody here to fix the microphones, so we're just going to take a quick 

break and see if we can get those wired together so everyone can hear. Bear 

with us for a second, please. (pause for microphone repairs) 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: One of the first rules of 

technology is to make sure it's plugged in. It wasn't. (laughter) 

SENATOR CIESLA: Much better. 

Okay. Thank you for your patience, Director Kamin, Director 

Crawford. The shuttle is fixed, so we can continue. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Crawford will now offer some testimony for your 

consideration. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. 

J A M E S A. C RA W F 0 R D: Mr. Chairman and Senators, first let me 

thank you for calling this hearing. Before us are matters affecting the 

livelihoods and, in fact, the very lives of New Jersey citizens. And so as you 

10 



have quickly and clearly recognized, we do no more than exercise our duty 

today in considering these matters with great care. 

Bus travel is the cornerstone of the foundation supporting New 

Jersey's transportation system and, thus, the health of both its people and its 

economy. In South Jersey, buses cradle more than a million individual human 

lives each year. As the Commissioner has said, more than 400,000 bus. trips 

were made on the Atlantic City Expressway alone, accounting for some fO 
million visit/trips to Atlantic City. This is almost one-third of all of the visitors 

that now fuel the economic engine that is Atlantic City. And these numbers 

are recently on the rise. 

While ultimately impossible to achieve, the goal of ensuring that 

we end all bus accidents is still a goal that we must strive. Every time we 

prevent a serious accident, we add to the physical and material health of our 

citizens. The good news in this effort is that bus accidents are already 

relatively infrequent, and New Jersey's enforcement practices are strong. 

Indeed, New Jersey may well have the toughest and most effective bus 

inspection and enforcement program in the nation even today without the new 

regulations. 

The bad news is that the bus inspections are -- too often reveal 

troubling violations of existing regulations. And current penalties, while 

already consistent with or tougher than the Federal standards, may sometimes 

be too light to change egregious bus company behaviors in those infrequent 

cases in which such behaviors appear to occur. 

This is why the South Jersey Transportation Authority firmly 

supports the bus safety regulations proposed by Transportation Commissioner 
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Weinstein. We believe these regulations will substantially enhance what is 

already an excellent system of inspections and enforcement. But it is 

important also because as we have seen from recent accidents, neither the bus's 

physical condition nor the road's speed limit nor other similar factors can be 

assumed responsible for the tragedies that ensue. 

Human beings operate these buses, and no matter how experienced 

or how well trained, they are subject to the same human frailties that test us 

all. Sometimes the drivers are tense, tired, or distracted. Sometimes, despite 

the great responsibility they hold, they are simply not up the game at which 

they're engaged. 

Tackling this problem is of central importance to any program 

addressing bus safety. Recognizing this truth and in cooperation with the 

Department of Transportation, the other toll agencies, our partners at the State 

Police, the Federal government, and the Division of Motor Vehicles, my agency 

recently confronted these issues head-on in a series of Bus Safety Refresher 

Courses in Atlantic City. Attendance at such sessions reached approximately 

1000 persons and more than 800 individual bus drivers completed the course. 

In these sessions, experts from regulatory agencies and the bus 

industry itself reminded drivers about their responsibility under State and 

Federal regulations, but the experts also provided drivers with strategies to 

enhance their job performance. It may sound strange, but matters as simple 

as the food that the drivers eat during their breaks can have a profound affect 

on their level of alertness. I believe that education on matters like these is vital 

if we are to reach the next level of safety on our roadways. 
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Also important, the refresher courses reawakened in drivers the 

knowledge of their immense obligation to the souls who sit behind them. 

Achieving such awareness is alone a major step forward. The attitude of the 

driver as the single most important safety component on the bus is critical. 

Likewise, bus company owners and mangers have a duty to assist in the 

continuing education of their drivers and to give them the tools needed to 

perform at their best. We're pleased to see the bus company owners and 

managers at the recent courses, and we encourage them to enhance the level 

of participation in the future and to take on such activities themselves more 

frequently. 

SJTA and its partners are helping to make this possible by 

continuing the Refresher Course Program. We are currently scheduling 

additional courses on a quarterly basis with some to be held at night and. on 

weekends in order to reach even more drivers and managers than we have 

already. It is our hope that one day every bus driver who heads to Atlantic 

City will have taken advantage of this -Program at least once and learned from 

that the importance that they contribute to the safety of those entrusted to 

their care. 

I would be remiss, also, if I did not point _out that SJTA has 

another important obligation in the role of oversight of the bus industry. The 

South Jersey Transportation Act charges us with the regulation of the tour bus 

traffic in Atlantic County, which may well attract more bus traffic than any 

other county in the nation. We prescribe the routes which buses must travel, 

and we set the standards for the bus parking facilities they use. We now 

require that every bus parking facility provide a place for the drivers to rest as 
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well as a place for them to eat and to relax. Notwithstanding this, though, 

there is nothing that can be put into regulations that require the driven 

themselves to make use of these facilities. 

While primarily aimed at addressing the quality-of-life issues 

related to bus traffic, our regulations also allow us to assist in the successfu] 

enforcement efforts of DOT and the State Police. For example, we require that 

all approved bus parking lots provide facilities for safety inspections. We 
encourage those facilities to be used and, in fact, have written into our recent 

regulations a requirement that if directed by one of motor carrier inspectors to 

report to a Department of Transportation inspection location, a bus must do 

that or the driver will be subject to a direct fine for failure to show up. We also 

require that these lots set aside areas for drivers to rest and refresh themselves 

before embarking on their important charge. 

Mr. Chairman, thank you again for calling the hearing. I'll be 

happy to answer any questions that you or the Senators may have on this 

issue. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Director. 

We're going to hear_ from Director Kamin prior to opening up for 

questions. 

Director. 

RI C HARD KAM IN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I only have a 

couple of points to make in support of the testimony by the Commissioner and 

the Director, and that is whether it's through licensing or whether it's through 

the inspection programs or whether it's through training, through education, 
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it's a reminder, quite frankly, that all of us when we take our positions behind 

the wheel how important it is to drive friendly. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you very much, Director. 

Thank you collectively for your testimony. 

But what I didn't hear and I'm wondering statistically the number 

of accidents, even though we've had six or so in the past -- very close perio_dof 

time-- How does New Jersey rank statistically with respect to the number of 

accidents per mile traveled for buses rel~tive to other geographical areas of the 

United States, if you know? 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: We rank the best. What the 

actual number is-- I've brought with me today the folks in the Department 

who may have the actual numbers for you on that, Senator. If you'll give me 

a moment, I'll try and get them. 

SENATOR CIESLA: At this point, I don't need to know the 

actual numbers; although, I would like to have them at some point in the 

future. What I'm trying to do is to put this in perspective_ in order to better 

understand so that the level of action that will be taken as a result of this is 

appropriate to the observed difficulty. So at some point, you can share that 

with us, but it was my suspicion that we were among the best in terms of total 

· experience. At some point, it would be nice so that the Committee could have 

that. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: We'll get that to you, Senator. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: That would be great. 

Does the Committee have any questions of any of the individuals? 
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Senator Sacco. 

SENATOR SACCO: First, I'm very happy with the fact that this 

is being taken as seriously as it is and that there is a May deadline, I believe, 

for placing the regulation into effect. In 199 5, the Senate and the Assembly 

and the Governor signed the Bus Safety Act. I can't hold you accountable 

because there are all new people here today, but we've wasted almost four 

years. We knew there was a problem back then. We wanted to free up the 

State Police so that the DOT could do the inspections. We wanted to increase 

the fines, but for the most part, the Legislature was ignored. I am happy now 

that you're taking this to the next step and that you're going to be doing it. So 

I thank you for that on behalf of all of us because we did work hard on that 

legislation back then. And let's hope that we make New Jersey even if we are 

the best -- make it better. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Thank you, Senator. 

Can I just comment on that? 

SENATOR CIESLA: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: There are no good excuses for 

the time that it took to implement those regulations. There were some issues 

that we had to deal with in going through that. We are the first state in the 

nation, and that's created some special challenges of its own. There is no good 

excuse. That will not happen again. They will be in place in the time frame 

they were published, and that will not happen again on my watch, Senator. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Commissioner. 
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Senator Allen. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Executive Director Crawford, I'd like to ask 

what the experience was with the bus drivers who took the certification course. 

Were they eager to take it? Did they indicate that they found it helpful? And 

of the number who didn't take it, what do you suppose their reasons might 

have been? 

MR. CRAWFORD: Well, I think, Senator, our experience was 

that we found a great deal of interest among the drivers, especially among 

those that I consider professional drivers, those who do this as their full-time 

career. They brought a lot to the sessions. They actually participated very 

actively in those sessions. 

I think that the problems we ran into in terms of those who didn't 

come fall into three categories. The first were that there are bus companies 

that the drivers just weren't there for the middle of the day activity -- the 

people who come in late in the afternoon. That's why we need to run evening 

and weekend sessions. The second group that don't come are the-- Most of 

the companies represented in large numbers were the major companies coming 

in and out of Atlantic City. The companies that already have training 

programs for their drivers and where the drivers are professional. 

What we didn't see were a lot of the very small companies in 

attendance. Now whether that's because of the timing of it -- January is not 

one of the biggest months in terms of visits by buses -- I can't say for certain, 

but it is one of the reasons we want to make sure we reach out to those 

companies in particular for the next go-around. And the third issue that comes 

up in this is simply that there are some drivers who may not qualify as drivers, 
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know they don't qualify, and they have chosen not to show up because we were 

keeping records on everyone who did come through that Program. So we want 

to be conscious of that, and for that reason, we've given to each of the bm 

companies a complete list of all of their drivers who have attended so that they 

can begin to work with those who did not attend to find out why they didn't 

attend. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Is there anyway to find out who the drivers 

are that don't qualify, while they are there and waiting for their passengers? 

MR. CRAWFORD: Probably not during that immediate time. I 

would suggest that what we could do is to send back to the bus companies, as 

we have, of all the drivers who attended and ask them to confirm that each of 

those drivers is a fully qualified driver. 

SENATORALLEN: Thank.you. 

MR. CRAWFORD: That still isn't going to get those who don't 

show up because they know that they themselves are not quality drivers. · 

SENATOR ALLEN: How do you determine who a fully qualified 

driver is? Is that something that is apparent with a document that they carry 

or that can be found out through a computer? 

MR. CRAWFORD: It can be found out through a· computer. All 

the bus drivers are required to be CDL licensed, so that they would have to 

have that. If they're a New Jersey driver, they would have to have a bus 

endorsement on their driver's license. 

SENATOR ALLEN: So it would be possible in the future to 

perhaps use a computer and have somebody -- that you do spot checks or 
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something. You could find somebody, use your computer and find out that 

they' re not qualified and immediately take action. 

MR. CRAWFORD: The one problem is that probably half of all 

the drivers who went through that training are not licensed by the State of 

New Jersey. We have, as you would expect, a very large number of the buses 

that come in are coming in from New York, Pennsylvania, Delaware, 

Maryland; and those drivers are licensed in their home states. I'm not sure 

that we could do that that quickly; although, I'm certainly prepared to work 

with Director Kamin to see what we can come up with for the future sessions. 

MR. KAMIN: There are many programs, Senator, that work 

beyond the state borders. There's a commercial driver's license information 

system, known as CDLIS, that we work with, and that information is shared. 

Even though there are the Federal requirements, we in New Jersey watch very 

carefully those who are registered as drivers here in New Jersey. And if there's 

a very, very strong support for sharing of that information between states, so 

that there aren't, for example, someone with a home state of Pennsylvania 

having multiple driver's licenses, or their privileges might be suspended in one 

state and they would have what would appear to be a valid, commercial driver's 

license in another. Those opportunities virtually are nonexistent because of the 

shared information, ultimately, of the same kind of benefit for the motoring 

public with just normal drivers by sharing that information. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Just one final question. Do you think it is to 

the benefit of the State of New Jersey to do any kind of spot inspections on 

these kinds of documents and whether through the computer, or whatever, to 

make sure that all of the drivers are, in fact, up to where they need to be? 
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MR. KAMIN: Absolutely. The regulations adjust for the fines and 

penalties for there to have proper record keeping. There's no better way tc 

check the authority of a company than an on-site inspection. As you know: 

much of that was the thinking behind the implementation of our school bm 

program, as well, to be able go into the terminals not only check on the drivers, 

but to also check the vehicle maintenance history for the vehicles registere_d at 
that location. 

SENATORALLEN: Thank.you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Senator, they actually said you could check 

their smart card to find that information out. (laughter) 

Senator McNamara. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: Commissioner, in reviewing your 

testimony, I-- We seem to have a tremendous amount of bus and van 

companies in the state -- over 400. Correct? 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Yes, Senator. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: You go through the process that when--

How many inspectors do we have? 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: We have -- active inspectors at 

this moment -- 17, Senator, and we're in the process of hiring 5 more. We 

have a supervisory staff of 4 above that. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: Now, if I understand reading through 

this, the process is that once a year they get inspected by an inspector, and the 

second time the company itself inspects their vehicles. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: That's correct, Senator, unless 

they in the normal inspection or in the audit they have found violations, then 
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it's possible that they could be put on semiannual or a quarterly basis. And, 

in fact, we have approximately 60 bus companies in this state that tend to be 

smaller van and minibus operators who actually have inspections conducted by 

our inspectors on a quarterly basis. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: I guess, that's what I was interested in. 

How does the public find out -- maybe a way of raising awareness?. If there's 

some way that the public can find out, those companies that are on that 

quarterly inspection because they only get on there if they've failed and were 

there poor maintenance, right? It's either safety or maintenance. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Yes. If there's a breakdown in 

maintenance and all that -- Director Kamin can speak to this-- If there's a 

breakdown in maintenance, I mean, those buses are red-tagged, and they are 

not allowed to enter service until they meet the maintenance threshold for a 

safe vehicle. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: But the companies themselves, you're 

saying there are some 60 companies in the state -- right? -- which is more than 

15 percent of those that are operating that are, in fact, on this compulsory 

Program because they have not met the criteria that the other companies 

made. What I'm saying, if the public was aware, I would think they would not 

choose to use those companies, and that would be a great incentive for them 

to spend the money in the normal course of doing business to maintain their 

fleets so that they get off the list. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I think, Senator, that perhaps 

there's merit in that. I just want to -- in characterizing it as 15 percent, while 

that is, in fact, 15 percent of the bus companies that are registered, it is not 15 
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percent of the service. There are companies in this state -- we all know the 

names of them -- that have remarkably good safety records. They take great 

pride in the maintenance of their vehicles. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: Wouldn't the public be better served, 

then, if they knew the ones that don't? Those companies that may be doing 

70 percent of the business may end up doing 90 percent. And if they're. the 

ones that do, in fact, maintain their fleet, do everything I 00 percent correct, 

we're all better off. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Yes. I mean, it would be 

difficult to argue against what you're positing here, Senator. 

Maybe Director Kamin could add something to this. 

MR. KAMIN: Just to add, Senator, that our mission is, that any 

time a passenger -- . someone from the public -- steps onto a bus, they should 

have I 00 percent assurance that the driver's properly licensed and trained, that 

the vehicle is a safe vehicle for transportation. It will be operated and deliver 

the passenger to where they want to go. That's our mission I 00 percent of the 

time. The fact that some vehicles or some companies have some failure rates 

and have become on our watch list does not mean that those vehicles when 

they're out operating aren't, in fact, safe vehicles. We're holding their feet to 

the fire, so to speak, so they might not let things slide where -- and see if it 

would pass inspection. If there's a chance of whether or not the tires might, 

say, be 30 percent left wear on, and they say, "Gee, maybe it will pass 

inspection," and then ·they let it happen. Well, the incentive now will be for 

the companies to make those preventive maintenance decisions so that the 

vehicles will pass. And the fact that we can keep track of that, I think, leads 
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to your point. When a bus company is on our watch list, that's not a pleasant 

thing for ~em to have to do. It's in their best interest to follow the rules, and 

it's best for the motoring public as well. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: That's good news. When they're on 

the watch list, do you take the time then, also, to check the drivers in those 

particular ones? Because I would think if a company is well operated and 

conforms and stays on the self-inspection program because they do it well, they 

would also take the care to make sure that their drivers are the best. Those 

companies that are on your watch list, the 60 of them, I'd just be curious if you 

could get that information back to the Committee, through the Chair, as to 

when you check those drivers that drive for them, whether their license and 

credentials are all in order. It may be a place to start. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I believe that's part of the audit 

process that they--

SENATOR McNAMARA: Oh, good. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: --go through, Senator, but I'll 

get a detailed response to that exactly how it takes place to you shortly. 

SENATOR McNAMARA: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator. 

And again I apologize for the sound system. We did ask for 

Maintenance to come and check it, and I assume they're on their way, so 

please bear with us. 

Senator Turner. 

SENATOR TURNER: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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I'd like to ask the Commissioner, what are the requirements for an 

individual to receive a commercial driver's license here in the State of New 

Jersey? 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: There is a-- It's actually both 

an experience and written test that they have to go through. For a bus driver, 

there has to be a passenger attachment to that, and it's a fairly- extensive 

process, Senator. 

Maybe Director Kamin can give you more details on that. 

MR. KAMIN: I can add as well, Senator, that there's the 

requirement of physicals. There's the requirement that the companies for 

which they drive to check with us and make sure that the license is valid, and 

that there's extra training. That's the passenger endorsement that the 

Commissioner referenced. It's a Federal test, and then there's the 

behind-the-wheel test as well. 

SENATOR TURNER: Are there--

MR. KAMIN: And also -- good point, Jim reminded me -- that 

also there's drug testing involved as well, and drivers can be subject to random 

testing. 

SENATOR TURNER: Are we in compliance with the Federal 

regulations regarding CDL? 

MR. KAMIN: Indeed we are. In fact, our laws and regulations 

exceed the Federal minimums. And that's why through national associations, 

like the American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators, of which I 

represent the State of New Jersey, and others that the Commissioner represents 

the State of New Jersey as well, our Program is looked at as a model. 
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SENATOR TURNER: I know that the driver in one of the 

accidents was licensed in New York. However, it was indicated in the press 

that he was unable to communicate with investigating officers. They had to 

find a Russian interpreter. And as I read the Federal regulations, it indicat€d 

and reads that one must be able to read and speak the English language 

sufficiently to converse with the general public, to understand highway traffic 

signs and signals in the English language, to respond to official inquiries, and 

to make entries on reports and records. So clearly, this particular driver did 

not meet those standards. And then I read the 1998 edition of the New Jersey 

Commercial Driver's Manual, and it mal(es no mention of English proficiency 

requirements. Now, do we in New Jersey have that requirement? 

MR. KAMIN: We do. And also the importance of being able to 

communicate to the passengers or the public in an emergency situation. So .it's 

not just being able to read. There has to be the ability to communicate is 

required as well. 

languages? 

SENATOR TURNER: In English? 

MR. KAMIN: Yes. 

SENATOR TURNER: But you do administer these tests in foreign 

MR. KAMIN: We do, but in so doing, there is the requirement 

that the driver at least recognize international signs and what's written in 

English, but the tests could be given in a different language. I know that our 

driver's test is given in 17 languages. I believe the CDL test, I think we give in 

4. 

SENATOR TURNER: In four languages? 
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MR. KAMIN: Right. 

SENATOR TURNER: They are Spanish and--

MR. KAMIN: There may be two. 

SENATOR TURNER: Two. 

MR. KAMIN: English and Spanish. I think it's only the two. 

SENATOR TURNER: I think I saw two in the manual. 

In view of these standards and the accidents that we've seen, de 

you believe that we have a sufficient standard of requirements for a CDL here 

in the State of New Jersey? Do you think there is a need to update it? 

MR. KAMIN: Well, as the Commissioner mentioned, that's why 

there's the benefit for this type of a hearing. If there's anything more that we 

can do and we can reasonably apply to our Program, we will. So it's under 

constant review, the fact that we share information not only from the driving 

and learning experience here in New Jersey, but with the several states, in fact, 

all of North America. 

SENATOR TURNER: I also recall, I think, at least one or more 

of the drivers had some violations on their licenses. Is that correct? 

MR. KAMIN: We_ can get-- Those drivers' records are public 

information. That would, perhaps, be-- Since those accidents are still under 

investigation, I might defer to Colonel Williams for those details at the 

appropriate time. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: That is, Senator, one of the 

issues, frankly, that we've had some discussions with the motor bus operators 

on how violations -- while drivers are required to report violations under the 

operating procedures of the companies, making sure that the operators, the 
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company officials, management, know is an issue that we're trying to figure out 

a very effective and maybe more effective way of making sure that the 

management of the company understands that there are issues. If there's a 

violation issued, that the management knows on a timely basis. 

SENATOR TURNER: I think, we, too, in the State of New Jersey 

in Motor Vehicles should be aware of those violations and make. sure that 

people are not driving if they, in fact, have accumulated a number of violation.s, 

particularly driving buses where so many passengers' safety is at stake. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I agree with that Senator. 

MR. KAMIN: We do, and I might add that South Jersey 

Transportation Authority, Executive Director Crawford, in fact, when tickets 

are issued, they have a way to communicating that to the company so that the 

company learns directly from the Authority that the tickets _have been issued. 

There's also the ability that exists now for bus companies, if they so choose, to 

hire a private contractor who is under an arrangement with the Division of 

Motor Vehicles to check on whether or not a licensed . driver is in good 

standing. For example, if you were to go in to re_nt a car at Newark Airport or 

in the tristate region, through some vendors who are authorized to get a yes. or 

no, the driver's in good standing information from us, can very quickly on line 

·check that for a small fee. So that technology is there. 

Most bus companies utilize fairly regularly, check quarterly, 

semiannually of making sure their drivers are in good standing. There's 

nothing more important to that carrier than their reputation and the people 

behind them. This is a service business. It's a competitive business, so they 

care about their drivers. 
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SENATOR TURNER: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator. 

Senator Allen, one last question. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Once they pass the test initially and become 

a certified driver, other than the refresher course that you're offering which 

they do not have to take, are they ever asked to pass anything again?- Are they 

ever looked at again to see whether they continue to meet the standards? 

MR. KAMIN: There's the annual physicals, the dru~ 

requirements, and then, of course, the renewal process that we are responsible 

for, for the 300,000 commercial driver's licenses here in New Jersey. 

SENATOR ALLEN: What do they have to do for that renewal 

process? 

MR. KAMIN: Pass the physical and the drug testing. 

SENATOR ALLEN: So there's none of the driving pieces are a 

part of it at all? 

MR. KAMIN: No. 

COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: No. I think the major 

operators have ongoing programs, quality assurance programs, that go to 

training, that go to review of their driver's records, those things that help assure 

in a management structure that they' re running a safe service and that their 

drivers are well qualified. 

MR. KAMIN: And as the_ Federal regulations change or state laws 

change, the driver's responsible for having a full understanding of that. Those 

documents remain available to the bus companies so that the drivers, by virtue 
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of holding that license, there are certain responsibilities and obligations that 

they must adhere to. 

SENATOR ALLEN: But we don't know if they do actually. You 

talk about the major operators, what about the minor operators? Seem to be 

those are the ones whose drivers, perhaps, didn't take advantage of the 

refresher course, and do they, in fact, have the same kind of programs within 

their companies to make sure that their drivers tow the line? 

MR. CRAWFORD: Senator, the answer to that would vary 

depending on the companies. I don't want it to appear that just because a 

company is small that it doesn't have an extensive training program because, 

in fact, some of the smallest companies have some of the best programs. But, 

yes, there are companies that do not have such programs, and the only thing 

they check is that, yes, this person has a CDL, that it's a current CDL, they've 

passed their physical, and they know how to drive a bus. 

SENATOR ALLEN: If you're a bus driver and you take another 

job for a few years and then you decide to go back, do you have to go through 

the whole test, or do you just--

MR. KAMIN: If the license were to lapse, I believe, for longer 

than a period of three years, then there would be the requirement of the whole 

new test again. But as long as you keep it in good standing--

SENATOR ALLEN: Have the physical and pay the check. 

MR. KAMIN: --even between states-- Yes. 

MR. CRAWFORD: Senator, it should be pointed out, you don't 

actually have to be actively employed as a bus driver to maintain that bus 

license. 
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SENATOR ALLEN: All right, thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you very much, gentlemen. We 

appreciate the information. 

MR. KAMIN: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR CIESLA: The next individual to testify, I believe, ha~ 

arrived. It's Senate President Don Difrancesco. 

Did you come by bus? 

SENATE PRESIDENT DONALD T. DiFRANCESCO: 

Ciesla, from Ocean County, yes. 

there. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Welcome. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: I was there last night--

SENATOR CIESLA: I know. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: --looking for you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: I was in the back of the room. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: I told them you were 

SENATOR CIESLA: Welc01~e, Don. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Good morning. 

Is it on? (referring to PA microphone) 

SENATOR CIESLA: Yes. Red means on. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Thanks for waiting fm 

me. I had a meeting at 10:00 with the Governor, and she's restricted in ho\\ 

often she can meet, so I didn't want to adjust that. I want to thank you fm 

being here and undertaking what I think is a very important task and a very-· 

And I think it's going to be difficult because I'm asking this Committee to lool< 
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at the laws, the regulations, and the standards that we have, and perhaps, that 

other jurisdictions have in order to see how those standards relate to bus safety 

in New Jersey on our roadways. So the impetus for this, you all know, goes 

back to December when there were three serious bus accidents leaving eight 

people dead, dozens injured, and a countless number of bus riders very fearful, 

very fearful to board buses. And, of course, wouldn't you know it, sadly 

enough, two incidences occurred just two days ago, again, so that there has 

seemed to be an ongoing number of bus accidents. 

I think we're all in agreement that New Jersey's road safety records 

are very respectable. In fact, I believe we've been a leader and at the forefront 

of transportation safety in a number of areas, but that isn't to say, however, 

that we are above review and beyond calling for a comprehensive look at what, 

if anything, can be done to make the roads safe for buses, for its drivers, ~nd 

·literally, for the thousands that use the buses in New Jersey. So it's my hope 

that this Committee will take this opportunity to examine what's already in 

place from inspections to enforcement with an eye toward its effectiveness in 

keeping our roads safe. 

Equally important, however, I believe, are-- I would hope that any 

flaws or gaps in our laws and regulations will be uncovered, and as an end 

result of this hearing, recommendations for change and improvement will be 

provided to the Legislature and to the Governor. And you all know that as 

time passes, there's always room for improvement, there's always recognition 

of changing times, things that, perhaps, can be done to improve in all areas, but 

particularly, where we're talking about road safety. 
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Now, as a corridor state, of course, there are a tremendous numbe1 

of vehicles that pass through our state but don't necessarily have to meet om 

standards. 

And, of course, Hank, you being from Bergen County, you k.no"" 

that better than anybody. 

As such, I recognize there are limitations on how we oversee 

operators and others who are beyond our borders. So it would be most useful; 

I think, and responsible if the legislators and the regulators in our neighborin~ 

states would undertake their own safety reviews so that our roads that we share 

can be improved at large. 

So, again, I know that you can only do what jurisdiction you have 

to do, and I thank you for taking the time and the effort to bring a coherent, 

I think, and a comprehensive focus to an issue that was suddenly and tragically 

brought to our attention just a few short weeks ago. 

That's all I have to say. I want to thank you all once again fm 

doing this and for listening to the people that will come here. Hopefully, you 

will get a good feel for at least today for what we have and, perhaps, where we 

have to go. 

Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. Thank you, Don. Thank you 

for your comments and thanl( you for the opportunity to look at the situation 

in New Jersey, which obviously, as you correctly state, continues to change and 

probably can be improved in some way. Hopefully, as a result of this hearing, 

and perhaps others that are going to come, we'll be able to make some 
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recommendations to you, put it in legislation, and make New Jersey even 

better than it is today. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Now, it was my 

understanding back then, Senator, that the Federal authorities were going to 

do a lengthy investigation, but that it would take six months, not unlike their 

other investigations that have a high profile like airplane accidents, before they 

would actually put into writing recommendations. Now, I don't know if that 

is accurate, but that's what I was told. So, again, I'm hoping that these same 

Federal authorities will cooperate with you in giving you information that they 

have gathered so that you can utilize their expertise in drawing these 

conclusions, too. 

I'm not sure -- perhaps, the Commissioner knows more about that 

part of it than I do -- but they have not had contact with me since that time 

in December. So, hopefully, they will be helpful to us. I know they have 

people in New Jersey, as they do all over the country, and that they'll be a very 

useful resource to this Committee. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. Thank you, Senate President. 

I know from third parties that they are here in New Jersey. They 

haven't shared any direct information with me as the Chairman of the 

Committee. I am, also, looking forward to whatever their findings are. 

Hopefully, we can incorporate it into whatever we're going to recommend to 

the Legislature. Again, I'm certain that whatever we do, it's going to make it 

a little bit better than what we currently experience. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Thank you. Thanks. 
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SENATOR CIESLA: Any Committee comments? (no response: 

Seeing none, thank you very much. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: I appreciate your taking the time to comt 

and share your thoughts with us. 

SENATE PRESIDENT DiFRANCESCO: Thanks. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Our next witness will be Colonel Car 

Williams with the New Jersey State Police. 

Colonel. 

Good morning. 

C 0 L 0 N E L C AR L A. W I L L I A M S JR.: Good morning, sir 

and Senators. Before I begin my testimony, I'd like to introduce the twc 

troopers that are with me today. To my left is Lieutenant Ron Small, who i~ 

the Unit Supervisor of our Commercial Vehicle/Bus Inspection Units, and t< 

my right is Sergeant John Herman, who is the NCO in charge of the Camey~ 

Point CVI Inspection Station, down off of 295 in South Jersey, and he is alsc 

a renown commercial vehicle/bus inspector, who has gone throughout tht 

United States offering testimony and also teaching other CVI inspectors hov 

to do their job. They will be available to answer any of the technical questiorn 

that you might have at the end of my testimony. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: Our purpose this morning is to addres! 

not only the December 24, 1998, fatal bus crash involving a Nev 

York-registered motor coach on the Garden State Parkway, but also tht 

subsequent motor coach crashes, including two which occurred on Tuesda) 
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night of this week. While only one fatality occurred as a result of the later 

crashes, a significant number of people sustained various levels of injury. 

These events concern me greatly and remain the focus of enhanced 

enforcement and investigative attention by the New Jersey State Police. 

From an enforcement point of view, I can assure you that safety 

is our primary goal. The New Jersey State Police, along with the Division of 

Highway and Traffic Safety, has several crash reduction programs in place. 

They are the Aggressive Driver Enforcement Program, which is designed to 

detect anyone who operates their vehicle in a manner which creates an unsafe 

driving environment, and the 65-mph Speed Enforcement Program with the 

overall objective to ensure compliance with the new 65-mph speed limit. 

The State Police have also initiated numerous other programs 

which are more traditional in nature such as patrols, our tactical patrols, our 

use of unmarked vehicles and stealth vehicles, our saturation and increased 

holiday enforcement activities, and weight enforcement and safety inspection 

details directed at commercial vehicles and motor coaches. Additionally, the 

State Police Traffic Bureau has put in place various programs which specifically 

target commercial vehicles and motor coach enforcement. 

As the New Jersey Department of Transportation has already 

indicated in their presentation, New Jersey has one of the best bus safety 

programs in the United States. In fact, New Jersey always has been in the 

forefront of commercial vehicle enforcement. As early as 1992, we realized the 

need for an increased commitment to motor coach safety. Indeed, New Jersey 

was one of the five pioneer states to use Motor Carrier Safety Assistance 

Program funds for the purchase of portable inspection ramps to conduct 
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full-scale Level I roadside inspections of motor coaches. The other states being 

California, Idaho, Nebraska, and Pennsylvania. 

The result of this initial inspection program was a 30 percent 

increase in the out-of-service rate for roadside inspections. When I refer to 

out-of-service, I mean a mechanical condition which likely cause a commercial 

vehicle to crash or to breakdown. 

The New Jersey State Police and the New Jersey Department of 
Transportation conduct enroute inspections on motor coaches year-round on 

the Garden State Parkway and the Atlantic City Expressway, the main traffic 

corridors to Atlantic City. Additionally, the Great Adventure Amusement Park 

and the Meadowland Sport Complex provide additional sites for inspections, 

due to the fact that they are primary motor coach destinations. Both the State 

Police and the DOT conduct inspections at these locations when they are in 

operation. 

One of our more intense operations takes place in Atlantic City, 

where destination inspections are performed at two locations along Route 322. 

Many motor coach owners and operators confuse these inspections with the 

Herbertsville enroute inspection operation on the Garden State Parkway. 

Because New Jersey conducts more motor coach inspections than any other 

state, we are the recipient of many complaints from the industry. Some 

members of the industry feel that we are interfering with their commercial 

ventures in and out of Atlantic City. This could not be further from the truth, 

since passenger safety and crash avoidance are our primary goals. 

During a destination inspection, the passengers have already been 

delivered to their destination. In June of 1999 (sic), during an operation in 
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Atlantic City, inspection teams developed information that some motor coach 

drivers were remaining in the city after dropping off passengers to avoid being 

inspected. Generally, drivers proceed to locations other than the downtown 

area and park until it is time to pickup their passengers. Members of the 

Commercial Carrier Safety Inspection Unit went into the Atlantic City area 

and escorted those vehicles to the location where the inspections were being 

conducted. 

I might add, this behavior is not typical of carriers as a whole, but 

it is indicative of those companies with less than satisfactory compliance 

histories. I would like, also, to point out that just as these operators network 

to avoid inspection, other carriers have a network of communication through 

CB radios designed to thwart speed enforcement efforts of the New Jersey 

State Police and other enforcement agencies. We will endeavor to find new 

methods of combating these and enhance our enforcement results. 

Even before this recent unfortunate series of crashes, the State 

Police was reviewing a plan to create a dedicated motor coach inspection 

squad. Presently, members of the State Police Commercial Carrier Safety 

Inspection Unit perform in dual cap~cities conducting commercial vehicle 

inspections and weight enforcement for trucks and motor coaches. The 

proposed new squad would channel its efforts toward motor coach activity and 

compliance review. Our Carneys Point Weigh Station in South Jersey, which 

opened in September of 1999 (sic), provides us with the capability for 

inspecting motor coaches, as well as weighing and inspecting trucks. 

Finally, as in any area of law enforcement, our job is made easier 

when we have cooperation, and I underline that word, cooperation. In this 
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case, we need cooperation from industry and the public, namely, motor carriers 

and the passengers who ride those motor coaches. It has been alleged that 

passengers tip drivers in order to entice them to drive faster so they will arrive 

at their destination more quickly. If this is true, this practice should be 

stopped at once in that it may enhance the violation of motor vehicles laws and 

compromise safety. 

The New. Jersey State Police will continue to work with both 

Federal, State, and local agencies to further enhance our commitment to safety. 

We will continue to review our existing enforcement strategies and will develop 

new programs, as necessary, to enhance and remain proactive. 

Thank you very much, sir, and we're open for any questions. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Colonel. 

Senator Turner. 

SENATOR TURNER: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. 

I'd like to ask, in view of the fact that most of the buses it seems 

have Atlantic City as the destination point, would it mal(e sense to have a 

facility located in Atlantic City rather than having it located in Brick, which is 

off the beaten path, so to speak, and you have all of these passengers on that 

bus, and the drivers have a lot of downtime waiting in Atlantic City? Would 

it not make sense to open a facility there to accommodate these inspections? 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: Senator, we do have two facilities in 

Atlantic City off of Route 322 where we actually do the buses. Those are when 

we do the destination-type inspections, when the bus has already arrived at 

Atlantic City. We do it right there at that point. So we do have two locations 

in Atlantic City where the DOT and our troopers do inspect the buses. 
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The one on the Parkway is more or less a ride-through type of 

inspection where the bus is brought over and a quick visual and a check of the 

credentials is made, but the bus is not tied up so it allows the passengers to 

reach their destination. But like I say, once they do get to Atlantic City, we do 

have those two facilities where we bring them back out. 

SENATOR TURNER: In your inspections, how often is it that 

you find that the buses have some mechanical problems or some violations? 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: How about if I let Sergeant Herman 

answer that. 

SERGEANT J 0 H N HERMAN: Senator, when we do Level II 

inspections, which are a complete inspection, other than the undercarriage of 

the vehicle, a driver check, and a walk-around inspection of the vehicle, the 

out-of-service rate is between 8 percent and 10 percent. When we inspect the 

vehicles using the portable ramps where we elevate the bus and inspect the 

frame and the undercarriage of the bus including the entire braking system, it 

rises to between 30 percent and 35 percent out-of-service rate. 

SENATOR TURNER: Thirty-five percent out of service? 

SERGEANT HERMAN: That's correct. 

SENATOR TURNER: And what do you do in those cases? 

SERGEANT HERMAN: When those vehicles are placed-- In 

Atlantic City area where we have the destination inspections, Senators, the 

driver is allowed to make a phone call. Usually they have a cellular phone, or 

we make arrangements to escort the driver to an area where he can contact his 

company, and they are provided that window of four to six hours to either 
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provide another motor coach for the transportation of their passengers or to 

take necessary corrective actions. 

SENATOR TURNER: On that level, 35 percent, is that more the 

exception than the rule in terms of buses being that deficient? 

SERGEANT HERMAN: I would think, Senator, if you looked at 

the statistics over the last six months, which we don't have yet, you'd find that 

that's probably gone down. The inspections that we're performing have had 

a result in Atlantic City, and we're finding a little bit less. When we do use the 

ramps, I would say that you're going to find that that would be the exception. 

About 30 percent is a good figure of the bus being placed out of service. 

SENATOR TURNER: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Are there any other questions? (no 

response) 

Colonel, I have one question, and it has to do with the rate of 

speed because I know that that will be a topic today. Just giving my casual 

observations from driving on the Parkway-- everybody, obviously, has them --

it seems that when the speed limits were raised to 65, there actually was a net 

decrease in the speed on the Parkway because of, I would imagine, your 

directive to enforce close to a zero toleranc.e rule. Since that time, it seemed 

to have crept up again, and I'm wondering if there is any recommendation from 

your office as to whether or not speed is something that needs to be addressed 

by this particular body as it relates to differential between buses and vehicles 

that use the roadways? 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: Well, Senator, in conversation with our 

traffic people, we-- At this time, we are not in favor of a differential between 
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different sizes of vehicles, different types of vehicles. We feel that we're in the 

middle of our test period for the 65-mph speed limit statewide, and that we 

need some more statistics to look at. It's a program that we think is working · 

in New Jersey, and we'd like a little more time for it to go its roots, so to speak, 

and have some more statistics available before we make a decision. But as I 

said, amongst ourselves--

Lieutenant Small can chime in here with regards to the 

differentiation in speed. When you put several different vehicles out on the 

road and you have one moving at one speed and another at another, I think 

you're, in my personal opinion, asking for a little more havoc on the highway. 

Ron. 

L I E U T E N A N T R 0 N A L D S M A L L: As far as the differential 

with speed, it also has to do with driver attitude. A lot of times since we've 

seen the 65-mph program instituted, the drivers are able to move along sort of, 

like, with the speed limit, cutting down on the frustration. The other thing has 

to do With the signage on the road. It seems like when they get into an area 

where the signs indicate a difference in fines, they seem to obey the limits a 

little more closely. 

SENATOR CIESLA: One last question. There was some reference 

in your testimony to caravanning, using CBs in order to avoid enforcement for 

speeding. With the introduction of cellular phones and other technology, has 

that been -- do you experience that as being an impediment as well? In other 

words, one driver leading a convoy, in effect, notifying the balance of your 

location. 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: You're correct, Senator. 
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Sergeant Herman can speak to that directly. 

SERGEANT HERMAN: Senator, as the Colonel addressed, durin! 

the summer of 1998 in June, we were set up on U.S. 322, and as a result oj 

information from drivers that we were inspecting of other drivers loitering ir 

the Atlantic City area when we were set up, we came back within a day or twc 

and went into the city, and we actually pulled out some of these buses tha1 

were parked on the side of the road that appeared to be in need of inspection 

We did find that there were avoiding us. 

We also found out that when we run the commercial vehiclt 

aggressive driving details, which we run on random times through the year ou1 

of the Commercial Carrier Safety Inspection Unit, that the troopers in tht 

Commercial Carrier Unit equipped with CBs do hear a networking of thei1 

setup, as has always been the case. That's not something that's new, but i1 

becomes more prevalent that there's a certain group of drivers that are mon 

than willing to comply with the speed limit, and then there's the attitude groui: 

that Lieutenant Small was talking about that want ~o get there quickly anc 

regardless of their cargo, which is in th~s case human lives, are willing tc 

compromise by use of cellular phone, by use of the CB, by use of _the rada1 

detectors. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you very much. 

Senator. 

SENATOR TURNER: Yes. In view of these recent accidents 

there has been considerable discussion regarding seat belts, whether or no1 

commercial buses should be required to have seat belts. What research or wha1 

is your opinion regarding mandatory seat belts on commercial buses? 
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COLONEL WILLIAMS: Lieutenant Small will answer that. 

LIEUTENANT SMALL: There's always an issue of requiring seat 

belts of enforcement. I'll defer to Sergeant Herman. He '11 tell you some of his 

experiences with the seat belts and the requirements of seat belts on motor 

coaches, as well as possibly even school buses. 

SERGEANT HERMAN: Senator, in September of 1994, New 

Jersey instituted one of the toughest seat belt policies for their school buse-s. 

Any new buses that came out of a manufacturer, the children are required to 

be equipped with seat belts. A discussion came up of concern among the 

drivers -- I spoke at several school districts -- and the concern for the drivers 

was, who's responsible if there's an accident and children aren't wearing their 

seat belts? Not all of our districts can afford the student aides. It also becomes 

a question in motor coach as -- that would have to be addressed by ~he 

Legislature if they wanted to enforce mandatory seat belts that -- where would 

the enforcement lie? Would it be an obligation on the carrier to make sure 

before he proceeded that all of the passengers had their seat belt? If they 

belted them up before the enforcement agent got on the motor coach, it's 

obviously a very good idea if we have everybody restrained in their seat. That 

would be ideal, but the enforceability of it comes into q~estion as to who is 

responsible and then the legal liability if they're not wearing them. So it's 

something that would have to be looked at and studied in extent. 

SENATOR TURNER: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator Turner. 

Thank you, gentlemen. We appreciate your testimony. 

COLONEL WILLIAMS: Thank you, sir. 
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SENATOR CIESLA: Senator Joseph Vitale. 

Good morning, Senator. 

S E N A T 0 R J 0 S E P H F. V I T A L E: Good morning. How are 

you? 

SENATOR CIESLA: Good. Thank you. 

SENATOR VITALE: Good to be here and to see all of you. _ 

I just want to, first, thank obviously the Chair and Senator 

Difrancesco and all the members for being here today and addressing what is 

in response to a series of crashes involving passenger buses and, in general, 

discuss the process by which the State ensures overall passenger and driver 

safety. In addition to other.steps the State must take to ensure safer roads, I 

urge you to consider the possibility of lowering the speed limit for school buses, 

other passenger buses, and the large trucks that travel upon our limited-access 

highways and interstates. 

So on the outset, I would like to recognize one main concern that 

some transportation advocates, including the Commissioner and 

Superintendent of State Police, express regarding split speed limits. That is 

that variances in speed, for example, cars limited to 65 mph and trucks limited 

to 55 mph, interact at dangerous levels. I believe that in part my testimony 

and documented information that I have provided to you this morning will 

begin to address that very important concern. 

When the Legislature raised the speed limit from 5 5 to 65, the 

State not only raised the limits for competent drivers with safe cars, it also 

raised it for poor drivers, chronic offenders, and the most inexperienced drivers, 

teenagers. Similarly, we raised the speed limit for trucks and buses. Now, all 
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types of drivers with varying degrees of ability in automobiles, in trucks, and 

buses with random degrees of performance are thrown together on the 

highways of our state. 

I recognize that there is very little sentiment at this time to revert 

to the maximum 55 mph for all vehicles, but I believe it is reasonable and 

responsible to consider doing so for buses and large trucks. I believe that all 

of us have a large degree of common sense when it comes to the physics of size 

and speed. As New Jerseyans, we spend a great deal of our time in our 

automobiles observing the driving habits and speeds of all vehicles, and so our 

opinions are more than just anecdotal. They are based on real experience as 

well as technical data. Therefore, I don't believe that I'm going out on a limb 

when I say that we can all agree that buses and trucks cannot stop as quickly, 

avoid other vehicles in emergency situations as competently, or perform in 

inclement weather as capably as passenger cars. And, unfortunately, when they 

do cr~sh, it seems that the price is higher in injury and death. 

To support my position on split speed limits, I have provided to 

you a technical summary by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal 

Highway Administration, and a listing of states with split speed limits and with 

same speed limits. Those states with split speed limits -- it's a tongue twister --

are Arkansas, California, Texas, Oregon, Washington State, Michigan, Indiana, 

Florida, Ohio, and Connecticut. Montana, which does not have a speed limit 

for passenger cars, at least has the common sense to have a limit for buses and 

trucks. 

The primary purpose of the research by the Department of 

Transportation was to determine whether differential speeds are more 
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beneficial to transportation safety and traffic operations on interstate 

highways. The summary was issued in May of 1994 and is the most recen1 

Federal study available. Within the study's summary, four importan1 

conclusions stand out. 

For states with different speed limits for cars and trucks, th<: 

percentage of car into truck rear-end accidents was 26 percent greater vvher 

compared to uniform speed limit states. However -- and I think this is ar 

interesting statistic -- in states with similar speed limits, truck into ca1 

accidents were greater for rear-end collisions by 5 7 percent, sideswipes by 41 

percent, and other collision types by 103 percent. The analysis of acciden1 

severity showed that uniform and differential speed limit states have the same 

fatal accident proportion; however, the injury accident proportion was 1 E 

percent greater in uniform speed limit states. And lastly, the 65-55 speed limi1 

does result in fewer trucks exceeding 70 mph. And I would just add that tha1 

may very well apply to buses. 

I have provided a -draft of legislation that provides the specific 

details that will lower the speed limit for passenger buses and other commercia: 

vehicles. Briefly, the proposed legislation breaks down this way: "Commercia: 

motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used 01 

designed to transport passengers or property on a highway and includes c 

motor vehicle: having a gross vehicle weight rating, GVWR, of 10,001 or mon 

pounds or displaying a GVW rating of 10,001 or more pounds; having a gros~ 

combination weight rating of 10,001 or more pounds inclusive of a towed uni1 

with a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,001 or more pounds; designed tc 

transport 16 or more passengers including the driver; designed to transport E 
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or more, but less than 16 persons, including the driver and used to transport 

such persons for hire, including such vehicles used to transport persons on a 

daily basis to and from places of employment; or transporting or used in the 

transportation of hazardous materials and required to be placarded in 

accordance with the rules of the Department of Transportation or displaying 

a hazardous material placard." 

This legislation does not include recreational vehicles or other 

vehicles exempted by rule or regulation. 

In closing, I would like to add that any reduction in speed limits 

for buses and trucks is not a reflection on the abilities of those who operate 

them, the vast majority of whom are extremely competent individuals who will 

go about their trade safely and professionally. It is, though, as I stated earlier, 

a matter of passenger, bus, and large trucks' ability to perform at higher speeds 

in all situations. 

Just an addition. I had earlier comments and had some 

conversations with some of the professionals, and some had i_ndicated that their 

states were considering rolling back their split speed limit to a uniform speed 

limit. The states that I've contacted, including Michigan and Ohio and 

Connecticut, their departments of transportation, they're pleased with the way 

that their process works just in terms of passenger and driver safety. So I just 

thought I would throw that in as an add on, as I've heard the testimony earlier. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator. 

Certainly some interesting information, and I know information 

that will be considered as we continue to move forward. Thank you for 

presenting it. 
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SENATOR VITALE: I just want to say that -- I appreciate just 

another second -- I understand that the Superintendent and the Commissioner 

and others honestly -- they believe that varying speed limits are not helpful. 

And I just think that this at some level starts to engage the dialogue because, 

if the Federal government is saying that it works, let's look at the information 

honestly, and I think they're honest men. Clearly, members of this Committee 

work hard, and we'll sort of sum it all up and see if we can come up with a real 

solution to this issue and others that you've talked about today. 

SENATOR CIESLA: We agree with you, Senator. 

Senator Allen. 

SENATOR ALLEN: The Commissioner cited a number of studies 

that indicated that differential speed limits might increase a number of 

different types of accidents. I note that two that he cited were prior in date to 

the one that you cited. My guess is that there are others. Are you intending 

to gather every study that's been done? And if you have done that, or are 

doing that, could you provide them all to the Commi~tee? 

SENATOR VITALE: Sure. l\1y conversation with the Department 

in Washington, yesterday, they indicated they're just about to un~ertake a 

new study using Michigan as the model. They're another state with split speed 

limits. We're happy with their speed limits, but they are part of that 

government study -- the Federal government study -- that's about to be 

undertaken shortly. 

SENATORALLEN: Thankyou. 

SENATOR VITALE: Sure. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Did you ever drive in Montana? 
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SENATOR VITALE: No. 

SENATOR CIESLA: It's an interesting experience. 

SENATOR VITALE: I'm sure. Well, if you have a tank in 

Montana, you can drive at any speed you like -- carte blanche. (laughter) -

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Carol Katz from the New Jersey Motor Bus 

Association. 

C A R 0 L I( A T Z: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the 

Committee. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Good morning. 

MS. KATZ: Thank you very much for this opportunity. I'm Carol 

Katz from Public Strategies Impact. I'm here on behalf of the New Jersey 

Motor Bus Association. With me is John Solomita, Independent Bus 

Company, and Gary Mariano, President of Suburban Transit, which is a Coach 

U.S.A. Company. I will deliver a brief statement, and John will make some 

brief comments, and we'll all be available for your questions. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Very good. 

MS. KATZ: The New Jersey Motor Bus Association, which 

represents the private motor bus operators, believes that good safety practices 

and the vigilant practice of bus maintenance are vitally important. That's why 

we've always supported and we continue to support active and aggressive 

enforcement of bus safety regulations. Thousands of New Jerseyans ride our 

buses every day to work and play. Buses are key to a thriving tourism industry, 

and they bring thousands of people to Atlantic City who might not otherwise 
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come. Once more, they help the State to meet increasingly strict clean ail 

requirements by encouraging people to leave their cars at home. 

We are proud of our members' excellent safety records. In fact, in 

terms of passenger miles traveled, buses are the safest vehicles on the road, and 

I will-- Attached to our statement, we have included some statistics from the 

U.S. DOT, which show that the occupant fatality rate for all buses in 199-fr 

which is the latest year on this DOT chart, was 0.9 fatalities per 100 million 

vehicle miles. This is nationwide. 

We did a rough, ·back-of-the-envelope calculation this morning 

and if you figure there are about 40 passengers per bus, which I'm told is 2 

pretty good estimate, that's 0.9 fatalities, our estimate, per 4 billion passenge1 

miles in 1996. Every fatality is a tragedy, and we're always eager to identify 

opportunities to enhance our safety practices, but those statistics are pretty 

remarkable. 

You've already heard from the State DOT about our inspectior 

and maintenance requirements. Buses are subject to twice yearly inspectior 

by the DOT. For operators with a good safety history, that usually entails one: 

inspection by the DOT and one self-inspection. Some companies are inspectec 

twice yearly by the DOT. Our members, who also incur the cost of aggressiv<: 

maintenance programs, supported a significant increase in bus inspection fee~ 

in 1993 when the inspection program was threatened in order to keep tha1 

program going. In spite of the fact that such fees place an added burden or 

private operators, we supported them because we do believe in frequent an( 

thorough inspections by the DOT. 
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It's important for the State to ensure that all buses are held to the 

State's stringent maintenance standards, and they are stringent, and that those 

standards are enforced actively and evenhandedly for all operators, whether 

they're public or private, regulated or unregulated, and whenever they run and 

wherever they go. 

In addition to garage inspections, buses are subject to random 

roadside inspections. Since passage of the Bus Safety Compliance Act, the 

DOT has stepped up both the frequency and the randomness of the roadside 

inspections. The DOT is aggressively inspecting Atlantic City-bound buses at 

the inspection stations set up at Exit 94 of the Parkway, and the station is 

opened, I think, three or four times per week; and all buses must stop there 

when it's open. 

We're especially pleased about the more random nature of the 

inspections, as that's something we had specifically suggested when the 

Legislature was considering the Bus Safety Compliance Act. Prior to the Bus 

Safety Compliance Act, the DOT inspected buses on the Parkway only on 

weekday mornings, but the current system allows for inspection of most of the 

unregulated operators who go to Atlantic City on Friday and Saturday nights. 

It's actually more urgent for those buses, which in many cases are not subject 

to the State's inspections, face random inspections. 

We've maintained our support for the roadside inspections in spite 

of the fact that we would have preferred to s_ee more inspections take place in 

Atlantic City after passengers are dropped off, rather than on the Parkway or 

the Atlantic City Expressway, where our passengers do have to wait for the 
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completion of the inspection; and when a bus is taken out of service, where 

they have to wait for a new bus to be sent for. 

We believe that it makes eminent sense to flag down buses not at 

a DOT facility fixed at one location on the Parkway, but as they enter Atlantic 

City itself. State Troopers could hand out summonses to buses on a random 

basis as they enter the city requiring them to report for inspection afte1 

discharging their passengers at the destination. If the bus fails inspection, tht 

company would have time to send a replacement without delaying tht 

passengers, and buses that don't report for inspection should be penalized 

appropriately. 

Conducting these inspections in Atlantic City after the passengen 

are dropped off wouldn't just minimize the inconvenience to our passengers 

but it would also ensure that buses that travel on roads other than the twc 

major arteries to Atlantic City are also inspected. In addition, and this is reall) 

important from a safety perspective, the State would be able to conduct mon 

inspections and more thorough inspections if they did more in Atlantic City. 

We'd also like to point out that all of our members ensure tha1 

their drivers are in compliance with all applicable Federal and State safet; 

regulations, and that they receive proper training prior to starting employment 

This process includes a road test, a written examination, a physica: 

examination, a drug and alcohol test, previous employment reference checks 

Motor Vehicle driver abstract reviews, and classroom and road training. 

According to Federal law, companies must require and drivers mus1 

complete prior on-duty statements to monitor their working hours 

Unfortunately, the U.S. DOT compliance inspections are extremely rare. Wt 
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believe that the State would benefit greatly from the establishment of a 

regulatory group to audit driver safety compliance, such as logs, hours of 

service violations, medical exams, etc., at individual bus companies. At present, 

there is no manpower for this function. 

We think there may be opportunities for other improvements to 

bus safety through technological innovations that would allow the DOT or 

State Police to flag down buses that are more likely to have violations than 

others with a clean record. We have been told that this may be possible using 

scanning equipment. I'm not terribly familiar with this technology, but we 

have heard about it, and it may be something that the Committee might find 

valuable to look into. 

In addition, new technological developments of the DOT may 

allow it to provide bus companies with lists of drivers whose licenses are 

suspended. Currently, we run a driver's history periodically, most of us do it 

quarterly. But if a driver's license is suspended in the interim and he doesn't 

tell us about it, we're not currently notified. The DMV l:ias welcomed our 

suggestions on this front and is working with us_ to try to accomplish it. 

We would like to comment briefly on two other possible measures 

that have been discussed. We would not object to requiring seat belts in new 

·buses if the independent agencies studying them conclude that they are 

necessary and can be properly engineered to be effective. We do understand 

that some serious questions about their necessity or effectiveness have been 

raised, and that other safety features such as a bus's size and seat engineering 

may matter more. We would also not like to have the driver be required to see 

to it that passengers are wearing their seat belts, as he should be concentrating 
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on the road, not on passengers' behavior. And we don't think that they would 

work on local transit buses, which -- where buses travel slowly anyway and 

where people sometimes have to stand. 

Nor would we object to a 55-mph speed limit if you shouk 

determine that it would, in fact, make the road safer. We are somewha1 

concerned that an uneven flow of traffic with buses traveling at 55 and othen 

traveling at 65 might cause more accidents than it would prevent. And wt: 

would also ask you to keep in mind that if buses are considered by tht: 

commuting public to be a slower alternative than cars, they may opt to ust 

their cars more frequently. That could work against the State's goals not onl) 

for cleaner air, but for safe roads if our highways become even more congested 

but if your analysis proves otherwise, we wouldn't oppose this lower speec 

limit. 

The overwhelming number of buses operate responsibly ferryin~ 

thousands of passengers in safety and comfort to go to work or to enjo) 

Atlantic City and other parts of our state every day. 

We thank you very much for the invitation to speak today, and w< 

would be happy to answer any questions. 

And I'll let John just briefly talk about the DOT inspections anc 

some statistics. 

J 0 H N S 0 L 0 M I TA: Good afternoon. 

Carol spoke about our concerns, and obviously, it's no comfort tc 

anybody to have a tragedy in their family to point to statistics. Certainly 

things that are happening out there are tragedies when they do occur. Fron 

a statistical point of view, buses appear to be one of the safer modes o 
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transportation in the country. Of the fatalities recorded in 1997, less than one 

quarter of 1 percent of buses; certainly 0. 9 for every 4 billion passenger miles 

is obviously something very specific and significant. With other modes of 

transportation, their numbers, according to the United States Department of 

Transportation, are much higher. We have trucks having over 5000; 

passengers cars over 32,000 fatalities. 

Certainly, we would like to talk ·about briefly the idea of the 

vehicle versus the driver. Certainly, I think anybody who is familiar with the 

DOT in the State of New Jersey could really have a lot respect for this 

organization, as a company that operates buses. We have every transit-type 

bus in the north part of the state. The DOT does an remarkable job. They are 

extremely thorough. They're fantastic in what they're doing to protect the 

people of this state. There are times sometimes when you might be putting on 

a new brake lining, something's that brand-new going on the bus, and they will 

come out and sometimes see a manufacturing problem that you would be 

totally unaware of. I think from a hardware point of view, if I could use that 

word, the New Jersey Department of Transportation does really a remarkable 

job. 

From our point of view, as providers of public transportation, I'd 

just like to make a point that besides providing a service, you know, with 

ourselves, we're also consumers of the service. I live up the block from Senator 

McNamara. My sons are out at Eisenhower School. They're going on field 

trips all the time. One time when they had to go on one of those a few days, 

I dropped my son off, and I was looking to see what buses were there. And to 

be perfectly honest, if they had an out-of-state license plate, I may have been 
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reluctant to let my son get on it, but they had top-of-the-line buses, and from 

that point of view, I felt very secure to let my son on it. Of course, as parents: 

you're not going to be that comfortable anyway when they're away for three 

days. But we do use the service going to sporting events with our kids. Sc 

from that point of view, it's not like we're just putting a bus out, we're trying 

to ignore it, and just make money off the system. We use the service as we11. 

We have to be concerned from the point of view of ourselves and our families. 

Well, it seems that a lot of problems on these particular accident~ 

that are the subject of these meetings are, it seems to me, as driver related. 

Now, I don't have any more information about these than you would have jus1 

from reading the reports in the paper, but I happen to sitting in the car waitin~ 

for my son yesterday and I reading the Bergen Record. It's almost amusin~ 

when the Record is reporting accidents. I think they're doing a good job of the 

reporting, but it's always a brake problem with the bus. 

In our company, if somebody has an accident, they're going tc 

report it to me personally, and I would just love to see a situation when 

somebody comes up and says, "John, it was my fault. I did it." But it's alway~ 

the brakes, which of course you're going to test the same way the DOT does 

and it seldom is the brakes. I think the problem or a lot of the problems an 

drivers. And the problem we have right now is with the differential of salarie~ 

between the privates and State agencies. And a lot of that is based on lack o: 

fair increases going a long ways. It's the driver who is trying to get into tht 

State system, to drive part-time for the State and full-time for us, and you'n 

relying on the driver to honestly record his hours. We have really no means o: 

checking that out other than the driver. Hopefully, he's reporting honestly. 

56 



You could have situations where maybe they've been on the road 

too much. I think a situation like that could used to be addressed. I think the 

buses themselves are very safe that originate in New Jersey. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you, Carol. 

Are there· any questions from the Committee? (no response)_ 

Thank you very much. 

MS. KATZ: With my testimony, we're attaching a piece about 

seat belts from the United Motor Coach Association that you may find 

interesting, and some of the statistics that I referred to that we found from the 

U.S. DOT. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. 

MS. KATZ: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Christopher Rotondo, U.S. DOT Federal 

Highway Administration, Office of Motor Carriers. 

C H R I S T 0 P H E R R 0 T 0 N D 0: Good afternoon. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Good afternoon, Mr. Rotondo. 

MR. ROTONDO: Chairman Ciesla, Committee, the United 

States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Office 

of Motor Carriers, under the direction of the Secretary of Transportation, 

Rodney Slater, is charged with the responsibility of regulating and enforcing 

safe operations of commercial motor vehicles that operate in interstate 

commerce. 

Commercial motor vehicles are defined as both heavy vehicles, 

trucks, and buses with a seating capacity over 15. The regulations that govern 
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the safety operations are the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations. Tht: 

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations include vehicle standards such a~ 

commercial motor vehicle components; driver standards such as medicals anc 

hours of service regulations; motor carrier responsibilities such as licensing 

insurance, controlled substance and alcohol testing; and state requirement~ 

such as inspections. For the most part, all of the Federal Motor Carrier Safet) 

regulations apply to buses and trucks alike. There are some of the regulation~ 

specific to each industry, such as sleeper births and (indiscernible). Somt: 

major requirements are the hours of service regulations, which apply to al 

commercial motor vehicle drivers. 

A commercial motor vehicle operator cannot drive more than 1 C 

hours without having 8 hours off duty. And after being on duty for 15 hours 

must also have 8 hours off. Drivers also cannot exceed the 60-hour rule ir 

seven consecutive days or the 70-hour rule in eight days. 

Next is the Federal inspection requirement which requires al 

commercial motor vehicles to be inspected annually. Some states, such as NeV\ 

York and New Jersey, have a much more rigorous standard, which mandatt: 

vehicle inspections every six months. Many inspections are funded via Federa· 

grants to the states under the Motor Carrier Safety _Assistance Act. 

In 1998, there were approximately 33,000 motor coach inspectiom 

and of the drivers. New Jersey led the nation with over 6700 of thes( 

inspections. Some of these inspections are done at origins, some at destinatior 

points, and an example of that would be what you heard earlier today in th( 

Atlantic City area. They're done by the New Jersey State Police and the Ne~ 

Jersey Department of Transportation. The Federal Motor Carriers Safet) 
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Regulations prescribe the minimum standards that states must follow in 

implementing testing for commercial drivers licenses. The Federal Motor 

Carriers Safety Regulations have such requirements as age of driver, physical 

health, knowledge requirements to obtain a commercial driver's license. The 

state is responsible for issuing the CDL license and has the authority to revoke 

it as well. 

As far as the regulations applicable to the carrier, paperwork 

requirements such as the driver's logs, hours of service regulations, physical 

exams, drug and alcohol testing, vehicle inspection reports, and so on, and so 

forth, are all part of a safety management program that the carrier must have. 

The Office of Motor Carriers has instituted a performance-based selection 

program for carriers to undergo a compliance review. Accident, driver, mileage 

histories, and other relevant data are compiled. And those with indicators of 

poor performance are selected, and a thorough compliance review, which is a 

safety investigation, is conducted on the entire motor carrier operation. A 

rating is then provided based on the results of this investigation. If the carrier 

does not receive a satisfactory rating, they're allowed 45 days to bring their 

entire operation into compliance. At the end of the 45 days, if these 

deficiencies are not corrected and the carrier maintains an unsatisfactory rating, 

enforcement activities more severe than initial penalties can be taken, such as 

closing down that portion of the operation. 

Recently, we've heard much about seat belts for the buses and the 

speed limits. Seat belts and speed limits are not a Federal requirement. There 

have been no comprehensive studies as to whether seat belts would increase 

safety, but it is clear that one objective in the safety arena is true, and that is 
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to keep the occupants of the motor coaches inside the vehicle. Speed limit 

requirements are set by the state. There are some states that have differentia: 

speed limits for cars and commercial vehicles. In 1995, the United State~ 

Congress repealed the national maximum speed limit of 55 miles per hour 

That left the standard up to the individual states to set speed limits. 

Interstate bus travel is extremely safe. Between 1993 and 1997 

there was approximately six bus occupant deaths per year. Buses were involve( 

in about 30 fatalities or 30 fatal crashes. When compared to the annual roac 

fatalities nationally of 42,000 highway deaths, it makes a very strong case that 

this industry is safe. However, safety initiatives are not to remain stagnant 

The Office of Motor Carriers, our state partners, other Federal agencies, anc 

the industry are working very hard toward the reduction of crashes. Tht: 

Secretary's mission for a crash-free environment is going to be accomplished 

No highway fatality is acceptable. We and all of our partners an 

working very hard to ensure that that comes to fruition. 

There were some comments earlier made ~bout the investigatiom 

done by our agencies. They are called compliance reviews, and whether or no1 

the. number or the frequency of them meets perception, a complianc;e revieV\ 

is a thorough investigation into the entire operation of a motor coach operatior 

or a trucking company. These are very thorough investigations and extreme!) 

time consuming. Something that may have been done over the course of thret 

days years ago might now take us more than a week or two given the new date 

and all of the technology that's been implemented. 

Crash rates have also come up. We've heard this discussion. NeV\ 

Jersey does lead the nation in doing motor coach inspections -- 670( 
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approximately last year. New York and New Jersey and Pennsylvania, our 

neighboring states, our rate is commensurate. We're about average. We are 

a little higher than the national average due to the diverse area we are in and 

the amount of truck travel and bus travel through our highways. 

The out-of-service rate for the motor co_ach industry is 

approximately for the vehicle 10 percent, for the driver 2 percent. In New 

Jersey, we're slightly higher. The New Jersey statistics are higher due to the 

technical proficiency of the State Inspectors, the State Police, the State 

Department of Transportation, and·the volume of commercial motor vehicle 

traffic. 

That concludes my statement. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Any questions from the Committee? (no 

response) 

I do have one question. We have a number of studies that have 

been given to us this morning. One in full from you folks from 1994 on speed 

limit differentials, and we've also have had others cited, and they seem to say 

different things. I wonder if there is anything since your 1994 study on speed 

differentials, and if there really has been a case made one way or the other? 

MR. ROTONDO: Speed limits, as I stated earlier, are up to the 

state. There are studies that the Department of Transportation in 

Washington, D.C., has conducted. That is not my agency. The Office of 

Motor Carriers is responsible for truck and bus safety, not setting speed limits. 

When Congress repealed that national speed limit of 55 mph, what they did 

was they, in tum, gave that to the states. It probably would not be wise if I 

commented on them. I'm not aware of their study. I have not read it. 
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SENATOR ALLEN: This study is from the U.S. Department o1 

Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. 

MR. ROTONDO: That's correct. 

SENATOR ALLEN: But you don't have any knowledge of that. 

MR. ROTONDO: No. That study is-- There are two portions 

actually three primary programs within the Federal Highway Administration 

This is Federal Aid, which is the portion that grants and helps build th<: 

highways and the bridges. There is the Office of Motor Carriers, who i~ 

responsible, as I stated earlier, for truck and bus safety, for regulations anc 

enforcement of those rules -- the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Rules anc 

Hazardous Materials Rules. And then there's the Federal Lands, which is f01 

the national lands and parks. 

SENATOR ALLEN: All right. We'll go to another arm to ge1 

further information then. 

Thank you. 

Any other questions? (no response) 

I will call Daniel O'Connell, the State Legislative Director of th( 

United Transportation Union next. 

SENATORALLEN: Mr. O'Connell, welcome. 

D A N I E L J. 0 ' C 0 N N E L L: Thank you. Good morning or gooc 

afternoon. 

Is this on? (referring to PA microphone) Am I on? 

SENATOR ALLEN: If the red light is on. 

MR. O'CONNELL: Now it's on. 
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My name is Dan O'Connell. I'm the State Legislative Director for 

the United Transportation Union. You're now receiving our testimony for the 

record, and in the interest of time, I won't read the statement, but would rather 

touch on a couple of the points that we'd like to bring to your attention. 

Accompanying me today is our Alternate Director, Mr. Ralph Styverson from 

Rockland Coach. 

Safety is an area of responsibility for the State Legislative Boards 

of the UTU across the country, and it's also an area of concern. We realize 

that we're here because of the recent accidents and fatalities, but we do want 

to make the point, as was made earlier today, that this is a safe industry. But 

we'd like us to take a look-- all of us, all of us that are involved -- at what we're 

doing that's right, and what we can do to make things better. 

In our statement, you'll see we focus on two areas: fatigue and 

regulatory oversight. Fatigue is an issue in all modes of transportation right 

now. And there's been a move in Washington to amend the hours of service 

that bus drivers can work. United Transportation Union opposes those 

changes. It has opposed them in the past, it will oppose them in the future. 

We've attached a statement from our Assistant General Counsel for your 

information. 

As far as regulatory oversight, we noted Congressman Franks's 

recent remarks about, perhaps, moving the jurisdiction of Office of Motor 

Carriers from DOT over to the Federal Highway Administration. We don't 

know whether that's proper or if there's a problem where the jurisdiction lies 

right now, but perhaps we should take a look at it and perhaps even take a look 
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at having State regulatory oversight along those guidelines to assist our bus 

drivers and our bus carriers. 

I guess in closing what we'd like to say is we' re here today. It was 

a very interesting hearing. I took quite a few notes. I got quite an extensive 

education here on bus operations in our state. The UTU stands ready to work 

with the Committee and with whomever to improve this industry to make -it 

better and to ensure its safety for not only the public, but for also our 

members. And if you'd like, I may be able to answer any questions, I'd be 

more than happy. 

SENATORALLEN: Thankyou. 

Any questions from the Committee? (no response) 

. Thank you very much. 

MR. O'CONNELL: Could I make one more statement? 

SENATORALLEN: Yes. 

MR. O'CONNELL: I noticed something when they talked about 

the refresher courses in Atlantic City. I noted, "Is that the only place that 

we're offering refresher courses?" Perhaps, we ought to take a look at doing 

something in other parts of the state. Our buses are obviously operating with 

more destinations than just AC. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Exactly right. I don't see Director Kamin 

here at this moment, but we'll pass that information on to him. 

MR. O'CONNELL: And there was one other thing. I was just 

passed a note this morning about so-called gypsy operators in the area of Fort 

Lee Bridge Plaza that operate from our state and into New York and into Port 

Authority. There's some question as to what regulations these people faU 
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under, as you were told today about commercial driver licenses for our 

operators, insurance and liability, and tax issues. We'd like the Committee to, 

perhaps, take a look at what kind of enforcement efforts are being done 

because we think a lot of this stuff is under the radar screen and could perhaps 

be impacting our bus carriers and our membership also. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Good point. We'll pass that on as well .. 

MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you. 

Senator Sacco, you have a comment. 

SENATOR SACCO: Yes. I have a statement from Congressman 

Bob Menendez, who is on the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure 

in the House. I'm going to enter this into the minutes. I'm not going to read 

the entire statement, but after calling for hearings and discovering what the 

problems are, his conclusion is, and I will quote him: 

"I believe the Federal government can play a positive role to 

prevent future bus accidents in New Jersey by moving oversight and regulation 

of bus travel from the United States Departmen~ of Transportation's Office of 

Motor Carriers to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. The 

Office of Motor Carriers is doing an insufficient job of inspecting buses. In 

fact, bus inspections declined from 10,000 inspections earlier in the decade to 

4500 last year, accounting for only 25 percent of all bus companies. And we 

need to make certain that we provide the funds necessary to rigidly enforce the 

laws we already have in place to promote the safety of bus travel. I look 

forward to working with the New Jersey State Senate and Assembly to make 

our roads and highways as safe as possible. Thank you." 
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SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you very much. 

I would now like to call Norman Littler, United Motorcoad1 

Association. 

CH AR LES N. LITTLER: Good morning. My name is Nom1 

Littler, and I'm the Vice-President of Government Affairs with the United 

Motorcoach Association. We have two other members from the Unitec 

Motorcoach Association here with us this morning, and we'd like to present a~ 

a panel, if possible. 

SENATORALLEN: That's fine. 

MR. LITTLER: I'll start off. First of all, we'd like to express om 

sincere appreciation to the New Jersey Senate Transportation Committee, the 

Chair, and to the honorable members of the Committee for allowing us tc 

speak this morning on behalf of nearly the 800 professional motor coacr 

company members of the United Motorcoach Association. UMA is a nationa: 

association based out of Alexandria, Virginia, across the river from Capitol Hill 

The motor coach industry recently made aware of the New J erse) 

Senate's interest in certain bus safety issues. And I will primarily speak to th( 

issue of seat belts this morning. 

On my immediate right is Mr. Stephen Sprague. Steve is om 

Chief Operating Officer. He is also the Executive Director of the Bus anc 

Motorcoach Research and Education Institute, and he will take any questiorn 

that you may have on some of the other related issues. 

On my extreme right is Mr. Godfrey Lebron. Mr. Lebron i~ 

Chairman of our Legislative and Regulatory Committee. He is also the owneJ 

of Paradise Travel, a smaller motor coach company based out of Elmont, Ne~ 
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York. He is an owner that travels through this area frequently. He has 

indicated he would be pleased to take any questions you may have relating to 

company owners and certain areas relating to scheduling or related issues. 

Now, the request that you've made to hold these hearings is not 

surprising given the nature of the recent tragic bus crashes, the emotion 

involved. And first of all, on behalf of the United Motorcoach Association and 

the entire industry, we wish to express our sincerest condolences to the families 

of the victims. 

I've heard it brought out more than once this morning that this is 

a safe industry. We will say yet again we believe that that is true. For the large 

part, this is a very safe industry. 

To get to the specific issue of seat belts, however, which has been 

coming up more and more often, I've had quite a lot of experience in this 

particular issue; and I'm hopeful that I can answer some of the questions that 

have been floating around, and I've heard posed this morning. The issue of 

whether motor coach-type buses should be equipped with seat belts is not new. 

It's an issue I've had experience with, and I have been employed in the 

commercial bus industry for over 20 ye~rs. Seventeen of those years employed 

with the largest motor coach manufacturer in North America, the Motorcoach 

Industries. I'm also a holder of --Associate and Risk Management designation 

from the Insurance Institute of America, so I have had hands-on investigative 

experience in major bus crashes, including one that I'm sure many people here 

were familiar with back in 1992 -- the sensational Golden Sons crash outside 

of Action Park in Vernon, New Jersey. 
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During my career, I have been called on by the National 

Transportation Safety Board on a number of occasions to assist in their 

investigations, including on-scene investigations, as I mentioned in the Golden 

Sons crash. Inevitably, the question whether passengers would have been 

provided enhanced protection if seat belts had been available arises. The 

problem that the regulatory enforcement and bus industry all face is that 

there's a lack of clear, compelling, empirical data either for or against the us-e 

of seat belts. As a matter of fact, a representative from the National Highway 

Traffic Safety Administration was recently quoted in the New Jersey 

Star-Ledger. He stated that NHTSA has expressly determined that there is no 

safety benefit provided by requiring buses to be equipped with seat belts This 

is the Federal agency responsible for setting all U.S. vehicle safety performance 

standards. 

I know that this has been their position and has been their 

position for many years. What is the justification for this position? Let's put 

commercial bus safety into perspective. And I think we've heard certain 

statistics brought out this morning. Again, we'll look at them not simply from 

the stats that apply to New Jersey, but to the national picture, and I have 

some, I think, more recent statistics that have been brought out. 

The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, the Federal 

Highway Administration, and the National Safety Council statistics all indicate 

that travel by bus is the safest mode of surface passenger transportation. In 

fact, it is equal to that of the school bus industry. Commercial buses account 

for over 28 billion passenger miles in 1996, the last year for which statistics are 

available. During that year, there were just two passenger deaths reported, and 
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I have a copy of the National Safety Council bus statistics with me if copies are 

requested or required. While this number appears to be very small when 

compared to the 42,000-plus annual highway deaths on the nation's road, it 

is one that is supported. Over the past 20 years, Federal data shows that 

between four and six commercial bus-passenger deaths occur on an annual 

basis. This equates to less than one-tenth of 1 percent of all fatalities that 

occur annually on the nation's highways. Stated differently, you are almost 

100 times more likely to be fatally injured while driving in a passenger car than 

in a motor coach. 

Secondly, the installation of seat belts appears on the surface to be 

a relatively simply procedure. They have been employed in passenger vehicles 

for over 30 years, and no one argues that when they are employed in this 

manner they do save lives. However, buses and passenger cars are not the sa.me 

when it comes to a collision. Passenger vehicles are lighter and seat far fewer 

persons than a commercial bus. The National Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration requires seat belts in passenger vehicles because, given the high 

crash forces encountered in serious collisions, they have been found to provide 

the greatest level of protection to the vehicle passenger. NHTSA has also 

determined that because of the large numbers of passenge~s that a bus carries 

and the much lower crash forces produced in most highway crashes, the 

compartmentalization of the passenger compartment is the most effective 

means of providing protection in the majority of crash situations. 

This is why NHTSA expressed its willingness to preempt the state 

of New York in 1992, under the provisions of the Supremacy Clause of the 

Constitution, when it attempted to legislatively mandate seat belts into 
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commercial buses. Congress specifically designated the U.S. Department of 

Transportation as the agency responsible for promulgation of motor vehicle 

safety performance standards when it passed the National Highway Traffic and 

Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966. In Section 30103, "Relationship to othe1 

laws," Congress addressed the issue of preemption over states by the f ollowin~ 

language: "When a motor vehicle standard is in effect under this chapter,- 2 

state or a political subdivision of a state may prescribe or continue in effect --2 

standard applicable to the same aspect of performance of a motor vehicle 01 

motor vehicle equipment only if the standard is identical to the standard 

prescribed under this chapter. However, the United States government, 2 

state, or a political subdivision of a state may prescribe a standard for a mot01 

vehicle or motor vehicle equipment obtained for its own use that imposes 2 

higher performance requirement than that required by the otherwise applicable 

standard under this chapter." 

Simply put, a state is prohibited from mandating belts or any othe1 

safety system or device regulated by NHTSA if the vehicle is not direct!) 

owned or operated or funded by the state. And this throws us back to tht 

question of NHTSA and its posi_tion with respect to seat belts in buses. 

Lastly, the National Transportation Safety Board is currently ir 

the final stages of completing a three-year study on bus crashworthiness anc 

passenger protection. During their investigation, the issue of seat belts anc 

other passenger protection options were reviewed in great detail. Sixteer 

expert witnesses from around the world were assembled and questioned witl 

respect to the best means of protecting passengers in a range of crash scenarios 
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As one of those witnesses, I had the opportunity to outline the same issues that 

I bring before you this morning. 

During the NTSB hearing, it became quickly clear that no 

empirical crash data is available, let alone data that would either justify or 

refute the benefits of installing seat belts in buses. Real-world crash data is so 

sparse that no meaningful conclusions can be drawn without the risk of 

potentially placing the public at increased risk. It is anticipated, however, that 

the NTSB in its conclusions and recommendations may call on the National 

Highway Traffic Safety Administration to conduct crash testing on commercial 

buses to determine if there are any public benefits to be gained by 

incorporating passenger protection enhancements, of which seat belts are one 

option. It is expected that the NTSB report will be adopted and published 

sometime toward the end of either this month or next month. 

With respect to this Committee's examination of seat belt use in 

motor coach-type buses, I have attached a number of documents to my 

testimony that may be useful in your deliberations. These iI.1dude letters from 

NHTSA refuting the usefulness of belts, and the~r refusal to provide voluntary 

installation guidelines to the industry including manufacturers. And that 

would be anybody voluntarily wishing to install these. They will not provide 

·guidance. Also, a copy of their letter stating their legal opinion with respect to 

preemption. I have also included a copy of supplemental comments to the 

NTSB following a public hearing they held last summer in bus crash 

worthiness. These comments examine the issues relating to the lack of data 

and the technical problems relating to the vehicle structure. 
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This concludes my statement, and I'll be happy to take any 

questions on this. I will pass this over now to other members of this panel to 

examine some of the other issues that you've detailed this morning. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. 

Yes, please. 

STEPHEN G. SPRAGUE: My name is Steve Spr~gue, and Tm 
Chief Operating Officer of the United Motorcoach Association; and I also have 

a second title which is Executive Director of the brand-new Bus and 

Motorcoach Research and Education Institute formed in the state of Virgini2 

in 1997. We've begun applying programs and analyzing data that we think ha~ 

been missing from this industry for a long time. One thing that I can tell you: 

though, is that the motor coach industry of professionals is extremely proud oJ 

its safety record and its service record. There is a very tragic irony in ~he fact 

that these recent mishaps have occurred in a state which, frankly, we as ar 

industry hold out as an example of strong cooperative enforcement. 

The State of New Jersey has for a long time led the way in tht: 

number of inspections done, in the thoroughness of the inspections done, anc 

it was not many years ago, I recall, that our Association actively involved itselJ 

when the Safety Inspection Program was being threatened, as I recall, b) 

budget cuts. We stepped in and supported that very ambitiously. We havt 

also stepped in and recommended to a number of operators from around tht 

country that if they wanted a thorough inspection, they should drive througl 

the State of New Jersey. That has actively taken place a number of times 

Because of some of the requirements of your neighboring state of New York 

it was advantageous where operators in states where no inspections take place 
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Yes, there are still those states. Twenty-four states still have no annual 

requirement for commercial bus inspections. 

We invite you on behalf of the responsible motor coach 

community to encourage every state to ambitiously pursue at least an annual 

inspection of the level that the State of New Jersey and the Federal government 

require. Where those operators had no proof of inspection, we recommended 

that they drive through the State of New Jersey and solicit an inspection from 

your teams. As such, it is tragic irony. However, there are problems in the 

inspection numbers. They are numbers only. The responsible motor coach 

community wants everyone reviewed equally. Small operators and large 

operators are equally susceptible to inspection at roadside. They are not all, 

because of geography, equally susceptible to inspections at their terminals. But 

there has been in our belief and in the statistics presented to us through the 

Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance, which you heard of earlier today -- there 

has been much too much concentration on the hardware. Frankly,.responsible 

motor coach operators will prepare their vehicles. They will maintain their 

vehicles, whether or not there are inspection requirements. But once that 

vehicle is out of their shop, once it's on the road, as much trust as we have in 

the driver corps, it is the driver in the human element which in most 

circumstances leads to problems. 

CVSA' s numbers have indicated that as much as 9 5 percent of the 

commercial vehicle accidents -- that's motor coach and truck alike -- are human 

error problems. Less than 5 percent of the commercial vehicle accidents in the 

United States are caused by actual mechanical errors. There has been a great 

deal of concentration on hardware because hardware is the easy thing to find. 
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Hardware inspections consume three to four times as much as drive1 

inspections. As a recommendation, I believe, from United Motorcoach 

Association, we would suggest that if the State of New Jersey wishes to improve 

highway safety, they spend less time inspecting hardware, give grea~e1 

reliability to the fact that responsible operators will prepare the hardware 

properly, and spend more time inspecting drivers and drivers records alon~ 

route. 

Drivers are the human element. Just as not everybody can get 2 

sound system right, not everybody can have a good day on the road. We have 

strongly encouraged, and this is where the Institute comes in, greater trainin~ 

capabilities, refresher training for drivers. It's with some pride I can say tha1 

the Motorcoach Institute has been in contact with South Jersey 

Transportation. We applaud the refresher courses that have been given in 

Atlantic City, and the Institute has commissioned a course of study -- actually 

a three-hour refresher course -- to be prepared right now for presentation to the 

South Jersey Transportation Authority. 

It's our hope that through some of the cooperative agreements tha1 

we have already discussed that the community can help provide sites. WeT 

provide instructors and courses of instruction, and we would be· happy to havt 

everyone in the industry participate in that. From what we've seen, th<: 

community is extremely willing to step up to the plate and pay for whateve1 

instructions are necessary and to help solicit the drivers to those courses. 

We've also suggested to them that they be scheduled on a regula1 

basis, if not quarterly, certainly semiannually. We'd like to see it done on c 

monthly basis, and we'd like it to be free to the drivers. We'd also like tc 
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encourage other drivers to tag along. Let's remember that every time a driver 

leaves the garage he is on a time clock. The hours of service rules that are in 

place right now allows certain amount of time to be driving and a total amount 

of time on duty. While the driver attends the training course, he'll be 

considered on duty. If an off-duty driver tags along on the coach and attends 

the courses and his entire duty time for that day is while he's attending those 

courses, we see that as a much more feasible way of reaching more and more 

drivers. We are stunned with the numbers of drivers who have attended the 

courses so far -- the refresher courses so far -- only because the notification 

period was so short-.- I think that says a great deal about the motor coach 

community, certainly the local motor coach community, and the Atlantic City 

Bus Owner's Association for bringing those numbers out. 

A couple of other recommendations, I think, though, that from the 

conversations that we've heard today we would like to leave with you from a 

national perspective, and certainly we'd like to leave you with beliefs that you 

could tum to us at any time, so take advantage, if we can do such, give the 

experiences of other states and localities, other organizations around the 

country who have faced some of these questions. 

The question of a speed differential, I think, is a very dangerous 

one. Both Norm and I participated in the National Transportation Safety 

Board hearing on bus crashworthiness in August of last year or July of last year. 

One of the comments that we heard from panelists from Europe is that the 

severity and the number of motor coach accidents in Europe was much greater 

than those in the United States. And they attributed the reasons to a 

sometimes vast speed differential. The severity of crash avoidance techniques 
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at a much greater difference in speed in Europe was attributable for many ol 

the accidents there and most of the fatal accidents and rollover accidents. We 

would encourage you to look very carefully at a speed differential if you put 

that on your list of things to look at. 

Maybe the last thing that I'd like to suggest to you is an are2 

where the state and the communities can become very active, and- that is tc 

encourage your riders, your consumers, and your destinations to share tht 

message of importance of safety of operators. I don't care how many dollan 

the State of New Jersey or the Federal government has, you will never hin 

enough enforcers to purify the roads of fatal accidents. The only way bad 

operators, unsafe operators will be taken off the roads is if the buyers refuse tc 

patronize them. Share consumer safety tips, buying tips, and safety record~ 

liberally and encourage everyone who gets on a motor coach destine~ for Ne" 

Jersey or through New Jersey to check on the safety of that company first. I1 

makes a difference. 

Safety costs money.- An unreputable motor coach operator can pu1 

a new paint job on the bus rather than new brakes in the bus. Many times th( 

passenger won't know the difference. He can keep the money in his pocket OJ 

he can put it back into the vehicle. A rider happily SQmetimes is going to catd 

a problem before the coach leaves. But what the reputable motor coad 

operation community wants, frankly, is to have everyone carry the safet) 

standards that we do. 

Our organization has a W eh site where consumer tips are listed 

where there are links to the safety ratings systems which exist in the country 

today, and certainly, we want to be part of the answer. The answer is gooc 
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consumer safety. Using a line from the commercials of past, "An informed 

consumer is the best buyer." That's one place the State can be involved. It's 

one place -- certainly Atlantic City -- can lead. 

Godfrey. 

G 0 D F R E Y L E B R 0 N: Thank you. Once again, on behalf of the 

United Motorcoach and my company, I want to express deepest regrets for the 

tragedies that happened around Christmas. 

There's one thing that I want to make sure that everyone in this 

room understands. Safety is a culture. I don't care how many regulations we 

pass, and I'm in a state -- the state of New York -- which we have an inspection 

criteria that mirrors yours, and they don't allow us to do self-inspection. We 

have the Article 1 9 A law that the state informs us every time a driver gets a 

violation. We' re forced to have examiners constantly check on our drivers. All 

of this is good, but if the company itself doesn't instill safety as a culture, 

everything that we're about to do is (indiscernible). As a small-business owner, 

I usually hear that, "Well, it's the small operators' problems." 

But there are two types of carriers. There are carriers that care, 

and then there are carriers that are looking to make a quick buck. Paradise is 

celebrating its 12th year right now, and believe me, there's not a quick dollar 

in this industry. My biggest investment if you look at the balance sheet would 

appear to be equipment. We just ordered two coaches that are going to cost 

us close to $1 million, but the true investment is in my people. The accidents 

that occur, everyone is always going to look at speed, a factor of, is there 

something wrong with the vehicle? 

77 



Driving a motor coach is something that requires a tremendom 

amount of responsibility. If you don't have a responsible person behind th( 

wheel with a responsible attitude and a positive one, there is no regulation tha1 

you're going to be able to pass that's going to help ensure that person is at hi~ 

best when he comes in to perform every day. That doesn't mean that I say : 

don't believe in regulations. I mean, there are certain things that I do tha: 

both Federal and state regulations help in my (indiscernible). But when a stat( 

inspector inspects my vehicle, we don't do anything special for that coach fo: 

that day. The coach is presented to him -- sure, it's gone over -- but every da) 

the vehicle has to be looked at. It's a culture that the entire organization ha: 

to have from the person who cleans the vehicle, to the person who operates th( 

vehicle, the mechanic who repairs the vehicle. One of the things that we neec 

to keep in mind, as Stephen had mentioned, is consumers have to know. 

One of my biggest problems is with school districts, governments 

everything is bid. They want to chop, chop, chop. If an employee isn't gettin~ 

proper compensation, part of that culture -- one of the things that we do-

Most Atlantic City runs, the people pay a flat rate for, so automatically a drive 

thinks, "Well, I've got to come in at six. I've got to pick up my passengers 

I've got to drive to Atlantic City." And in my instance, they have to get out o 

New York. I didn't do that this morning. I spent the night in Edison, Nev 

Jersey, so I could have that hour and a half just to get to this beautiful state 

But now automatically, what do you think is going through this individual' 

mind? Now, he gets to Atlantic City, and there's a backup. There's l~ 

coaches there. So whether it's at the beginning of the day, at the end of th1 

day, your best person is going to be prone to try to rush it a little bit. Part o 
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that culture and one of the things that we do, we evaluate our drivers on a 

quarterly basis. Their bonus program isn't one that it's not -- look at it at the 

end of the year, as even New York state has us do, and it helps keep us in tune. 

The master driver concept. It gets back to the people instilling take your time, 

relax. 

Unfortunately, you've got bad people in your employ, _and then, 

you can also have bad clients. There are certain businesses that you have to be 

careful of. We'll get calls for someone who's going to want a trip that's going 

to travel through the night, and okay, that business you'll accept. You have to 

watch how you schedule it, but you have to make sure that they're not going 

to sit there and try to lure your driver into saving dollars at the other end 

because, "Well, you know, you're supposed to sleep eight hours, but if you can 

get us in six, I'll give you $50." Well, they realize in my business should this 

be discovered, they're gone. They're out a good job where they get benefits, 

vacation pay, and holidays, and this means something. 

I think it's very important that we look at that aspect and try not 

to penalize the many both large and small carriers that do a good job and make 

sure that we all understand. Yes, the equipment-- it's important. There's such 

a learning curve right now that also inspectors have got to constantly be 

retrained, but the focus has to be on the people. 

Are there any questions? I would be more than happy to answer. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you for your information. I agree 

with you that core competency of any business really is their people, so I 

completely understand. 

Senator Allen. 
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SENATOR ALLEN: Two very brief questions. The first is, would 

mandatory refresher courses be a positive thing? 

MR. SPRAGUE: It's entirely possible whether mandatory can: 

indeed, be mandatory as a question not for us to decide. Each state because 

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations are imposed and the state receive5 

the Motor Carrier Safety Assistance Program funds in return -- each state'~ 

requirements of its resident drivers maybe somewhat unique as long as they fi1 

into the big picture. 

As Godfrey has mentioned, New York state's l 9A Program, which 

is a bus driver certification program, has been proven to be unenforceable in 

interstate commerce, which means that you can only require your resident 

drivers to take that kind of course. We truly believe that more available 

training will be used by the drivers. It need not be mandatory. And there an 

certain periods in a driver's career when he or she is more susceptible to feelin~ 

smug and confident and less attentive in a number of years. Early drivers anc 

late drivers are generally your best than those with five, six, seven years oJ 

experience sometimes or simply forgetting some of the basics. So refreshe1 

training availability is the key to it I believe, not necessary a mandate. 

SENATORALLEN: Thankyou. 

The other brief question I have is you mentioned 24 states that de 

not inspect at all. I wonder if you could provide a list of those states to us. 

MR. SPRAGUE: I would certainly be happy to provide that. Tht 

Office of Motor Carriers is responsible for certifying a state's inspectior 

standards, whatever those are, as the equivalent of the Federal standard. Wt 

know that 24 states have not submitted their inspection requirements. Somt 
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have no inspection requirements. Those operators in those states, by the way, 

are allowed to self-certify, to self-inspect their vehicles under a Federal Motor 

Carrier Safety Regulation, which we have suggested be removed for a number 

of--

SENATOR ALLEN: Do you know if looking at national statistics 

those carriers that have more accidents based on hardware come from states 

that don't inspect? 

MR. SPRAGUE: It's an unfortunate fact of life that national 

statistics are vague and difficult to find in many cases. I would challenge you 

to find a reliable definition of a: bus in the Federal system that we could all 

agree on. Unfortunately, there are many identifications in Federal standards 

and particularly at roadside enforcement points trucks, but a bus seems to be 

a bus is a bus is a bus. It can be a school bus. It can be a different body style 

or motor coach, a transit bus. All of which are different body styles. It can be 

a motor coach which is in private service and not commercial service. 

Just as an aside, I heard earlier that some of the regulations being 

proposed might apply to commercial vehicles but not to private and 

recreational vehicles. Allow me to suggest that if someone outfits a commercial 

motor coach as a private vehicle, it still weighs the same a.mount and it takes 

up the same space in traffic; and frankly, if it is a nonprofessional operator 

behind the wheel, it might bear greater inspection. 

SENATORALLEN: Thank.you. 

MR. SPRAGUE: We'll provide you that list. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you very much for your information. 

We appreciate you taking the time to share it with the Committee. 
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MR. SPRAGUE: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Mr. Robert J. Strutton, is it? Mr. Strutton 

please. 

There are two additional people beyond Mr. Strutton. 

R 0 BERT ·J. STRUT T 0 N: After what I heard this morning,: 

think I got in over my head here. 

SENATOR CIESLA: I'm sorry. 

MR. STRUTTON: I said, after what else I've heard this morning 

I think I might be over my head. 

Distinguished members of the Committee, ladies and gentlemen 

my name is Robert J. Strutton. I live in Hazlet in Monmouth County, NeV1 

Jersey. I work for several bus companies and have driven buses since 1969. Ir 

addition, I am a retired suburban municipal police officer. Since 1995, l'v< 

also been a trainer with various bus companies that I've worked for. I cam< 

here as an individual, not to represent any group, any company, merely t< 

relate some incidences, to make some comments in general about the drive 

point of view. 

It's my understanding these hearings have been called because o 

a series of accidents that occurred over the last two months, all of which I have 

become very well familiar with. I am concerned that it appears drivers wer1 

not initially considered to take part in this forum, and I think the drivers a 

this point should have a voice in these hearings. 

Bus drivers are taking a bashing in the press and other media as; 

result of these collisions. In one instance, a report of a bus accident for whid 

the driver had no control over the event started by saying, "Another bu 
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accident." This automatically raises the flags and the people who are listening 

to this media are not hearing the rest of the story. 

I do not assume to defend bus drivers in this forum. There are 

some very, very bad bus drivers out there. I have had personal experiences with 

several of them as a trainer. It is unfortunate now that the good are being 

made to bear responsibility for the few who were not good bus drivers. In 30 
years of driving, I've met many good professional, conscientious drivers and 

some bad. Most of us drive for a living, not because we can't get a real job, but 

because we love the work, the freedom, and the contact with people that it 

provides. Unfortunately, most of these good drivers have moved on to other 

endeavors. 

All bus drivers know they are required to adhere to New Jersey 

Title 39 traffic laws as well as New Jersey POC and DOT regulations. In 

addition, Federal regulations covered in 49 CPR concerning operation of a 

commercial motor vehicle, hours of service, vehicle equipment and inspection, 

and controlled substance regulations. Add to this, the req~ired interpersonal 

relations skills, scheduling mandates, and the fac~ that we are constantly under 

pressure dealing with all types of people under frequently difficult situations 

usually in high-density traffic situations, I believe we already have more than 

·enough regulation. The fact is the public should be impressed that there are 

not more serious accidents. 

Bus transportation is about the safest method of travel currently 

available. The fact is that we must look at each situation in terms of disaster 

only because of numbers of people involved. In terms of incidents, bus drivers 

are by far the safest drivers on the road. 
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I worked for three of the companies that have had collisions in the 

past two months. I've also worked for other companies that do not have neai 

the accident rates of the three. I have been an instructor for two of thest: 

companies. My personal experience is that the driver violation and compan) 

accident experience is directly in proportion to how t~e company treats it~ 

drivers. 

When I began driving buses in 1969, drivers were expected fr 

prove themselves before gaining increased responsibility. Usually, one wa~ 

assigned the worst of the available equipment and the least desirable wor1 

assignments. One either developed his skills as a driver and agent of tht 

company, or he didn't enjoy the benefits of higher paying assignments, bette1 

equipment, or advancement in the company. In short, he didn't last. Thest 

policies were in effect and effective in assuring a safe driving history for tht 

driver and his company, and the bus industry came into its own as tht 

companies with the best services and drivers grew. 

With the combined advent of deregulation in Atlantic Cit) 

casinos, anyone and everyone who could secure a contract was able to purchast 

equipment and commence operations. There are so many small companie~ 

now that competition for business has demanded established companie~ 

reexamine their rate schedules and operating expenses. This has resulted in tht 

stagnation of economic reward for their drivers. Coupled with an attitude tha1 

drivers are an inexhaustible pool of lower-class, blue-collar workers, there i~ 

little wonder that the best of them move on or out of the industry. 

The bus companies of this region differ tremendously in thei: 

operating philosophies, and the safety records of each reflect the value the) 
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place on their drivers. It appears that the larger the company, the less respect 

for the driver, and the higher the loss rate, in this one, the largest of them have 

difficulty providing adequate service for their customers. Some companies 

habitually fail to maintain their buses in satisfactory condition, as 

demonstrated by numbers of road failures they experience. Despite specific 

regulations concerning the keeping of records, there is no uniformity in tne 

recording devices used. 

Of the three companies that I have been employed, all have 

different inspection report forums. Despite the known deficiencies of 

maintenance programs, the buses almost always seem to pass inspections. 

What kind of impression should a driver assume when this happens? What is 

his incentive to do the right thing? I have seen buses refused by drivers 

reassigned after their driver left the property. I have seen unfavorable defect 

reports disappear. Drivers are routinely told by dispatchers that they are 

required to make out logs in favor of the company rather than according to 

actual experience. Truckers are alleged to keep two logs. Bus drivers are less 

resourceful pursuing great works of fiction for the benefit of their employer. 

Reports in the media of drivers working 10 hours for $80 are not 

exaggerations. They are constantly abused by their superiors for attempting to 

operate within the law, trying to provide contact with their families, 

maintaining homes and families, or even their own health. 

Of the three companies of which I have been employed, none 

permit vacations between Memorial Day and Labor Day when they can spend 

time with their children. We're not permitted weekends off and, frequently, 

are required to work seven days a week. We understand the nature of the 
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business and accept it within reason. Commuter companies claim ar 

eight-hour day, but these are split shifts between which drivers are generall) 

stuck away from home. 

A typical trip to Atlantic City takes two hours and fifteen minute~ 

from New York. Upon arrival, they unload and must proceed to a parkin! 

facility usually away from the city's center. For instance, one company park~ 

their buses 20 minutes outside of Atlantic City. The required stay in Atlanti< 

City is usually six hours. No New Jersey or New York company authorizes tht 

driver to go to bed during this time, so rest would be at the driver's expense 

As a result, they often nap in the bus. Has anybody ever tried to sleep on a bm 

seat? It's not easy. More often, they hang out with other drivers, go for meals 

or return to Atlantic City. 

The scenario I just described takes 10 and a half hours. This doe~ 

not take into account reporting time to his terminal, travel time to the picku1 

point, waiting time for the group, which never leaves on time, and the 

equivalent on the return trip. It is rare that the actual _working time is less tha1 

10 to 12 hours, not including the 6-hour~ait in between. The result is usuall~ 

a minimum wage or less, as most companies pay a flat rate for thjs type o 

work. When drivers complain about how they are paid, they are told bu 

companies do not come under wage and hour laws concerning overtime anc 

minimum wage. Historically, laborers have always tried to minimize the hour 

worked when a flat rate is involved. Drivers use speed to do this. 

There is great inequity in the manner in which promotions au 

made. Drivers who display increasing proficiency in their skills are relegate< 

to a life behind the wheel, while the incompetent are raised to higher levels 
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Drivers who try to balance their personal and work lives never get an 

opportunity to advance, and driver's who insist upon staying legal are deprived 

of the best assignments and equipment. As the bus companies grow larger, 

they accept more and more work orders. Drivers are often pressed into service 

for 15 hours of actual work. 

DOT regulations currently allow a driver to log off duty at 

destination points, and the companies try frequently to use this to their 

advantage. It's not uncommon for a driver to take 20 to 24 hours to complete 

15 hours of on-duty service. 

Several New Jersey companies will take orders as long as the phone 

rings, and terminal managers are not permitted to refuse work, regardless of 

their staffing ability. This places an undue burden on the driver who is 

required to take multiple assignments in a day. Wages are set to prevent ~he 

driver from balking at these demands in order to make a living. 

It has been my experience that most bus accidents are the result 

of driver fatigue. Despite the regulations, no one can work 15 hours a day 

consistently without burnout. The best drivers do not stay with any one 

company for any length of time, instead going where they can make the most 

money in the shortest time. As a result, companies are populated by less 

conscientious drivers who cannot move around with the same ease. This does 

increase the accident experience of the larger companies as a matter of 

averages. 

Most of the training resources, publications, and programs for 

commercial drivers are directed at the trucking industry. We sometimes feel 

ignored in our need for industry unity. Virtually, all bus publications, 
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organizations, etc., are for the benefit of owners and company managers 

There are very few outlets outside of the Internet to address the needs of bm 

drivers. 

Every state requires driving instructors to be licensed. In thi~ 

industry, there's no standard for driver trainers acting within the company tc 

train drivers nor are there any standards for what should make up a drive: 

training program. The worst training programs are the driving schools licensee 

by the states, who are only interested in obtaining a license for their client. 

As a trainer, it was my experience that anyone coming to us fron 

a drivers school had to be taught basic driving fundamentals before we coulc 

even put them in a bus. Yet, they possess a license that if able to secun 

employment would have very little besides fortune to keep them accident free 

Not only do most companies have in their employ as safety managers anc 

trainers people with little or no driving experience, I have been witness anc 

victim of companies dismissing safety and training personnel to employ person: 

without driving experience. 

I mentioned earlier that once bus drivers were required to worl 

their way into better assignme~ts and equipment. Now, it is the practice it 

some companies to give the choice as to newer drivers in the hope of sealinJ 

their loyalty to the company. This has had a profound effect on the attitude 

and professionalism of the drivers. New drivers shortly believe that they an 

in the top of their trade and, though untried, adopt the attitude that they ca1 

do nothing wrong and are surprised when they do. Discipline is arbitrar: 

according to the season or the individual driver. There is no longer in thi 

business anything to aspire to. 
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Whenever a bus has an accident, road failure, inspection failure, 

or hours of service violation, the driver is held responsible. It's never taken 

into consideration the probability depending on the season that he was coerced 

into working the hours or taking the vehicle on threat of his livelihood. The 

ones who usually fall victim to this are the same ones who would have a 

difficult time finding other satisfactory employment and least likely to be able 

to afford the citation. In every major city in North America, law enforcement 

and bus drivers are constantly at odds. 

In Washington, D.C., for instance, while there are a few parking 

spaces for buses, none are in close proximity to the attractions, hotels. 

Frequently, drivers are ticketed in the process of loading their buses. We are 

chased from place to place; and when we do manage to find standing or 

parking room, we often find DOT inspectors waiting for us there. It seems the 

states want the business but also value the added benefit of not having buses 

there or, at best, preying on the drivers. Rarely is there adequate 

accommodation for the buses that provide the revenue resource. What are we 

supposed to do? 

New laws are not needed. A closer monitoring of bus company 

operations with appropriate sanctions to both companies and drivers would 

better serve the public. Standards for training and improving the skills of the 

workforce, a complete and total professionalization of the industry, would be 

my view of correcting the current problems .. 

Thank you for giving me this opportunity to speak with you, and 

are there any questions? 
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SENATOR CIESLA: Bob, thank you for your testimony. I thinl< 

that your recommendation is consistent with some of the things that have beer 

said before with respect to establishing a regulatory group to monitor existin~ 

regulations, so your testimony certainly underscores that recommendation.-

Are there any questions? (no response) 

Thank you very much. 

MR. STRUTTON: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: We have two additional individuals. Joshuc: 

N. Bennett from the Atlantic City Bus Operator's Association, and I'm goin! 

to ask that Pete Pantuso also come up at the same time. 

Thank you. 

J 0 SHU A N. BENNETT: I would also ask, Senators, to allow m( 

to have with me Mr. Ron Waller, who is a Vice President of Prevost Car, a brn 

manufacturing company. He has also represented other manufacturers in th< 

past selling used and new buses as well. Peter Pantuso is the President of th< 

American Bus Association located in Washington, D.C., and I'm Joshm 

Bennett, the President of the Atlantic City Bus Operator's Association. 

Our Association was established in I 9 81. Our mission is t< 

promote safe and enjoyable travel by motor coach to the casinos located iI 

Atlantic City, the No. I destination in New Jersey. We presently have, a 

membership, over 70 commercial motor coach operators, operating over 200( 

buses. We receive very good support from the Atlantic City casinos. 

I am also President of Capitol Trailways of Harrisburg 

Pennsylvania. I have been involved in the operation of various intercity bu 

companies for nearly 30 years. My highest priority has always been to assur1 
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traveling public a safe journey. As evidence of my advocacy and as a result of 

the efforts of my management and drivers, our company has one of the safest 

records in the industry. That's according to our insurance company and the 

audits that we receive from the Federal and State governments on an annual 

basis. 

I am here today to tell you that the commercial motor coach 

industry is one of the safest forms of transportation available to the traveling 

public. And having heard everyone else say the same thing, it sounds so 

redundant, but it is something that I am very proud of. To bolster that 

statement, I recently read a quote in an article in USA Today newspaper on 

Thursday, February 4, 1999. According to Steve Barber, Coordinator of the 

Federal Department of Transportation's National Motorcoach Program, he was 

quoted as saying, "Interstate bus safety is very good." He further stated, "The 

frequency of bus accidents occurring in 1998 was an anomaly." An anomaly 

is defined as a irregularity, something abnormal, not a trend. I do. not believe 

the frequency of accidents involving buses in the State of New Jersey recently 

was anything more than an anomaly. I am here to tell you today the owners 

and drivers of commercial buses operating into and within the State of New 

Jersey have in the past and will in the future do everything in their power to 

prevent bus-related accidents. 

In evidence of our veracity, ACBOA, in coordination with South 

Jersey Transportation Authority, held four bus driver safety refresher seminars 

in Atlantic City, New Jersey, during the month of January. Over 1000 drivers 

and other attendees participated in the three-hour seminars. You've heard 

various statements from the Director of the South Jersey Transportation 
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Authority and other members who attended these seminars on how well they 

were received. I can tell you that we had very little time to put these together; 

and we were very pleased with the number of bus drivers that arrived. We 

were very pleased with their interest and comments. I can tell you that we 

intend to continue to promote these refresher programs. 

I have sp9ken recently with Jim Crawford, the .Executive Directo1 

of the South Jersey Transportation Authority, and have expressed my 

enthusiasm regarding the continuation of these programs. I've heard othe1 

representatives state that they will continue to be involved in these. I think it'~ 

a great opportunity to continue to focus our drivers and management of bm 

companies on the essence of driving safety. 

I'm trying to deviate a little bit from my prepared statement 

because of the time. I will state that in accordance with Federal Motor Carrie1 

Regulation 390.3 and various sections, "Every employer shall be knowledgeablt: 

of and comply with all regulations contained in the subchapter, which an 

applicable to the motor carrier's operations. Every driver and employee shal 

be instructed regarding and shall comply with all applicable regulatiorn 

contained in the subchapter. Every driver can, by reason of experience 

training, or both, safely operate the type of commercial vehicle he or sht 

drives." In my opinion, the training of a driver begins at the company. It i~ 

the company's responsibility to assure the traveling public that the drivers an 

well trained and cognizant of the safe driving on the highways in America anc 

New Jersey. 

The commercial bus industry is heavily regulated. You've hearc 

much testimony regarding that. Your rules, as been repeated heretofore, an 
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stricter that many other states' rules. I will say in Pennsylvania we are under 

the same kinds of regulations. Our bus companies are audited from time to 

time regarding the driver's logs, the driver's physicals, buses, bus safety. I 

recently went through a Department of Defense audit. It's been 13 months 

since my last audit of our company and continue to receive the highest rating 

in the industry. We welcome these audits as an opportunity to find _any 

deficiencies that might occur within our company so that we may correct them. 

And it also gives us an opportunity to find out how well our employees do their 

jobs. 

One of the things that I must remind everyone is that every year 

every bus company must review the motor vehicle records of their bus drivers 

for any accidents or violations that may occur. Many bus companies increase 

that review to quarterly, and I think that's a great opportunity to call out the 

drivers that are not professionals. 

We discussed here today roadside inspections. New Jersey does 

have a very complex and sophisticated program of roadside inspections. My 

company has had a number of roadside inspections. One of the 

recommendations that I will repeat is_ that I believe that it is better to have 

these inspections occurring at the parking lots in Atlantic City rather than on 

the roadside for a number of reasons. It is somewhat unsafe to have the 

vehicles pulling off the highway. I've seen our buses pulling off right after the 

interchange. It does create some traffic congestion. The passengers need not 

be inconvenienced during the inspection. They should be at their destination 

to enjoy their day. If there's any problems with the bus that is a little more 

difficult to deal with, a vehicle that's been red tagged at a roadside inspection, 
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it would be easier to deal with the vehicle, red tagged, at a parking lot. And as 

Executive Director of the South Jersey Transportation Authority stated, there 

are methods by which we can assure that bus companies -- the buses an: 

inspected while in Atlantic City. And I think the program has been pretty 

effective. 

I recently did a study of the various major arteries in New Jerse) 

to determine whether or not there was any perceptible increase in accident~ 

involving buses. My study has shown that the regard to the New Jerse) 

Turnpike and the Garden State Parkway, the Atlantic City Expressway that tht 

number of bus accidents occurring are consistent with traffic volume increase~ 

and are very small. Somewhere in the neighborhood of 1.5 percent to ~ 

percent of all accidents are bus related. 

You've already heard testimony regarding the fact that there an 

very few fatalities as a result of bus accidents and very few occupant fatalitie: 

involved in bus accidents. One fatality is too many, bµt certainly thes( 

accidents do not appear to present a trend of increased commercial bu: 

accidents over the prior years, nor do the statistics represent any reason t< 

believe that travel by bus is dangerous. Certainly there are more fatalitie, 

occurring as a result of travel by automobile and truck. I will remind you tha 

one busload of passengers is equal to 22 cars on the highway. Every bus doe 

reduce congestion on the highway. There are over 400,000 buses traveling t< 

Atlantic City alone. You can multiply 22 times 400,000. You can see tha 

there's a substantial reduction in vehicular traffic as a result of the buses. 

The fatalities that occurred on the Garden State Parkway in lat 

December 1998 certainly have been a wake-up call to the commercial bu 
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industry. Commercial bus operators and drivers must focus on what can 

happen is the rules of safe driving an~ ignored or abused. It is my position, the 

average bus driver is a careful, considerate, and professional commercial motor 

vehicle operator. He is aware of the inherent dangers, and he is aware of his 

or her responsibilities to the traveling public. Every driver I've met 

understands that responsibility and understands the laws governing _the 

operation of commercial motor vehicles. They want to operate the vehicles in 

accordance to the laws, having the knowledge gained in over-the-road 

experience and in safety training programs such as those recently offered by 

South Jersey Transit Authority. 

I will interject comments regarding the previous witness. I don't 

know that he represents the majority of drivers insofar as his views are 

concerned. Certainly in my 30 years of involvement with the bus industry, I 

have met very, very professional drivers. I certainly have been involved with 

some that are not professional. They don't last in this bus industry. Every bus 

company when hiring a driver must go through a certain reasonable amount of 

prior investigation of that perspective employee's prior employment. It 

requires a review of the MVRs in a state. The commercial driver's license has 

reduced the potential for multiple driver licenses and has been a very good law 

regarding our ability to control the hiring of bad drivers. 

We can be proud of the bus industry's safety record. In fact, the 

National Safety Council, along with other government agencies, has agreed 

that travel in motor coaches is the safest form of passenger transportation. 

This is especially impressive since there were 10 million passengers traveling 

by bus to Atlantic City each year and over 400,000 buses with millions more 
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traveling safely by bus to other popular tourist destinations throughout the 

United States and Canada. 

In summation, it is my opinion and the opinion of ACBOA that 

the current level of regulatory oversight has proven to be sufficient to assure 

the traveling public a safe journey. I believe safety regulations and oversight 

procedures currently in place assure compliance. It is a matter of enforcement: 

and we support the efforts of the agencies charged with compliance assurance. 

Because so many buses operating with the State of New Jersey emanate from 

other states, any change in the driver and bus operator safety regulations must 

come from the Federal government. Changes made of the current safety 

regulations must come as a 'result of strict studies and must be uniform ir 

enforcement regardless of the origin of the motor coach trip. 

I will continue to urge motor coach owners and management, an( 

especially ACBOA members, to convert the adversity resulting from this recen1 

unfortunate series of bus accidents within New Jersey into an opportunity tc 

heighten their awareness and resolve to increase the industry's effort to drivt 

safely. It is up to bus company management to train the drivers. It is up tc 

the driver to sharpen his or her safety knowledge and to strive to be the safes1 

driver on the road. By these efforts and with the industry's assistance 

traveling by motor coach will continue to be the safest mode of transportation 

Those are my comments. I would like to see if either of m) 

compatriots here would like to make a comment regarding this matter. 

PETER J. PANTUSO: !would. 

Mr. Chairman, I'll keep my remarks brief. I'm very cognizant o 

your time. I am Pete Pantuso. I'm the President and CEO of the America1 
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Bus Association. We represent about 700 bus operators around the country. 

Those 700 operators represent approximately two-thirds of the motor coaches 

and passengers who travel by motor coach across the U.S. 

Safety is the No. 1 issue bar none for this industry: safety for our 

operators, safety for their passengers, safety for their drivers and employees. 

The record, I think, of the industry bears out the fact that we have been vefy 

successful in moving safety to the highest plane in this industry. The fact that 

there are so few incidents, and while one fatality maybe too many, the 

National Safety Council's record that this industry has 0.018 fatalities per 100 

million miles traveled, and that's in over 200 billion passenger miles, bears out 

an impeccable record that is equal to none, including the airline industry. 

Well, there have been accidents here in the State of New Jersey in 

the last few months. They have been very high profile, and they're so high 

profile because they're so unusual. During that same period, there have been 

tens of millions of motor coach passengers moving across the United States 

traveling hundreds of millions of miles. And in addition to New Jersey, there 

have been only one other incident that we are aware of where there's been a 

serious accident in all those numbers of passengers and miles. 

Accidents since December, obviously, are currently under 

investigation, as was presented earlier, and there's also been some discussion 

about seat belts and hours of service. The industry understands that the hours 

of service rules are currently under review. They're Federal rules. They work 

well as they are, and we recommend no change at the Federal level. As far as 

seat belts go, it was presented earlier by the United Motorcoach Association. 

We would concur the passengers are very, very safe now. They're very much 
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encapsulated in the seat with a seat in front of them that has some flexibility 

that moves, and we're afraid that putting seat belts or requiring seat belts not 

only disrupts interstate commerce, but it also has the potential to harm the 

individual more than help them in the end. 

In closing, the ABA and the industry remain fully committed tc 

safety. We would welcome the opportunity to work certainly with th15 

Committee, with members of the New Jersey Legislature. We also believe that 

standards and performance and criteria and regulations for our industry tha1 

operates in all 50 states and across all 50 state borders and North Americar 

borders should be addressed at a national level as well. 

I'd be pleased to answer any questions that you might have. I'c 

like to put one aside, if you will. New Jersey, obViously as was mentioned, doe~ 

roadside inspections. Forty percent of the passengers that travel by mot01 

coach are over 55; 40 percent are under 25. In essence, the bulk of tht 

industry moving by motor coach are students and seniors. We have a grea1 

deal of concern with roadside inspections. We fully ~upport inspections, brn 

we support them at destinations where t~e passengers are safe in addition tc 

the. fact that you have a better ability to capture those motor coache~ who an 

coming in and out of the destinations, as opposed to having them skirt, if ym 

will, traffic and roads setups on their way to and from. 

We also want to just confirm that this is a very professiona 

industry. The industry safety record is impeccable, and again reiterate that w1 

look forward to working with you in the future. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you. 

MR. PANTUSO: Thank you, sir. 
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SENATOR CIESLA: Yes, sir. 

R 0 N WALLER: Thank you. My name is Ron Waller. I'm a resident 

of New Jersey, and I am also the Vice-President of Sales for Prevost Car. 

Prevost is the second-largest manufacturer of motor coaches-in North America. 

I am fortunate to represent one of the safest forms of transportation known 

today. That's the intercity motor coach industry. However, you as 

representatives of the public, this is your No. 1 concern, and these concerns are 

also extremely important to us, the industry professionals. 

Several studies have been done on the subject of seat belts. I have 

been asked just to make sure that we are aware of some of those conclusions 

which have been inconclusive. The MTSB has stated that seat belts would not 

help. It is difficult to determine if lap belts would have reduced the overall 

severity of injuries. A study by New York state has similar conclusio.ns. 

Finally, a report done by Indiana University expressed concern that seat belts 

on intercity coaches could have a possible negative impact. As a manufacturer, 

we want to do the correct thing, not only for our customers, but their 

passengers. Studies on the use of seat belts in motor coaches are inconclusive 

and benefit analysis has not been done. We want to be sure that the safety 

benefits outweigh any possible disadvantages. In addition, .we believe that any 

such mandate should be done on an international level, including Canada and 

Mexico, whose buses also travel our highways. 

Ladies and gentlemen, thank you very much for your patience and 

your time. We would respond to any questions. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Thank you very much. 

Are there any questions of the panel? (no response) 
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Thank you for your time. 

MR. WALLER: Thank you. 

SENATOR CIESLA: Final comments? (no response) 

Batting cleanup, Dan O'Connell, State Legislative Director of th< 

United Transportation Union. Dan here? 

He spoke already? I'm sorry. Okay. 

Well, thank you very much then. 

Thank you to the Committee for taking the time to hear tht 

comments of the public, and as we progress, we'll certainly request you 

additional assistance. 

Thank you. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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· Mr. Chainnan, thank you for givin~ me an opportunity to transmit 

my views to you and your Committee Jugh Senator Sacco on this 

.. ai . . I 
cntlc issue. ! 

I 
I 

At the Federal level, I am very disnkbed by the recent bus 
I 

accidents in New Jersey. Many of us, safety for grant.ed. There'11 no 

doubt that Amciica bas safe roads a.ud bigbw'1,y:s, but whenever there is 
I 
I 
I 

one fatality or injury - it's one mo manY[ Last year alone millions of 

people in New Jersey traveled bus rou, and more than a thousand 

buses with passengers arrive at one destiilation, Atlantic City, alone. We 
I 
I 

need to make sure these passengers tm4 as safely as possible. 

Of all the things I do in W ashingtot in the House Transportation 

and Infrastructure Committee, the bigge~t reponsibility I have to the 
I 

I 
,.. tTAl'IONlil'l't' 'lill!ITIO 09il ~ NMt OF lllC\'C:l.IDPllllAI 
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travelling public is satety. The rules we $et and tl_le legislation we pass 
I 
I 
I 

as legislators will determine how safe o~ bus passengers are each time 
i 

they step foot on a bus to go to work, visit a loved one, or travel on a 
. I 

holiday vacation. So, I appreciate the e:t. rts you have placed into this 

issue, which needs to be addressed in a ·, ely manner. _ 
I 
I 
I 

As investigators continued to examfne the causes of~e bus 
I . i 

accidents that occwred on New Jersey's toads and highways, I wrote to 

House Transportation and Infrastructure ~ommittee Chairman Bud 
I 
I 

Shuster and Ranking Member Jim Obers~ to respectfully request that 

they hold a hearing on these accidents, ~ch brought to light several 
I 
I 
I 

issues facing bus and motorcoach travel: I standards for commercial 
I 

i 
buses are inconsistent, speed limits are n~t enforced, and bus drivers 

··ad ·· th I receive lD equate trainmg, among 0 eijC9DCemS, 

· I believe the Federal government Jn play a positive role to preVcnt 
I 
I 

future bus accidents in New Jersey by mring oversight and regulation 
i 
I 

of bus travel from the United States ~rent of Transportation's 



I 
I 

Office of Motor Caniers Lu U1e National Ilighway Traffic Safety 
I . 

Admini&tration. The Office of Motor cafriers is doing an insufficient 

job of inspecting buses. In fact, bus insp~ctions declined from 10,000 

inspections earlier in the decade to 4,500 last year, accounting for only 
I 

25 pt:rcent of all b'U$ oompanies. And wet need to make certain that we 
\ 

' provide the funds necessary to rigidly en.iorce the. laws we ~eady have 

in place to promote the safety of bus trav~l. 
I look forward to working the New~ersey State Senate and 

1 

Assembly to make our roads and highwa~ as safe as possi~le. Thank 

you. 
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Testimony on Bus Safety 
by Commissioner fames Weinstein 

before the Senate Transportation Committee 
February 11, 1999 

Chairman Ciesla, first I wish to thank you for calling this hearing. This gives ~ 

me the opportunity as your new Transportation Commissioner to express my 

personal sympathy and condolences to the family members of those who were killed 

or injured in the recent series of b~s accidents. 

Occurring during the holidays, I found these accidents particularly upsetting, 

and as a result, personally authorized an immediate investigation into our entire bus 

program. I would like to share with you the results. 

NJ has one of the best bus safety programs in the country. In fact, New Jersey 

stops and checks more buses during random roadside inspections than any other state 

in the nation. As a heavily traveled corridor state, this program is important and ou1 

efforts show that New Jersey is serious about ensuring safe travel on our highways. 

These roadside stops are in addition to the regular inspection of almost 6, 000 

commercial buses registered and based in New Jersey. 



Today, I want to provide you with detailed information about: 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

New Jersey's In-terminal Commercial Bus Inspections; 

New Jersey's Random Roadside Commercial Bus Ir~spections; 

The Recent Bus Accidents; 

New Jersey's 65 mph Speed Limit & Speed Differentials; 

Our Newly Proposed Bus Safety Regulations; and 

Seat Belts. 



NT In-Terminal Commercial Bus Safety Inspections -

An estimated 129 million passenger trips are taken by bus in New Jersey each 

year. More than a quarter-million commuters ride buses each weekday to reach jobs 

in Newark, New York City, Philadelphia and other locations. 

Recreational travel also generates trips by bus. Atlantic City is a major travel 

destination. The Atlantic City Expressway last year handled more than 400,000 

buses bringing an estimated I 0 million passengers into Atlantic City. 

New Jersey also has one of the largest private sector bus industries in the 

country, with over 400 bus and van companies in our state. Private bus companies 

operate almost 3,700 buses, and NJ Transit, almost 2,000. In addition there are 

about 400 commercial vans in operation. 

By statute, the Department is required to inspect these buses and ensure their 

safety. New Jersey's buses are inspected twice per year -- once by MVS inspectors at 

the bus company's garage, and once by the company itself -- with the results audited 

by the MVS. Let me explain how this process works. 
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Once a year, an MVS inspector performs a complete, detaile~ maintenance 

inspection of all company buses. They inspect inside, outside, and underneath the 

bus to ensure that all parts are working correctly, panicularly the brakes, steering, 

tires, and wheels. A bus cannot operate legally without this inspection sticker. 

In addition to this detailed annual inspection, there is a semi-annual "self-

inspection." The company conducts its own maintenance inspection, and 

Departmental staff go in and audit their work by checking a minimum of 10% of the 

buses that were self-inspected. This helps us to minimize our costs while ensuring 

the public safety. 

If, during these inspections or audits, we find a bus company ·with an 

extremely high failure rate, or a general indication of poor maintenance, we take 

immediate action. 

As a first step, the company will be taken off the self-inspection eligibility list. 

That means the mid-year inspection will be performed by MVS inspectors and not 

company mechanics. If maintenance problems persist, MVS can and does increase 

the frequency of these garage inspections. We will put a company on a quarterly 

inspection cycle; MVS personnel will need to perform all 4 inspections; and this will 
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continue until the company puts maintenance reforms in place and demonstrates an-

improvement in the condition of their vehicles. 

Currently, there are approximately 50 companies on full inspection. 

As a cost saving measure, since 1983, NJ Transit buses are treated somewhat 

differently. The Department does not conduct full inspections at their terminals. 

Instead, twice per year, NJ Transit completes self-inspections of its own buses. We 

then audit a minimum of l 0% of their inspections as we do at the private companies. 



NI Random Roadside Bus Safety Inspections 

New Jersey also conducts random roadside inspections of buses funded 

through a federal program called the "Motor Carrier Safety Assistance Program" 

or MCSAP. New Jersey generally receives between $1.4 and $1. 7 million per year, 

and these funds are used both by the Department to CC?nduct roadside bus 

inspections, and by the State Police to conduct safety inspections on trucks, 

including those carrying hazardous materials, which adds another technical 

dimension to the inspection. 

During the 1997 federal fiscal year, the last for which we have completed 

national statistics, New Jersey conducted over 6,000 roadside inspections 

representing 1 7% of the total bus inspections conducted nationwide through 

MCSAP; almost 36,000 inspections were conducted nationwide. 

Historically, New Jersey has conducted between 4,000 and 8,000 random 

roadside bus inspections annually --- the number varying according to the resources 

available. Staff must make sure that all in-terminal inspections are completed first; 

therefore, depending on staffing levels and availability of overtime resources, roadside 

bus inspections are conducted as resources can be made available and based on the 
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amount of federal dollars available. Additional roadside inspections could be 

conducted with additional commitments of staff and resources, either state or federal. 

The Department will commit the resources necessary to ensure the integrity of 

the bus inspection program. New this year, through MCSAP, we will give our field ~ 

inspectors access to computers capable of producing a 30 day report card for any bus 

stopped for a random roadside inspection. This year, we will put 3 of these systems 

in use. Ultimately, we hope to have· all of our inspectors fitted with this system. 

Buses roll day and night. So we also plan to purchase new vehicles with 

auxiliary lighting that will allow roadside bus inspections to take place after dark. 

Currently, we perform roadside inspections during daylight hours on both weekdays 

and weekends. 
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The Recent Bus Accidents in NJ 

At this point, let me address the rush of bus accidents that occurred during the 

holiday season. 

• The tragic accident on the Garden State Parkway involved a bus operated by 

"Bruins Transportation Incorporated," a company based in New York State. 

-
• The second bus accident occurred at the intersection of Route 440 and the 

New Jersey Turnpike entrance. This accident involved an "Academy Bus 

Tours" bus based in New Jersey. 

• Third, an "Academy Bus Tours" bus was involved in an accident on the 

Parkway during a period of inclement weather, and 

• Fourth, a "Greyhound Lines" bus not based in New Jersey and traveling 

interstate hit a bridge abutment on the Garden State Parkway. 

Out of the four accidents, 3 of the 4 bus drivers were not licensed in New 

Jersey. Two were licensed by New York State and one by Washington, D.C. 
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Both of the interstate bus carriers have a satisfactory rating according to 

federal standards. This is based on a compliance review conducted according to 

national standards examining accident history, roadside inspection history, and 

overall compliance. The intrastate bus company had satisfactory inspections and has · 

a good safety record. 

The National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) is investigating the fatal 

accident and will issue a report of its findings. Preliminary information does indicate 

that driver error played a tremendous part in these accidents versus mechanical 

defects. As a result, the State recently offered a series of refresher courses fo~ bus 

operators in Atlantic City through a multi-agency effort involving both federal and 

state organizations that deal with bus and highway safety oversight. Both bus 

operator and bus mechanical safety were targeted in these courses. Over 800 drivers 

received certificates from this training. 

Even though these accidents were very serious and regretful, New Jersey's 

accident history record has been good historically. There have been no major 

accidents due to mecl1anical failure since the last major fatal bus accident that 

occurred in 1992 in Vernon Tovvnship wherein 6 passengers died in a New York 
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State-registered bus. Following the accident, the NTSB -conducted hearings into the 

accident. During that hearing process, the NTSB spokeswoman Susan Coughlin 

complimented New Jersey's program, and stated that this Brooklyn-based carrier 

would never have escaped inspection for 4 years. She also acknowledged that this 

carrier had slipped through the cracks of the federal system as well. The 1992 bus 

accident was caused in part by mechanical defects that should have been· caught 

during routine inspections. 
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NT's 65 mph Speed Limit and Speed Differentials 

Mister Chairman, as you know, there has been some discussion about whether 

the speed limit should be reduced for buses. New Jersey's 65 mph speed limit was 

implemented at the behest of the Legislature in 1997. While the original legislation 

would have required a 65 mph speed limit on all New Jersey interstates and limited 

access highways, Governor Whitman negotiated an 18-month test period. As a 

result, 475 miles were designated for the 65 mph speed limit on May 19, 1998. At 

the end of the test period, I will submit a report to the Legislature recommending 

additions and/or deletions to the 65 mph speed zones, and reporting on the overall 

safety and impacts of the 65 mph speed in New Jersey. 

Given the suggestion by some to reduce the speed limit for buses, I have 

looked into the matter and have been advised by both my legal and technical traffic 

experts_. First, it is problematic to declare an emergency based on these accid~nts, 

and therefore to differentiate the legal speed limit for buses. 'Fo do so without an 

emergency, would also be problematic legally, because state statute only permits a 

differential speed limit for trucks -- not buses -- and only by a differential of 5 mph. 
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From a traffic standpoint: 

• Traffic flow is safest when traveling at unifom1 speeds. Posting differential 

speed limits for different kinds of vehicles will tend to increase the speed 

variance of overall traffic, creating more 'passing' movements between vehicles:-

• Reports on states that have different speed limits for different types of vehicles 

have not drawn conclusions that they are beneficial. 

• Of the 4 high profile bus accidents experienced over the holiday period, only 

two occurred in a 65 mph speed limit. 

• From the data we have gathered in our monitoring of the 65 mph speed limit 

so far, there appears to be very little difference in the before-and-after travel 

speeds, indicating motorists are traveling about the same actual speeds they 

were when it was a 55 mph speed zone. Therefore, it is difficult to conclude 

that the 65 mph zone makes bus drivers travel faster. In fact, field 

observations from the State Police to date indicate that traffic is traveling more 

uniformly in the 65 mph speed zone. 
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• Accidents are random in nature, and although we ·had 4 high profile accidents, 

there is no indication that this frequency ·will continue in the future. It is 

dangerous to over-react, or react prematurely, especially when this may have 

been an anomaly, and we do not yet know the cause of each accident. 

Only a few studies have examined the general impact of speed variance, or 

vehicles operating at different speeds, and the effect that this has on crash rates, 

including serious inj~ry and fatality rates. One recent study has specifically examined 

the impact of differential speed limits (DSL) between passenger automobiles and 

larger vehicles, such as trucks. That study suggests a potential negative safety impact. 

Here in New Jersey we have seen some encouraging preliminary accident data 

in our experiment of increasing the maximum speed limit for all vehicles to 65 mph 

on cenain limited access highways. Part of what we were trying to do in 

implementing this increased maximum speed limit, was to reduce the speed variance 

between vehicles, i.e., increase the maximum speed limit on certain limited access 

roadways, and thereby "even out" the overall speed vehicles are traveling. 

Implementing a DSL would change the present course set by this Legislature by 

increasing speed variances. 



It seems to me that the proper test for this State io give serious consideration 

to a DSL proposal for trucks and passenger automobiles, is whether it would be likely 

to improve our safety record. The Department of Transportation has concluded that 

it would not. In fact, there is good evidence that it might have a negative effect on 

crash rates, and we do not believe we can take that risk. Finally, we also believe a 

DSL would have negative effects on commerce in ten11s of artificially attempting to 

slow down truck traffic on these limited access roadways. Without any 

corresponding benefit on safety, this too would be unacceptable. 

The available evidence seems to support the following general conclusions: 

• Accident rates tend to increase with increasing speed variance, but they do not 

necessarily increase with an increase in average speed. 1 We believe both of 

these are true on roadways designed to handle higher speed vehicles. 

• "The differential speed limit ( 65/55) has no significant effect in reducing a) 

non-truck/truck accident rates, and b) two-vehicle accident rates, compared 

with those for the uniform speed limit (65/65). In fact there is some 

indication that the differential speed limit may increase the rates of some types 

of accidents such as two vehicle accidents. "2 

1 See Garber, N.J. and Gadirau, R., Speed Variance and Its Influence on Accidents, MA Foundation for Traffic Safety, 
July 1988, at 34. 

? 
-see Garber, N.J. and Gadirau. R .. Impact of Differential Speed Limits on Highwav Speeds and Accidents, AAA 

Foundation for Traffic Safety, February 1991, at 37, quoting a major conclusion of the study. 
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New Jersey's Newly Proposed Bus Safety Regulations 

DOT has proposed new rules to establish a schedule of bus safety out-of-

service violations and civil penalties for buses operating with bus safety out-of-service 

violations. They are generally consistent with national safety standards, certain 

federal rules, and, in particular, the out-of-service criteria of the Commercial Vehicle -

Safety Alliance ( CVSA). These rules will apply to intrastate and interstate auto buses 

operating on our roads and highways. 

The Bus Safety Compliance Act provided for us to establish a schedule of bus 

safety out-of-service violations as either category 1 or category 2 violations, 

depending largely on the nature and severity of the violation and the 

"discoverability" of the defect prior to a bus trip. The civil penalty for each category 

1 violation is betwe~n $300 & $5,000, while each category 2 violation is up to $500. 

With regard to imposition of sanctions, buses will be placed out-of-service if 

found to have out-of-service safety violations, and will remain out-of-service until the 

operator makes all necessary repairs. Accordingly, the duration of the sanction is 

exclusively within the control of the operator. In addition, DOT inspectors may issue 

a summons and complaint for each out-of-service violation, for the most pan, 

returnable in the Municipal Courts. 
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Presently, neither the federal government nor any ·state imposes any direct 

monetary civil penalties on operators for operation of a bus with bus safety out-of-

service violations (mechanical safety defects) that are consistent with these violations. 

New Jersey's Bus Safety Compliance Act and the proposed new rules are the first -

in the United States to impose specific monetary civil penalties for operating buses 

with bus safety out-of-service violations directly on bus operators. 

Four substantive provisions in these rules exceed federal Commercial Vehicle 

Safety Alliance (CVSA) standards. One of these CVSA standards provided that the 

number of defective brakes is equal to or greater than 20 percent of brakes on the 

vehicle or combination, a rule which wouldn't apply in the case of one defective 

brake on a three axle bus. However, three axles are common on tour buses, often 

carrying large numbers of passengers. The Department has concluded that overriding 

concerns for the safety of bus passengers require mal<lng such a defective brake a 

violation. So we have proposed a rule stating that, "on a three axle bus, one defective 

brake shall constitute a violation." Such a defect should be repaired quickly, 

potentially avoiding a crash or other serious safety incident. 
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Another proposal specifically addresses improperly welded frame defects 

causing an imminently dangerous condition to the frame or other functional 

components. Where the proof shows that the violation resulted from an improperly 

welded frame member, we have opted for a $1,000 penalty. This provision is not in 

the federal criteria, but we have occasionally seen this dangerous type of violation in 

our inspection program. It could cause a frame to break, or compromise essential 

functional components, possibly causing steering loss and consequent loss of control 

of the vehicle. 

A third rule proscribes improperly attaching a fuel tank to a vehicle with 

bailing wire, coat hanger type wire or other like material. It is one of two violations 

addressing improperly attached fuel tanks, the first of which addresses fuel tanks not 

securely attached to the bus. Again, it exceeds the federal standards memorialized in 

the CVSA. 

An improperly attached fuel tank could become disengaged from the vehicle, 

possibly causing a severe spill, or even a serious injury-producing fire. Requiring such 

a defective fuel tank to be properly repaired and prohibiting the jerry-rigging of a 

dangerous, unsafe solution, is essential. 

17 
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Finally, one of the new rules addressing violations regarding emergency exits 

proscribes an "emergency exit made intentionally inoperable." The Department 

listed this as a Category I violation with a $5 ,000 penalty. Because of the extensive 

experience of the Department in inspection of vehicles, from time to time, we've seen 

incidents of exits being screwed or wired shut. The Department feels, therefore, that :.. 

this provision is necessary for the safety of the public, ~ough it exceeds the CVSA 

criteria. 

Because of the thoroughness of our inspection program, we' infrequently see 

these defects, but when we do, we feel that substantial penalties are fully justified. In 

fact, the Department feels so strongly about these safety provisions and the fine 

schedule we are proposing, that we will contact the Federal government and state 

officials around the country to encourage other states to follow our lead in adopting 

such bus safety rules and fine sche.dules. 

18 



Seat Belts 

New Jersey is one of only two states that requires school buses to be equipped 

with seat belts. In October of 1992, New Jersey began requiring all new school buses 

to be equipped with seat belts. About half of the state's buses have seat belts,_ and all: 

buses should have seat belts in 2004, because New Jersey requires school buses to be 

retired after 12 years. The law did not contain a retrofit requirement for existing 

school buses built before October, 1992. 

Requiring seat belts on commercial buses is a separate issue. New Jersey could 

not require them of interstate carriers or companies based outside the state. 
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The Future 

What we can do now is to place a renewed emphasis on inspections, safety, 

training, and aggressive enforcement -- and that is exactly what we are doing. Some 

beneficial changes will be occurring to our bus inspection program this year. MVS. is -

in the process of hiring additional bus inspectors to beef up the program. We are 

doing this in preparation for writing summonses and issuing fines to unsafe bus 

operators. We are anticipating staff will be called into court when testimony is 

required. We do not want court appearance requirements to lower the number of bus 

inspections we perform. 

I expect New Jersey to remain first in the nation in performing roadside bus 

inspections. I_ expect more underside inspections of buses during roadside inspections 

through greater use of portable ramps. I expect the roadside program to expand into 

night-time operations so we can check operators no matter when they are traveling 

our highways. I expect all these things, because the public rightly .expects 

government to ensure their safety. 



In Summary 

Senator Ciesla, I want to thank you again for conducting this hearing. I, along 

with my colleagues from the State Police, the South Jersey Transportation Authority, 

the New Jersey Turnpike Authority, and the New Jersey Highway Authority, want to 

assure you that New Jersey is one of the safest states to travel in --whether by bus, 

car, truck, plane, or train. Given the volume of traffic on our roads, and the level of 

congestion, it is really quite remarkable that we do, in fact, have one of the leading 

safety records nationally. 

Also, I want to assure you that I will personally continue to make 

improvements and devote resources to bus safety measures. New Jersey citizens have 

a right to expect that when they sign up for a charter bus trip, or when they travel on 

our highways, they are not jeopardizing their safety or their lives. 

I will be glad to answer any questions at this time. 
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Good morning. 

Our purpose this morning is to address not only the Dec. 24, 1998 fatal bus crash involving a New 
York registered motor coach on the~den State Parkway, but the spate of subsequent motor coach 
crashes, including two that occurred on Tuesday night of this week. While only one fatality occurred as 
a result of the latter crashes, a significant number of people sustained various levels of injuries. These 
events concern me greatly and remai~ocus of mu~h enforcement and investigative attention by the 
New Jersey State Police. ~·~ 

~it'" 

From an enforcement point ~t~ew, I can ~sure you that safety is our primary goal. The New 
Jersey State Police, along with the Division of Highway Traffic Safety, has several crash reduction 
programs in place -- the Aggressive Driver/ Aggressive Enforcement Program, designed to detect anyone. 
who operates their vehicle in a manner which creates an unsafe driving environment and the 65 mph 
speed enforcement program with the overall objective to ensure compliance with the new 65 mph speed --
limit. 

The State Police have also initiated numerous other programs which are more traditional in 
nature, such as tactical patrols, use f>f unmarked vehicles, saturation and increased holiday enforcement 
activities, and weight enforcenfpnt and safety inspection details directed at commercial vehicles. 
Additionally, the S1ate Police tra.i)ic Bureau has put in place various programs which specifically target 
commercial vehicles and motor tach enforcement. 

As the New Jersey Departnient of Transportation will (has) also indicate( d) in their presentation, 
New Jersey has one of the best bus safety programs in the nation. In fact, New Jersey has always been 
at the forefront of commercial vehicle enforcement. As early as 1992, . we realized the need for an 
increased commitment to motorcoach safety. Indeed, New Jersey ~ one of five pioneer states to use 
Motor Carrier Safety Assistance Program (MCSAP) funds for the purchase of portable inspection ramps 
to conduct full scale Level I roadside inspections on motor coaches -- the other states being California, 
Idaho, Nebraska and Pennsylvania. 

The result of this initial inspection program was a 30% increase in the out-of-service rate for 
roadside inspections. When I refer to "out-of-service," I mean a mechanical condition which would 
likely cause a commercial vehicle to crash or breakdown. 

****************************************************************************** 
OPTIONAL: 

For those of you who may not be familiar with motorcoach inspection procedure, a Level I 
inspection entails the following: Examination of driver's license, medical examiner's certificate and 
waiver, ifapplimble; alcohol and/or drugs (possibly under the influence); driver's record of duty status 
as required; hours of service; seat belt, horn, fire extinguisher and road warning devices; brake system 
(including measurements, integrity of air lines, air leaks and all brake components); low air warning 
device; steering mechanism; wheels and rims; tires; suspension; frame; fuel system; exhaust system; 
windshield glazing and wipers; lighting devices (head lamps, tail lamps, tum signals, brake lamps, marker 
lamps); emergency exits (including proper markings and lighting); seat securement, aisle obstruction 
violations and HM requirements. 

The New Jersey State Police and New Jersey Department of Transportation conduct "en- route" 
inspections on motorcoaches year round on the Garden State Parkway and the Atlantic City Expressway 
-- the main traffic corridors to Atlantic City. Additionally, the Great Adventure amusement park and the 
Meadowlands sports complex provide additional sites for inspections, due to the fact they are primary 
motor coach destinations. 
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Both the State Police and the DOT conduct inspections ai these locations when they are in 
operation. One of our more intense operations takes place in Atlantic City, where "destination" 
inspections are performed at two locations on US Highway 322. Many motorcoach owners and operators 
confuse these inspections with the Herbertsville "enroute" inspection operation on the Garden State 
Parkway. Because New Jersey co~ more motorcoach inspections than any other state, we are the 
recipient of many complaints from ~industry. ~Some members of the industry feel that we are 
interfering with their commercial v~-es in and 9ut of Atlantic City. This could not be further from 
the truth since passenger safety and~e&sh avoidance are our primary goals. 

During a "destination" inspection, the passengers have already been delivered to their destination. 
In June of 1998, during an operation in Atlantic City, inspection teams developed information that some 
motorcoach drivers were remaining in the city, after dropping off passengers, to avoid being inspectetL 
Generally, drivers proceed to locations other than the downtown area, and park until it is time to pick up 
their passengers. Members of the Commercial Carrier Safety Inspection unit went into the city and 
escorted the vehicles to the location where the inspections were being conducted. I might add this 
behavior is not typical of carrieh as a whole, but is indicative of those companies with less than 
satisfactory compliance historiet I would also like to· point out that, just as these operators networked 
to avoid inspection, other ~frs have a network of communication through CB radios designed to 
thwart speed enforcement efforts \f the State Police and other enforcement agencies. We will endeavor 
to find new methods of combatit\ this and enhance our enforcement results. 

Even before this recent unfortunate series of crashes, the State Police was reviewing a plan to 
create a dedicated motorcoach inspection squad. Presently, members of the State Police Commercial 
Carrier Safety Inspection Unit perform in dual capacities, conducting cqmmercial vehicle inspections and 
weight enforcement for trucks and motorcoaches. The proposed new squad would channel its efforts 
toward motorcoach activity and compliance review. Our Carneys Point Weigh Station in South Jersey, 
which opened in September of 1997, provides us with the capability for inspecting motorcoaches as well 
as weighing and inspecting trucks. 

Finally, as in any area of law enforcement, our job is made easier if we have cooperation. In this 
case, we need cooperation from industry and the public, namely motor carriers and the passengers who 
ride motorcoaches. It has been alleged that passengers tip drivers in order to entice them to drive faster, 
so they will arrive at their destination more quickly. If this is true, the practice should be stopped at once, 
in that it may encourage the violation of motor vehicle laws and compromise safety. 

The New Jersey State Police will continue to work with federal, state and local agencies to further 
enhance our commitment to safety. We will continue to review our existing enforcement strategies and 
will develop new programs, as necessary, to remain proactive. 

### 



TESTIMONY OF SENATOR JOSEPH VITALE 
SENATE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE BUS SAFETY HEARING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1999 

I would like to thank the committee members, particularly Senator Ciesla, for 
scheduling this hearing in response to the recent series of crashes involving 
passenger buses and in general to discuss the process by which the State 
ensures overall passenger and driver safety. 

In addition to other steps that the State must take to ensure safer roads, I urge -
you to consider the possibility of lowering the speed limit for school buses, other -
passenger buses and the large trucks that travel upon our limited access 
highways. 

On the outset I would like to recogriize one main concern that some 
transportation advocates express regarding split speed limits. This is, that 
variances in speed, for example, cars limited to 65 mph and trucks limited to 55 
mph interact at dangerous levels. I believe that in part, my testimony and 
documented information that I have provided to you will begin to address that 
important concern. 

When the legislature raised the speed limit from 55 mph to 65 mph, the State not 
only raised the limits for competent drivers with safe cars, it also raised it for poor 
drivers, chronic offenders and for the most inexperienced drivers--teenagers. 
Similarly, we raised the limit for trucks and buses. Now, all types of drivers with 
varying degrees of ability, in automobiles, trucks and buses with random degrees 
of performance, are thrown together on the highways of our state. 

I recognize that there is very little sentiment at this time to revert to the maximum 
55 mph for all vehicles, but I believe it is reasonable to consider doing so for 
buses and large trucks. 

I believe that all of us have a large degree of common sense when it comes to 
the physics of size and speed. As New Jerseyan's, we spend a great deal of 
time in our automobiles observing the driving habits and speeds of all vehicles 
and so our opinions are more than just anecdotal, they are based on real 
experience as well as technical data. Therefore, I am not going out on a limb 
when I say that we can all agree that buses and trucks cannot stop as quickly, 
avoid other vehicles in emergency situations as competently or perform in 
inclement weather as capably as passenger cars. And unfortunately when they 
do crash it seems that the price is higher in injury and death. 

To support my position on split speed limits I have provided a technical summary 
by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration and a 
listing of states with split limits and with same speed limits. Those states with the 
split speed limits are: 



• Arkansas 
• California 
• Texas 
• Oregon 
• Washington 
• Michigan 
• Indiana 
• Florida 
• Ohio 
• Connecticut 
Montana, which does not have a speed limit for passenger cars, at least has the 
common sense to have a limit for buses and trucks. 

The primary purpose for the research by the Dept. of Transportation was to 
determine whether differential speed limits are more beneficial to transportation 
safety and traffic operations on Interstate highways. The summary was issued in 
May, 1994, and is the-most recent Federal study available. Within the study's 
summary, four important conclusions stand out: 

• For States with different speed limits for cars and trucks, the percentage of 
car-into-truck rear-end accidents was 26% greater when compared to the 
uniform speed limit states, however; 

• In states with similar speed limits, truck-into-car accidents were greater for 
rear end collisions by 57%, sideswipes by 41 % and other collision types by 
103%. The analysis of accident severity showed that uniform and differential 
speed limit States have the same fatal accident proportion, however, the 
injury accident proportion was 18% greater in the uniform speed limit States. 

• The 65/55 speed limit does result in fewer trucks exceeding 70 mph. 

I have provided a draft of legislation that provides the specific details that will 
lower the speed limit for passenger buses and other commercial vehicles. 
Briefly, the proposed legislation breaks down this way: 

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor 
vehicles used or designed to transport passengers or property on a highway and 
includes a motor vehicle: 

• Having a gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of 10,001 or more pounds or 
displaying a GVW rating of 10,001 or more pounds; 

• Having a gross combination weight rating of 10,001 or more pounds inclusive 
of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,001 or more pounds; 

• Designed to transport 16 or more passengers including the driver; 
• Designed to transport eight or more but less than 16 persons, including the 

driver, and used to transport such persons for hire, including such vehicles 
used to transport persons on a daily basis to and from places of employment; 



• Or transporting or used in the transportation of hazardous materials and 
required to be placarded in accordance with rules of the Department of 
Transportation, or displaying a hazardous material placard. 

This legislation does not include recreational vehicles or other vehicles exempted 
by rule or regulation. 

In closing I would like to add that any reduction in speed limits for buses and 
trucks is not a reflection upon the abilities of those who operate them. They vast 
majority of whom are extremely competent individuals and go about their trade -
safely. It is though as I stated earlier, a matter of a passenger bus and large -
trucks ability to perform safely at higher speeds in all situations. 

Thank you for your time and concern. 
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STJ1\L'1ARY Of RESULTS 

The objectives of this study were to 
determine whether differential or uniform 
speed limits are more beneficial to trans-
portation safety and traffic operations on 
rural Interstate highways. To achieve 
these o~'fectives, speed and accident data 
from 12 States representing all speed limit 
combinations presently existing on Inter-
state highways were collected and ana-
lyzed. A summary of the results from the 
analysis of these data is provided below. 

Speed Data 

The analysis of the speed data was 
designed to answer the following question: 

What impacts do different types of speed 
limits have on traffic operations, i.e., what 
are the effects on travel speeds of cars and 
trucks? 

The mean speeds for cars under the 
three speed limits included in this study 
(65/65, 65160, and 65/55) were 67.6, 
67.8, and 67.4 mi/h (108.8, 109.2, and 
108.5 km/h), respectively, and were not 
significantly different. However, an anal-
ysis of the contiguous site pairs did show 
the difference of 2. 4 mi/h (3. 9 km/h) 
between sites governed by the 65/60 and 
65155 limits to be significantly different. 

./ Truck mean speeds were signifi-
cantly less in States governed by the 65155 
limit when compared to the 65/60 and 
65165 limits. However, the differences in 
speeds between the States with 60 and 65 
mi/h (97 and 105 km/h) truck limits were 
not significantly different. The speeds for 
the three limits of 65/6.5, 65160, and 65/55 

">'-'t'. "C 6::;. 8, 63. 6. anc 61. 1 mi/h ( 1C'?.7, 
1.C2A, and 98.4 krn/h), respectiveiy. 

The mean speeds \Vere also ana-
lyzed with res~t to time of day (day vs. 
night vs. dawn/dusk). For cars, the diffe-r-
ences in speeds between all three time -
periods were significant. For trucks, 
however, the only significant difference 
was between the time periods night and 
dawn/dusk. For both vehicle types, these 
differences were very small (0.4 to 
1.1 mi/h (0.6 to 1.8 km/h)) and cannot be 
considered practical differences. In addi-
tion, no significant or practical differences 
were for found for time of day with re-
spe:t to type of speed limit. 

Other analyses of me.an speeds 
included weekday vs. weekend data and 
rural vs. urban data. Fer the weekday vs. 
weekend mean speeds, no significant 
differences were found with respect to day 
of week or type of speed limit. For the 
rural vs. urban mean speeds, cars ex-
ceeded the urban limits by greater amounts 
than trucks. However, no conclusions 
could be drawn with respect to urban 
speeds and type of speed limit due to the 
small number of sites in the sample. 

The analysis. of speed variance 
showed cars to exhibit greater variance 
than trucks across all speed limit groups, 
although the differences between the two 
vehicle types was relatively small in most 
cases. The results also showed both vehi-
cle types to exhibit the gre.atest variance 
during the night, although, the differences 
in variance between the three time of day 
periods was typically very sma11. 

With respect to type of speed limit, 
no significant differences in the speed 



variance of cars wa~ found. For tmcks, 
however, the variance was s1gnificantly 
greate;- at the location$ with higher truck 
spet.xl limits (10 of 13 site pairs). For ail 
vehicles in L~e traffic stream, the variance 
was significantly greater at sites with the 
lower truck speed limits (l 0 of 13 site 
pairs). 

An analysis of the overall speed 
distribution was undertaken by examining 
the differences in the 85th and 15th per-
centile speeds. The results showed the 
65165 and 65/60 speed limit groups to be 
very similar with respect to cars, trucks, 
and all vehicles. The distributions for cars 
and trucks within each group were also 
similar. However, the values for cars and 
trucks in the 65/55 speed limit group were 
not similar to each other, with cars experi-
encing a difference of 10. 6 mi/h 
(17 .1 km/h) and trucks only 8. 7 mi/h 
(14.0 km/h). 

The examination of vehicles not 
complying with the various speed limits 
showed cars to generally be consistent 
across all speed limit groups. Howeve:--1 

as a group, the 65/55 limits did produce 
fewer cars (63.8 percent) exceeding the 
speed limit by 10 mi/h (16 km/h) or less 
compared with the 65/60 and 65165 speed 
limit groups ( 68. 7 and 66. 6 percent, re-
spectively). At the level of exceeding the 
limit by more than 15 mi/h (24 km/h) 
however, the differences in noncompliance 
between the speed limit groups are 
negligible. 

The number of trucks in noncom-
pliance was much greater for the 65/55 
and 65/60 speed limit groups (89.4 and 
76.5 percent, respectively) compared to 
the 65/65 group (35.6 percent). However,/ 
the lower limit of 65155 did result in only 
3.1 percent of the trucks exceeding 
70 mi/h (113 km/h). This compared to 

9.3 and 9.2 pcr\.:cnt for the 65/60 and 
65/65 groups, respectively. 

Accident Data 

The analysis of the accident data 
was designed to answer the following 
question: 

• What impacts do different types of 
speed limits have on 'transportation safety 
i.e., what are the effects with respect to 
the types of accidents, the types of vehiclt. 
involved, and the crash severity? 

The analysis of accident propor-
tions by collision type (single vs. rear-enc 
vs. other multiple vehicle vs. other) 
showed no patterns that could be attribute 
to the type of speed limit. Similarly, no 
relationships between speed limit and 
vehicle types involved were shown to exh 
in the accident data. 

../ However, combining collision typE 
and vehicle type did prcxluce some obvim 
patterns with respect to the type of speed 
limit. For States with differential speed 
limits, either 65/60 or 65155, the propor-
tion of CT rear-end accidents was 26 
percent greater when compared to uniforn 
speed limit States. For sideswipe and 
other types of CT accidents, there were 
very small differences in the accident 
proportions between types of speed limits. 
For TC accidents, the proportions were 
greater in the uniform speed limit States 
for rear-end, sideswipe, and other collisio 
types by 57, 41, and 103 percent, respec-
tively. However, none of the differences 
just described were significant at the 
95-percent confidence level. 

An analysis of accident severity 
showed uniform and differential speed 
limit States to have the same fatal acciden 
proportion of 0.01. The injury accident ' 



proportion, howev'er, was 18 percent 
greater in the uniform speed limit St,1tes 
(0.39 (:Ompared tc 0.33). Nevertheicss. 
ti1is difference was not significant. 

CONCLUSIONS 

With respect to traffic operations 
and the three rural Interstate speed limits 
included in this study (65/65, 65/60, and 
65/55), the findings resulted in the 
following conclusions: 

• Mean travel speeds of cars are not 
affected by the type of speed limit. How-
ever, the 65/55 speed limit does appear to 
reduce the number of cars exceeding the 
speed limit by 10 mi/h (16 km/h) or less. 

• Mean travel speeds of trucks are the 
same for the speed limit groups of 65165 
and 65/60, indicating that the 5 mi/h 
(8 km/h) differential has no effect on truck/ 
speeds. However, the 65/55 speed limit v 
did result in lower truck mean speeds, 
although the difference from the upper 
speed limit groups was less than 3 mi/h 
(5 km/h). 

• The 65160 and 65155 speed limits 
groups experienced much greater percent-
ages of L~cks in noncompliance with their 
respective speed limits when compared to 
the 65/65 speed limit group (by more than 
2 to 1). However, the 65155 group did 
result in fewer trucks exceeding 70 mi/h 
(113 km/h), thus limiting the number of 
high-speed trucks. The 65/65 and 65/60 
speed limit groups experienced similar 
values for the number of trucks exceeding 
70 mi/h ( 113 km/h), reconfirming the lack 
of effectiveness of the 5 mi/h (8 km/h) 
differential. 

• Speed variance for trucks increased 
significantly at locations with higher truck 
limits (e.g., 65/65 compared to 65160 and 

65 '55) while car spee.d variance was unaf..· 
fc.:ted. More importantly~ the speed 
variance for the overall traffic stream in-
creased significantly at locations with 
differential speed limits, indicating more 
car/trnck interactions. 

• From the examination of the overall . 
speed distribution, the 65/65 and 65160 -
speed limits were very similar with respec.t 
to cars, trucks, and all vehicles. \\tithin 
each group, the distributions for cars and 
trucks were also similar. For the 65/55 
speed limit group, however, the differ-
ences in the car and truck distributions 

~ reconfirms the above result, i.e., that more 
car/truck interactions occurred under this 
speed limit. 

Overall, the 65/65 and 65/6.0 sr~ 
limits exhibited-very few differences ~ith 
respect to mean travel speeds, speed vari-
ance, and compliance for cars, trucks, and 
a11 vehicles, providing evidence that the 
? mi/h (8 km/h) differential speed limit !s 
not effective. The 65155 speed limit, 
however, does affect the travel speeds of 
trucks by reducing the number of trucks in 
·excess of 70 mi/h (113 km/h) and conse-
quently, reducing the speed variance for 
trucks. On the other hand, the 65/55 
speed limit also results in a larger speed 
Yariance for all vehicles and a greater 
difference in the di.stributions of car and 
truck speeds, which, in tum, results in a 
higher number of car/truck interactions 
when compared to 65160 and 65/65 s; xd 
limit groups. 

With respect to transportation 
safety, the findings resulted in the 
following conclusions: 

• The uniform spee.d limit States experi-
ence<! higher proportions of TC accidents 
for all collision types, including rear-end 
and sideswipe accidents. Although these 



proporti·~·r.·; were net s1;~nifa:~rnuy greater 
at the: 95-percent confidence level !har, 
those in the diffcrentia! speed llmit States, 
they were significn.ntly greater a~ the 
90-percent confidence level for rear-end 
accidents and at the 85-percent confidence 
leve.I for sideswipe accidents. 

• The differential speed limit States 
experienced higher proportions of CT 
accidents for rear-end coHisions. How-
ever, this difference was not statistically 
significant. 

• There were no differences in fatal acci-
dent proportions between the differential 
and uniform speed limit States, but the 
uniform speed limit States did experience a 
higher proportion of injury accidents. 
This difference, however, was not. 
statistically significant. 

Overall, the accident analysis 
showed very little -difference in overall 
accidents or accident severity between the 
S1ates with respect to L1e type of speed 
limit. However, the findings do suggest 
that the types of collisions and the roles of 
the vehicles involved may be impacted by 
the type of speed limit. In the differential 
speed limit States, the car-truck rear-end 
collisions we:r;e more likely to involve cars 
striking trucks.· In t'i()f'uniform speed limit 
States, all car-truck accidents were more 
likely to involve trucks st"'iking cars. 

FURTHER RESEARCH 

While the speed data analysis con-
ducted in this effort resulted in definitive 
conclusions, the accident data analysis was 
limited. However, certain trends in the 
data with respect to collision type./ vehicle 
type involvement were identified. Further 
research is needed on the accident data to 
more clearly define the parameters affect-
ing the affecting collision type and vehicle 

type involvement. Additional work is zJ 
needed to determlne the level.'\ of expmu 
at which any differences may be 
significant. 
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AN ACT concerning speed limits for certain commercial vehicles and 
amending P.L.1997, c.415. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State 
of New Jersey: 

1. Section 3 of P.L.1997, c.415 (C.39:4-98.4) is amended to read 
as follows: 

3. As used in this act: 
"Authorities" means the New Jersey Highway Authority, the New 

Jersey Turnpike Authority and the South Jersey Transportation 
Authority. 

"Commercial motor vehicle" means a motor vehicle or combinatfon 
of motor vehicles used or desi~ned to transport passengers or property 
on a highway and includes a motor vehicle: 

C 1) having a gro·ss vehicle wei~ht rating of 10 001 or more pounds 
or displaying a gross rehicle weight rating of 10.001 or more pounds· 

C2) having a gross combination weight rating of 10 001 or more 
pounds inclusive of a lowed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of 
I 0 001 or more pounds: 

(3) designed to transport 16 or more passengers including the 
driver: 

(4) designed to transport eight or more but less than 16 persons 
including the driver and used to transport such persons for hire. 
including such vehicles used to transport persons on a daily basis to 
and from places of employment: or 

(5) transporting or used in the transportation of hazardous 
materials and required to be placarded in accordance with rules of the 
Department of Transportation. or displaying a hazardous material 
placard. 

The term shall not include recreation vehicles or other vehicles 
exempted by rule or regulation . 

. "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of Transportation . 

. "Eligible public highways" means public highways as defined in 
section 3 of P.L.1984, c. 73 (C.27: lB-3) of which portions have been 
determined by the commissioner to be appropriate for a 65 miles per 
hour speed limit based on such criteria as determined by the 
commissioner. Public highways under the jurisdiction of counties and 
municipalities shall not be eligible public highways. 
(cf: P.L. 1997, c.415, s.3) 

2. Section 4 of P.L.1997, c.415 (C.39:4-98.5) is amended to read 
as follows: 

4. a. Within four months following the effective date of this act, 
the commissioner, in consultation with the Attorney General and the 
authorities, shall establish by written order speed limits of 65 miles per 

EXPLANATION - Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the above bill is not 
enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. 

Matter underlined thus is new matter. 39~ 
j' 
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hour on approximately 400 miles of eligible public highways except 
that the speed limit for commercial motor vehicles as defined in 
section 3 of P.L.1997. c.415 CC 39·4-98.4) shall be 55 miles per hour. 
The commissioner, pursuant to section 7 of [this act]P L 1977 c.415 
CC.39-4-98.8), may increase or decrease the number of miles of eligible 
public highways on which a 65 miles per hour speed limit has been 
established. 

b. An order to be issued pursuant to subsection a. of this section 
shall cite the eligible public highways to which it is to be applicable 
and contain a description in plain language of the order's contents, the 
effective date of the order and any other information the commissioner 
deems necessary. 

c. The commissioner shall cause a general public notice of the 
proposed order, including a summary of the provisions of the proposed 
order, to be publisheU in a newspaper or newspapers having general 
circulation in the mu.Aicipality or municipalities affected by the order. 
The notice shall Include a telephone number or address which a 
member of the public may use to receive a copy of the complete text 
of the proposed order and shall provide for a 30-day period from the 
date of publication for public comment. The order shall be final on the 
31st day after publication of the notice or on a later date if the 
commissioner so determines. Nothing in this subsection shall be 
construed as prohibiting the commissioner from extending the 
comment period or from modifying or withdrawing the proposed order 
as a result of the review of public comment. 

d. A final order shall be effective and enforceable upon 
compliance with the requirement for the posting of signs providing 
notice of the speed limit, as provided under the applicable provisions 
of R.S.39:4-98 and R.S.39:4-198. 

e. Any official traffic control device established pursuant to this 
section shall conform to the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices." 

f. Any order issued pursuant to this section shall be binding and . 
enforceable under the provisions of Title 39 of the Revised Statutes 
and all other applicable laws, in any court of competent jurisdiction, 
until superseded by order of the commissioner pursuant to this act. 
(cf: P.L.1997, c.415, s.4) 

3. This act shall take effect on the first day of the third month after 
enactment. 

STATEMENT 

This bill establishes differential speed limits for certain commercial 
vehicles on those portions of public highways where a 65 miles per 
hour speed limit has been authorized by the Commissioner of the 

.. 
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Department of Transportation pursuant to P .L. 1997, c.415. The speed 
limit for these vehicles would be reduced to 55 miles per hour. 

Commercial vehicles subject to the 55 miles per hour speed limit 
would include: vehicles with a gross vehicle weight (weight of the 
vehicle and its intended cargo) of 10,001 or more pounds; vehicles 
designed to transport 16 or more passengers including the driver or 
designed to transport eight to 15 persons and used for hire; and 
vehicles used to transport hazardous materials and required to be 
placarded. 

The bill was prompted by a recent series of crashes on State 
highways involving casino buses. Preliminary police investigations 
indicate speeding appears to have been a contributing factor in these 
accidents, resulting.in eight deaths and numerous injuries. 

I 
\ 
I ,•I 

Establishes 55 mph ~peed limit for certain commercial vehicles for 
portions of State highway system with 65 mph speed limits. 

I, 
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THE NEW JERSEY MOTOR BUS ASSOCIATION 

STATE~NTTO 

THE SENATE TRANSPORTATION CO~TTEE 
REGARDING BUS SAFETY 

February 11, 1999 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, for the opportunity to testify 

before you today. The New Jersey Motor Bus Association, which rnpresents the State's private 

motor bus operators, believes that good· safety practices and the vigilant practice of bus 

maintenance are vitally important. That is why we have always supported and continue to 

support active and aggressive enforcement of bus safety regulations. Thousands of New 

Jerseyans ride our buses to work and play daily. Buses are key to a thriving tourism industry. 

They bring thousands of people to Atlantic City who might not otherwise come. What's more, 

they help the State to meet increasingly strict requirements of the Clean Air Act by encouraging 

people to leave their cars at home. 

We are proud of our members' excellent safety records. In fact, in terms of passenger 

miles traveled, buses are the safest vehicles on the road. Attached to our testimony please find 

statistics from the USDOT which show that the occupant fatality rate for all buses in 1996 was . 9 

fatalities per I 00 million vehicle miles. Every fatality is a tragedy, and we are always eager to 

identify opportunities to enhance our safety practices. But these statistics are remarkable indeed. 
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We would like to review with you briefly our inspection and maintenance requirements. 

Buses are subject to twice-yearly inspection by the Department of Transportation. For operators 

with a good safety history, that usually entails one inspection by DOT and one self-inspection. 

Other companies are inspected twice-yearly by the DOT. (New Jersey Transit conducts its own 

inspections and incurs no fee.) 

Our members, who also incur the cost of aggressive maintenance programs, supported a 

significant increase in bus inspection fees in 1993 when the inspection program was threatened, in 

order to keep that program going. At that time the State increased the fees for inspections for 

private operators from $5 to $85 for a DOT-staffed inspection, and imposed a new fee for self-

inspection of $30. Our fees for various rechecks also increased to between $35 and $70 per bus, 

up from $0 to $10 at that time. 

In spite of the fact that such fees place an added burden on private operators, we 

supported them because we believe in frequent and thorough inspections by the DOT. It is 

important for the State to ensure that all buses are held to the State's stringent maintenance 

standards and that those standards are enforced actively and evenhandedly -- for all operators 

whether they are public or private, regulated or unregulated, whether they run in the morning or 

evening or on weekdays or weekends, and whether they come from the north or south or in 

between. 

In addition to garage inspections, buses are also subject to random roadside inspections. 

Since passage of the Bus Safety Compliance Act, the DOT has stepped up both the frequency and 

randomness of roadside inspections. The DOT is aggressively inspecting Atlantic City-bound 

buses at the inspection station set up at Exit 94 of the Parkway. That station is open three or four 
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times per week, and all buses must stop there when it is open. 

We are especially pleased to note the more random nature of the inspections, as that is 

something we specifically suggested when the Legislature debated the Bus Safety Compliance 

Act. Prior to the Bus Safety Compliance Act, the DOT inspected buses on the Parkway only on 

weekday mornings. Many buses, however, do not operate on weekday mornings. The current -

system also allows for inspection of most of the unregulated operators who go to Atlantic City on 

Friday and Saturday nights. It is actually more urgent that those buses, which in many cases are 

not subject to the same_ semi-annual inspections that ours are, face random inspections. 

We have maintained our support for roadside inspections in spite of the fact that we would 

have preferred to see more inspections take place in Atlantic City after passengers are dropped off 

rather than on the Parkway or the Atlantic City Expressway, where passengers have to wait for 

completion of the inspection and, when a bus is taken out of service, wait for a new bus to be sent 

for. We believe that it makes eminent sense to flag down buses not at a DOT facility fixed at one 

location on the Parkway, but as they enter Atlantic City itself State Troopers could hand out 

summonses to buses on a random basis as they enter the city, requiring them to report for 

inspection after discharging their passengers at their destination. If the bus fails inspection, the 

company will have time to send a replacement without delaying passengers. Buses that do not 

report for inspection should be penalized appropriately. 

Conducting inspections in Atlantic City itself after passengers are dropped off not only 

would minimize the inconvenience to passengers, but would also insure that buses that do not 

travel on the two major arteries to Atlantic City are also inspected, protecting all bus passengers' 
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safety. In addition, the State would be able to conduct more and more thorough inspections if 

they were conducted in Atlantic City. Certainly that would further the overall goal of improved 

bus safety. 

We would also like to point out that all of our members ensure that their drivers are in 

compliance with all applicable federal and state safety regulations and receive proper training pnor_ 

to starting employment. This process includes a road test, a written examination, a physical 

examination, a comprehensive drug and alcohol te~t, previous employment reference checks, 

motor vehicle driver abstract reviews and classroom and road training. 

According to federal law, companies must require and drivers must complete prior on-

duty statements to monitor working hours. Unfortunately, USDOT compliance inspections are 

extremely rare. We believe that the State would benefit greatly from the establishment of a 

regulatory group to audit driver safety compliance -- such as logs, hours of service violations, 

medical exams, etc. -- at individual bus companies. At present there is no manpower for this 

function. 

We think there may be opportunities for other improvements to bus safety through 

technological innovations that would allow the DOT or State Police to flag down buses that are 

more likely to have violations than others with a clean record. We are told that this may be 

possible using scanning equipment. In addition, new technological developments at the DOT may 

allow it to provide bus companies with lists of drivers whose licenses are suspended. Currently, 

we run a drivers' history periodically -- most of us do it quarterly -- but if a driver's license is 

suspended in the interim and he is does not tell us about it, we are not currently notified. The 

DMV has welcomed our suggestions on this front and is working with us to try to accomplish it. 
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We would like to comment briefly on two other possible measures that have been 

discussed. We would not object to requiring seat belts in new buses, if the independent agencies 

studying them conclude that they are necessary and can be properly engineered to be effective. 

We do understand that some serious questions about their necessity or effectiveness have been 

raised, and that other safety features such as a bus's size and seat engineering may matter more. 

We would also not like to have the driver be required to see to it that passengers actually use the 

belts if they are available, as he should be concentrating on the road, not on passengers' behavior. 

And we do not think they would work on local transit routes where buses travel slowly and where 

passengers get on and off frequently and sometimes stand. 

Nor would we object to a 55 mph speed limit, if you should determine that it would in fact 

make the roads safer. We are somewhat concerned that an uneven flow of traffic, with buses 

traveling at 5 5 mph and others traveling at 65 mph might cause more accidents than it would 

prevent. We would ask you also to keep in mind that if buses are considered by the commuting 

public to be appreciably slower than cars, those commuters may more frequently opt to use their 

cars. That could work against the states' goals not only for cleaner air but potentially for safe 

roads, if our highways become even more congested. But if your analysis proves· otherwise, we 

would not oppose the lower speed limit. 

The overwhelming number of buses operate responsibly, ferrying thousands of passengers 

in safety and comfort, to go to work or to enjoy Atlantic City and other parts of our state," every 

day. 

Thank you for the invitation to speak today. We would be happy to answer any questions 

you might have. 



WHY DOESN'T MY NEW MOTORCOACH 
HAVE SEAT BELTS? 

W0 1re happy you askod. It's one of the most prevalent questions In the American bus 
and luxury motorcoach business today. Indeed, tho answer is just as straightforward. As a 
service to its more than 1 ,000 member companies, the United Motorcoach Association (UMA) 
has prepared this brief summary of the answer and the issues surrounding the installation and 
use of seat belts on coaches. -

The answer. 
Wo won't keep you in suspense. The Quick answer is. "Because they aren't noeded." 

That's not just our answer. It's the answer which is offered by the Nationar Transportation 
Safety Board (N1'S8). the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the agency charged 
with vehicular safety and construction standards. the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA). NHTSA is the federal agency, by the way, which commonly uses a 
small graphic image of a safety belt at the foot of their own letterhead which says "SAFETY 
£3ELTS SAVE LJVES." It's on their lettor of August 19, 1992, in which they respond to the 
common inquiry by saying, . 

·NHTSA expressly derermln•d th•t there I• not• ••f•fy need tor ••f•ty 
belts or another type of occupant crHh protection at th••• H•Ung 
poslflon1 (•l101rd commorclal·buse1 weighing mo,. titan f 0,000 pound•).· 

That message has been consistent. As late as December i 998. NHTSA 
spokespersons have repeated thetr belief that large buses simply wouldn't reap a safety 
benefit by placing seat belts throughout the seating compartment. 

While the answer is quick and easy, understanding it -- especfaUy in an era when 
''Buckle Up!" is a universal and enduring campaign cry for miflions of automobile motorists ... 
is ttle tough part. To understand how faderal safety experts can suggest befts are the answer 
fo' everyone oxcept motorcoach passengers, wo need to go back to some of the lessons you 
probably forgot 20 minutes after your last high schoof physics exam. And we need to took at 
tho basic construction of a modern motorcoach, rather than refy on what you already know 
about the Buick or Honda you might see on the road today. 

Bofore we begin. we should also offer one important observation: the commercial 
motorcoach of today is the safest form of highway transportation available, bar none. By 
NTSB's own count. an average of six coach passengers are fatally injured each year over the 
30-year span from i 968 to 1998. Compare that to highway death tolls ranging from 30.000 
to 50.000 automobilo passongors annually, and we're faced with a basic question, "What 
problem would soat belts on coachas fix?" More on that later. First. the science refroshar. 

What happens i11 a crash? 
First of aft. please note that we, like tho regulators and enforcement community. use 

tt1e word ··crash" to describo vehicle colflsions. While ''accident• is the more common torm for 
most of us. it suggosts that the collision happens virtually without avoidable cause. ''Crash" 
makos no such judgement, it simply doscribes the event. 

In any vehjcular crash, there are really three collisions taking place. The first is the 
impact of the vohicle against something else, a watl, another vehicle, a bridge, etc., which 
causes a rapid "decefera.tion impulse." The second collision is the impact of the person inside 
the vehicle against whatever object is thore to stop him or her: a steering column, a 
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windshield, a belt or harness. The third collision ;s within ·the passenger, when organs s 
against bones or other organs. causing most of the actual injurios. 

This is where wo offer the high school physjcs refresher. Sir Isaac Newton expfait 
with t1is laws of physics that passengers will tend to keep going forward when a vehicle st• 
suddenly. But those laws also help us understand that there are vastly different forces at w 
when largo and small objects cortide with something or with one another. It's apparent (a 
common knowledge) that when a largo object and a small object collide, the larger ob, 
wins. What is less apparent. though, is the fact that the "G-forces" {ona 11G 11 is tho force 
gravity) oxorted on the largo object during that rapid doceleratfon are far less than thosj 
the smaller object. A crash which exerts a 20-G force on an 4,000 pound automobile we 
exert less than a 7-G force on a 38,000 pound motorcoach. 

Seat bolts, air bags and harnesses in automobiles are designed to accomplish < 
primary objective: to hold the passenger and the vehicle tightly together so that they reac1 
a single object. That altows the much smatler passenger to take advantage of the m& 
greater weight of the vehicle they're riding in to reduce the G-forces at work on his or 
body during impact. Today's Nt1TSA load rating requirement for automobile seat belts is 
G's. 

Now the t~onstruction part. 
Today's motorcoachcs aren't required to have seat belts. That's because regulat 

and highway safoty experts hav'e long recognized that existing bus design features w 
extromely well in protecting passengers from the vast majority of crash circumstances. 

First. passengers are "made part of the vehicre" in a motorcoach by the seat 
system·s inherent ability to achieve 11compartmentatization." What belts accomplish in aut 
compartmentalization accompfishos in today's motorcoach: it keeps the passenger "contain 
during crashes. like eggs in a carton. Passengers' forward movement is severely limited 
the ~eat ahead of them. In the most common form of motorcoach crash ~- head·on 
sideswipe -- passengers essentially remain in the seated posture, striking the ener 
absorbtng, high-back seat ahead of them. The force of the crash ·is spread over their en 
LJppcr body before they drop back into their seats. generally still in the seated postL 
lnd<>ed, the restraining effect of the forward seat is less immediate than seat belts wouJd 
but at the large vehicfe's lowered deceleration impulse force, the immediacy of the restn 
is far fess important. . 

Today's motorcoaches are also built to absorb crash energies. While automo1 
ongineers have spent years building "crush zone& .. into cars, motorcoaches have a'w4 
onjoyed the advantage of an enorgy-absorbing construction. Using a "monocoque" 
"unibody" design, coaches crush by small increments on impact. And rather than absorb 
the entiro crash lmpufso at the point of impact, monocoQue construction aUows crash for< 
f o be distributed through the entire length of the body. 

{Sidebar: School bus construction is different. NH1'SA has required that school bw 
are built with to be very riQid boxes which allow ~ohool buses to resist intrusions by outs 
objects. ratllor than absorb crash energy. Their rigid body construction makes school bu~ 
react to crashes differently than monocoque-built motorcoaches.J 

Compartmentalization atso provides what might be the ideal •passive restraint" systE 
it delivers passenger protection without asking the passenger to take any action other tt 
sitting in their seat. Air bags and automatic, sliding, seat belts were the automot•ve indust1 
answor to the biggost problem yot idontified with seat belts: people just don't use them. 
reccmtly as January 1999. NTSB took a close look at automotive child restraint system! 
found that in 62·percent of the cases where restraints were present but serious injuries· 
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resulted, it was because the restraint device was not used, faulty or simpfy used incorrectJy. 
By its dependence on compartmentalization and energy·absorbing construction, 
motorcm~ches have also avoided an unpleasant side effects of belts: "soft tissue" injuries 
which are caused by belts themselvos. 

Is I.her«~ ntol'e we could do? 
Compartrnentalization, monocoque construction. energy-absorbing, high-back soats 

and soft covered interior elements all contribute to lhe passenger protection of motorcoaches.-
but they are intended to work togethor as a "passenger protection system.• There are some 
places. though, whero overy element ot that system may not be present. In the United States 1 

for instance, belts are currently mandated for coach drivers, a seating positions which doesn't. 
benefit from compartmentalization. The NTSB has also been assessing the safety value o( 
belts or other restraint devices such as exaggerated modesty panels in other "exposed" seat 
positions aboard coaches: the forwardrno$t seats, the center rear ~eat which faces an aisle, 
and seats behind desk or table installations. 

Another element of the ptotoctive ''syatem" used in motorcoaches has come under 
question ;n recent years, as woll. Investigations of fataf bus and motorcoach crashes over the 
past 20-years has shown that a passenger death usualfy occurs in one of two ways. The first 
is a massive intrusion into the passenger space. In a coUision with a large vehicle or statjonary 
object, passengers within the ;ntrusion zone are at obvious risk. The second most prevalent 
cause of death is by ojection or partial ejection. There is strong evidence that most crashes 
are survivable when passengers stay inside the vehicle. That's drawn attention to FMVSS 
(Foderal Motor Vehicre Safoty Sle1ndards) §217 which determines construction standards for 
bus and motorcoach windows. 

Created in an era when gasoline engines were dominant in buses, FMVSS §217 
requke manufacturers to install a window which could be opened for use as an emergency 
escape during a fire. Since that time, of course, virtually the entire motorcoach wortd has 
moved to diesel ongines, significantly reducing the likelihood of a fire. At the same time, 
customer demands for a moro "European dosign" have led to massive, panoramic, window 
sizes. In circumstances invofving violent vehicle behavior. such as a rare rollover, the windows 
and latches requirod by FMVSS §217 may fail; the result can be passenger ejection. Even 
when they function as designed In an overturned coach, the weight of the large windows has 
proven difficult to many escaping passengers, In recent months, NHTSA has ackngwlodged 
to UMA has that there's a need to revisit its window design mandate. But its cJear that window 
escape problems have acceteratad discussions of seat belts. 

Today•s environment. 
We've seen that a motorcoact1•s size and its construction reduce G forces at crash and 

contain and effectively protect the passonger. And we know that the regulators and safety 
experts have· responded to the scierltific facts by resisting the urge to apply ineffective (but. 
the most popular) remgdies. seat bolts. But the politics of seat belts are far less clear. 

From the time of our child's first ride home from the hospital. proper restraint is 
drummed into our consciousness. Dvc/</(J Up campaigns dating back 30-years have effectively 
convrnced drivers and auto passengers that belts are "The Answer"." Attorneys for injured 
coach passengors accusingly paint to the absence of seat beJts in an attempt to capture an 
easy verd;ct for their ctlont, despite the overwhetming evidence that belts wouldn1 have 
helped. Emotion has overtaken the logic in many case~. Faced with very recent testimony 
from safety exp9rts that lap belts in school buses may actually pl"esent a greater hazard to 
young bodies, many belt advocates continue to lobby for a school bus beft mandate. 

Politics. not safety. have driven lawmaking in Europe, as well. Seat belts have boen 
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required in Europe at non·compartmentalized seating positions since 1988 and in au seati1 
positions for the past two years. Testifying before the NTSB in the summer of 1998, thous 
European officials openly admitted that the instarlation of belts was a "poritical" decision. n 
one driven by safety research. Starting ;n Great Britain in response toa particularly bad eras 
pollttcal winds carried the seat belt mandate across the Channel and throughout the Europe; 
community. At the same time, they acknowledged vastly different drtving conditions th: 
American motorists encounter. For instance, motorcoaches are limited to highway speeds 
about 65-milas per hour in Europe. aven on highways with no speed limit on automobiles. Tl 
difforontial often leads to violent evasive maneuvers and a much higher incidence of rolro'V 
on European roads. In acknowtedgement of the much different physics of the farge vehiclE 
the European mandate requires only a 6.6-G seat belt load rating for full-sized coaches. It al: 
roquiros only the use of two-point (lap) belts. 

Professional motorcoach opera·tors in America have clearly astablished and accept• 
the evidence that seat belts would do little to advance the cause of passenger safety. Ar 
since NHTSA's 20·G load rating requtrement remains the only standard in offect for seat be 
in America today, the task would s9gm virtually impossible. Trying to install a 20-G seat bt 
on today's motorcoach could easily add another 10,000 pounds to the vehicle by forcing nE 
securement structures. It would reduce also cargo and seating space, cut average fo 
economy significantly and severely limit the seating configurations available. EuropE 
accepted 6.6·G belt Joad standard would clearly not meet existing NHTSA rules. 

The bottom line. 
-

Safety, above all else, is the primary goal of th;s Association and its membe 
companies. After all, safety is good business. The numbers substantiate our belief that tt 
motorcoach is the safest highway vehicle on the road today. But at the same time, we are1 
smug in our confidence that today's vehicles can't be made even more safe. Neither NHTS 
nor ":"Yother htghway safety agency, public or prjvate, has conducted definitive crash testir 
on today's motorcoaches. UMA stands eager to step up to the task as a cooperative partn 
if and when such testing is conducted. And we stand ready to promote significant safe 
enhancements when their value is proven. 

With its manufacturer associates, its safety specialists, its legal team and afl of j 
resourcefulness and e><perience. UMA is also trying to help sort out the issues for you. Vi. 
know that there are no . easy answers, especially when you're faced by riders. parent 
reporters and the inevitable phalanx of challenges to the "seat belts wouldn't help" respon! 
which is most honeat of them all. 

The fact remains. however. that seat belts are not just "not mandated," today they' 
clearly "not the answer." Any reporter who believes that the issue has just been overlookE 
by Congress. NTSB. USDOT, NHTSA, OSHA or a long Hat of government and safety agenci• 
just hasn't examined the record. 

If things change, we'll let you know. But untn, then, brush up on your physics ar 
setUe in for a long explanation. Or ask your questioners to can us: (800) 424-8262. We'll ev' 
pay for the call. 
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Drivers Involved in Fatal Crashes by Vehicle Type and BAC 

YEAR: 1997 STATE: (All) 

Alcohol Test Results 
0.00% 0.01%- 0.10+% 0.01%+% Total 

Vehicle Body 0.09% (Alcohol 
Related) 

Convertible( excludes sun-roof,t-bar) 165 21 64 86 -251 

2-door sedan,hardtop,coupe 6,129 697 2,214 2,911 9,040 

3-door/2-door hatchback 1,385 139 500 639 2,024 

4-door sedan, hardtop 12,686 792 2,169 2,962 15,648 

5-door/4-door hatchback 338-· 29 80 109 447 

Station Wagon (excluding van and truck based) 875 48 155 203 1,078 

Hatchback, number of doors unknown 47 3 14 18 65 

Sedan/Hardtop, number of doors unknown 176 18 35 53 229 

Other or Unknown automobile type 533 54 131 185 718 

Auto-based pickup (includes E 1 Camino, 
Caballero, Ranchero, Subaru Brat,Rabbit 57 4 26 30 87 
Pickup) 

Auto-based panel (cargo station wagon, auto- 2 0 0 0 2 based ambulance or hearse) 

Large Limousine-more than four side doors or 6 0 0 0 6 stretched chassis 

Compact utility (Jeep CJ-2-CJ-7, Scrambler, 2,391 219 604 823 3,214 Golden Eagle, Renegade, Laredo, Wrangler, ..... ) 

Large utility (includes Jeep Cherokee [83 and 
before], Ramcharger, Trailduster, Bronco- 392 30 102 132 524 
fullsize .. ) 

Utility station wagon (includes suburban 
limousines, Suburban, Travellall, Grand 274 20 44 64 338 
Wagoneer) 

Utility, Unknown body type 5 2 3 5 10 

Minivan (Chrysler Town and Country, Caravan, 
Grand Caravan, Voyager, Grand Voyager, Mini- 1,771 73 224 297 2,068 
Ram, ... ) 

Large Van (Bl50-B350, Sportsman, Royal 
Maxiwagon, Ram, Tradesman, Voyager [83 and 1,106 50 183 233 1,339 
before], ..... ) 

Step van or walk-in van 75 4 5 80 

51~ 
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Van based motorhome 22 1 1 1 
Van-based school bus 4 0 0 0 

Van-based transit bus 9 0 0 0 

Other van type (Hi-Cube Van, Kary) 33 2 6 8 

Unknown van type 53 3 9 11 

Compact pickup (GVWR <4,500 lbs.) (D50,Colt 
P/U, Ram 50, Dakota, Arrow Pickup [foreign], 2,995 259 978 1,237 4,: 
Ranger, .. ) 

Standard pickup (GVWR 4,500 to 10,00 lbs.) 
(Jeep Pickup, Comanche, Ram Pickup, DlOO- 4,252 396 1,490 1,886 6,l 
D350, ...... ) 

Pickup with slide-in camper 45 9 16 25 

Unknown (pickup style) light conventional truck 55 5 28 33 type 

Cab chassis based (includes light stake, light 93 2 12 14 dump, light tow, rescue vehicles) 

Light truck based motorhome (chassis mounted) 1 2 1 2 

Other light conventional truck type (includes 4 0 0 0 stretched suburban limousine) 

Unknown light truck type (not a pickup) 18 0 2 2 
Unknown light vehicle type (automobile, van, or 47 4 9 13 light truck) 

School Bus 106 0 0 0 

Cross Country/Intercity Bus (i.e., Greyhound) 32 1 0 1 
Transit Bus (City Bus) 102 1 0 1 

Other B ~s Type 25 0 0 0 
Unknown Bus Type 27 0 0 0 
Step van 34 0 2 2 
Single unit straight truck ( 10,000 lbs < GVWR < 142 2 7 9 or= 19,500 lbs) 

Single unit straight truck (19,500 lbs< GVWR < 
253 2 1 3 or= 26,000 lbs.) 

Single unit straight truck (GVWR > 26,000 lbs.) 747 8 4 11 
Single unit straight truck (GVWR unknown) 90 0 3 3 
Medium/heavy truck based motorhome 24 0 0 0 
Truck-tractor (Cab only, or with any number of 3,400 36 35 71 ,.., 
trailing unit; any weight) .) . 

' 

Unknown if single unit or combination unit 7 0 1 1 Medium Truck (10,000 < GVWR < 26,000) 

S.J.~ 
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Unknown if single unit or combination unit 5 0 0 0 - 5 Heavy Truck (GVWR > 26,000) 

Camper or motorhome, unknown truck type 34 2 2 3 37 

Unknown medium/heavy truck type 35 2 1 2 37 

Unknown truck type (light/medium/heavy) 4 0 0 0 4 

Motorcycle 1,250 228 578 806 2;056 

Moped (motorized bicycle) 16 1 7 7 23 

Three-wheel Motorcycle or Moped - not All- 3 0 2 2 - 5 Terrain Vehicle 

Off-road Motorcycle (2-wheel) 21 5 4 9 -30 

Other motored cycle type(minibikes, 15 4 3 7 22 Motorscooters) 

. Unknown motored cycle type 4 1 5 6 10 
ATV (All-Terrain Vehicle; includes 82 16 34 50 132 dune/swamp buggy - 3 or 4 wheels) 

Snowmobile 24 8 17 26 50 
Farm equipment other than trucks 91 3 8 11 102 

Construction equipment other than trucks 15 1 1 3 18 (includes graders) 

Motorized Wheelchair 3 0 2 2 5 

Other vehicle type (includes go-cart, fork-lift, 50 6 7 13 63 city street seeeper) 

Unknown body type 525 103 253 356 881 

Total 43,209 3,313 10,080 13,393 56,602 

Query Wizard Condition Criteria: 

• Person Tvpc : 1 

Generated with FARS Query Wizard 08-Feb-99 

.. ./result.cfm ?year= 1997 &qryid= D RI2&selstateid=O&selcountyid=O&selcityid=O&disp _col= 1 &sh2/8/99 
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t FINANCIAL 1960 1970 1980 1990 1994 1995 1996 
Expenditures (thousand 
dollars) 

School Bus 486,000 1,219,000 3,833,000 7,605,000 7,847,000 9,082,000 P10,404,000 
a a· a a a a a 

Operating Revenues 
(thousand dollars) 

Intercity Bus. Class I 463,100 721,700b 1,397,378 943,268b 870,354C r911,299c 911,504C b b 

Operating Expenses 
(thousand dollars) 
Intercity Bus, Class I 405,400 639,000 1,318,372 1,026,213 918,522 ra99, 176 878,185 
II. INVENTORY 
Number of Operating 
Companies 
Intercity Bus, Class I 143 71 61 31 27 28° 27c 
Number of Vehicles 

All Buses f272,129 f377,562d r528,789d 626,987d 670,423d r50s,so3d 696,609d d 
Number of Employees 
Intercity & Rural Bus 40,SOOe 43,400e 38,oooe 26,30oe 23,6009 23,9009 25,7009 
School Bus N N 79,900 111,200 125,900 134, 100 133,000 

. Ill. PERFORMANCE 
Vehicle-Miles (millions) 
All-Buses 

Rural Highway 
Interstate Rural N 339h 533h 567i 683i 711i 742i 
Other Arterial Rural N 944 991 995 1,154 1,134 1,186 
Other Rural N 1,266 1,511 r1 ,882 1,893 1,972 2,005 
All Rural r2,332 2,549 3,035 ra,444 3,730 3,817 3,933 

Urban Highway 1 

Interstate Urban N 277 560 r455 627 580 599 
Other Urban N 1,718 2,464 r1 ,828 2,052 1,986 2,003 
All Urban 2,014 1,995 3,024 r2,283 2,679 2,566 2,602 

Total Rural & Urban Highway r4,346 4,544 6,059 r5,726 r6,409 6,383 6,535 
Revenue Passenger-Miles 
(millions) 
All Buses rN rN rN r121,400 r135,900 r136, 100 r138.500 
Number of Revenue 
. Passengers (thousands) 
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Intercity Bus, total 366• 00~1401,0008, 370,0008, 334,0008 1 .~43,2008 1 r366,5008 1 360,0008 

Average Miles Traveled per 
Vehicle 
All Buses r15,970h 12,035h 11,45Bh rg,133i 9,560i r9,312i 9,3B1i 

_Fuel Consumed (million 
gallons) 
All Buses 827 820 1,018 895 rg54 rgse 985 
Average Fuel Consumption 
per Vehicle (gallons) 
All Buses r3,039 2,172 1,926 1,428 r1,438 1,412 1,414 
Average Miles Traveled per 
Gallon of Fuel Consumed 
All Buses 5.3 5.5 6.0 6.4 r5_5 6.6 6.6 
Average Revenue per 2.71 8 3.608 7.268 11.558 11.61 8 r12.208 12.40a Passenger-Mile (cents} 
IV. SAFETY 
Number of Fatalities 
School Bus-related N N 1SOk 11Sk 1Q5k 121k 136k 
School Bus Occupants N N 9 11 _ 3 13_ 10 
Other Vehicle Occupants N N 88 64 64 72 101 
Non-Occupants N N 53 40 38 37 25 
Occupant Fatalities 
All Buses N N 46 32 18 r33 29 
School Buses N N 14 13 2 12 18 
Cross Country Buses N N 23 2 7 6 3 
Transit Buses N N 6 'l 6 0 5 v 

Other & Unknown N N 3 14 6 14 3 
Fatalities in Vehicular 
Accidents 
All Buses N N 390 340 286 306 297 
Occupant Fatality Rate 
Per 100 Million Vehicle-Miles 

All Buses NI N 0.8 0.6 ro.3 ro.s 0.9 
Per 10,000 Registered 
Vehicles 

All Buses N N 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.5 0.8 
Vehicle Involvement Rate 
Per 100 Million Vehicle-Miles 

All Buses N N 5-4 5.1 4.0 4.2 u 
Per 10,000 Registered 
Vehicles 

All Buses N N 6.2 4.6 3.8 3.9 4.6 

P Preliminary. 

r Revised. 
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1 Urban consists of travel on all roads and streets in urban places of 5,000 or greater population. 

N Data are non-existent. 

U Data are unavailable. 

Sources: 

a Eno Foundation for Transportation, Transportation In America, 1996, pp. 42, 47, 48, 50. 

b Interstate Commerce Commission, Annual Report of the ICC, annual issues, Appendix F, Tables i , 6. 

c Quarterly reports reported by carriers to U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), Bureau of 
Transportation Statistics. Operating revenues do not include data from two Class I carriers that did not file 
reports; operating expenses do not tnc!ude data from three Class I carriers that did not file reports. 

d Ibid., Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). Office of Highway Information Management, Highway 
Statistics, 1960, 1970, 1980, 1990-1995, annual issues, Table MV-10. 

e U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Employment, Hours and Earnings, United States, 
1909-1994, SIC 45, 413, 415. 

t Ibid., Office of Employment and Unemployment Statistics, SIC 413, 415. 

9 Ibid., Employment and Earnings, SIC 413, 415. 

h U.S. Federal Highway Administration, Highway Statistics, Summary to 1985, Table VM-201A. 

i Ibid., Highway Statistics.annual issues, Table Vfv1-1. 

j Natio·nal Safety Council, Accident Facts, annual issues, pp. 94, 95. 

k Ibid., National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA}, National Center for Statistics and Analysis, 
NRD-30, personal communication. 

[ Apoendix A Contents i Return to NTS j 
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FEDERAL BUS PROGRAM 

The Department of Transportation's Federal Highway Administration's Office of 
Motor Carriers is charged with the responsibility of regulating the safe operations of 
commercial motor vehicles(CMV) that operate in interstate commerce. CMV's are:.. 
defined as both heavy trucks and buses over 15 passengers. The regulations that 
govern the safety operations are the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations 
(FMCSR). The FMCSR' s include vehicle standards (ie. Brake adjustment 
tolerance, tire tread), Driver standards (ie. Who must hold a Commercial Driver's 
License, hours of service) Carrier responsibilities (ie. Insurance, operating authority, 
drug and alc.ohol testing) and State requirements (inspections). For the most part, all 
FM CSR' s apply to buses and trucks alike, there are some regulations specific to 
buses and not trucks .. and vice verse such as sleeper berth requirements and standee 
lines. 

Some major requirements are the hours of service which apply to all CMV 
drivers ... basically a driver cannot drive more than 10 hours without being followed 
by 8 hours of rest; and after being on duty for 15 hours must have 8 hours off; 
cannot exceed 60 hours on duty in any 7 consecutive days or 70 hours in 8 
consecutive days. 

Next is the Federal inspection requirement which requires all CMV's to be 
inspected annually. Some States, such as NY and NJ have more rigorous standards 
which mandate vehicle inspections every 6 months. Many inspections are funded 
via Federal grants to States under the Motor Carrier Safety Assistance Program. In 
FY 1998 there were approximately 33,000 inspections of buses and their drivers 
performed by Federal and State inspectors. Some inspections are done at the 
carriers terminal while others are "destination" inspections ... those performed for 
instance in Atlantic City after the passengers have disembarked. 

Also, the FMC SR' s prescribe the minimum standards that States must follow in 

57~ 



implementing testing for Commercial Driver's licenses. FMCSR's have such 
requirements as age, physical health and knowledge requirements to obtain a CDL.. 
The State is responsible for issuing the CDL and has the authority to revoke it as 
well. 

As far as the regulations applicable to the Carrier, paperwork requirements such as 
keeping driver logs, physical exams, drug and alcohol testing, vehicle inspection 
reports etc are all part of the carriers safety management program. The Office of · 
Motor Carriers has instituted a performance based selection program for carriers to 
undergo a Compliance review performed on their operation. Basically, accident, 
driver, mileage, and other data are compiled and those with indicators of poor 
performance are selected for a compliance review .. which is basically a safety audit 
of the operation. A rating is then provided based on th~ result of the review. If the 
carrier does not receive a satisfactory rating, they are allowed 45 days to correct 
deficiencies before further enforcement efforts are brought forth. 

Seatbelts for bus passengers are not a Federal requirement. There have been no 
comprehensive studies as to whether seatbelts would increase safety, but it is clear 
that one objective for passenger safety is to keep them inside the bus. Speed limit 
requirements are set by States. There are some that have differential limits for cars 
and commercial vehicles. 

Interstate bus travel is very, very safe. Between 1993 and 1997 there were about 5 
bus occupant deaths per year. Buses were involved in about 30 fatal crashes per 
year where other than bus occupants died. When compared to annual road fatalities 
of 42,000, it makes the case for a very safe industry. 

The Office of Motor Carrier staff, State partners, other Federal agencies and the 
industry work very hard towards reduction of crashes and zero fatalities. 

Washington DC contact 
Steve Barber, Office of Motor Carriers 202-366-2829 
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FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICE OF MOTOR CARRIERS400 SEVENTH STREET SW, ROOM 3103 

NATIONAL MOTORCOACH PROGRAM COORDINATOR- HPS 20202/366-2829 I FAX 366-7298 
STEVE BARBER STEPHEN.BARBER@FHWA.DOT.GOV 

Off ice of Motor Carriers Federal Motorcoach Program 
Recent Statistics-Fall 1998 

(Source MCMIS unless otherwise stated) 

PassenQer Carriers in our census 13,752 
Registered commercial buses (FHWA Highwa~ Statistics, table MV-10)124,538 
Passenger carriers as a per cent of all commercial vehicle carriers 3% 

Federal and State Staff trained in Motorcoach inspections 
annually500 
Total Carriers rated - 3,228 - 24 % 

0 Satisfactory(2,648) 82 % ~ Ratings ~ 0 Conditional (545) 17 % 
0 Unsatisfactory(35) 1% 

Annual Interstate Bus Inspections performed by Federal and State Staff 

All Levels ~ 33,16 710/01/97 through 9/30/98 Level 1 ~ 9,703 

Out of Service Rates for inspections 
Buses All CMVS4 

All Levels Level l's All Levels Level l's 
Vehicle10 % Vehicle15 % Vehicle20 % Vehicle31 % 
Driver2 % Driver1 % Drivers% Driver6 % 

Crash Statistics (source:FARS) Bus Passenger miles per year 
About 30 ~ interstate buses involved in (Source: National Safety Council Accident Facts, 1995) 
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fatal crashes annually. Intercity buses25 billion 
About 6 ~ interstate bus occupant fatalities School buses95 billion 

annually Transit buses20 billion 



State Investigatory reports. We will not comment on those 

accidents today but will wait until such time as the 

investigations have been concluded. We would, however, like to 

make the point that statistically bus travel is one of the safest 

forms of transportation but this rash of accidents requires all 

involved in this industry to take a look at what we are doing 

that's right and what needs improving. 

We will focus our remarks on two areas, Fatigue and 

Regulatory Oversight. While we realize that Federal Regulations 
-

are not the purview of this Committee we would like to make you 

aware of attempts at changing the hours of service of drivers 

from the_ present 10 hours of driving with 8 hours of rest to 

drivers operating 12 to 13 hours with 9 or 10 hours off. The 

United Transportation Union has opposed in the past and will 

continue to oppose such changes. We believe such changes 

would make the jobs of U.T.U. members and others more 

hazardous. It would also place in jeopardy the safety of 

passengers on these buses as well as the general public. 

Enclosed as part of this testimony are comments made before the 

Department of Transportations Federal Highway Administrations by 

U.T.U.'s Assistant General Counsel Mr. Daniel R. Elliott, III. 

Currently, the responsibility for bus safety rests with the 

Department of Transportation's Office of Motor Carriers. 

Congressman Bob Franks (R-7) recently noted an Inspector 

General's Report that there was an improper relationship between 

senior officials at the Office of Motor Carriers and those they 



regulate. He has called for the transfer of the Office of Motor 

Carriers from D.O.T. to the National Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration. This issue needs to be thoroughly examined to 

reassure the employees and the public that safety is not being 

compromised. Perhaps New Jersey should play a role in 

this area to ensure compliance with safety requirements. We 

would support funding requests for more state police or state 

inspectors to monitor such a program. 

In closing, Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank you for 

calling this Hearing. We understand that Congressman Franks will 

be holding hearings on the Federal level in either Washington, D.C. 

or New Jersey and the United Transportation Union will be there to 

voice our concerns on behalf of bus drivers, passengers and the 

driving public. We are ready to work with you and the Committee to 

continue to improve the safety of bus operations in New Jersey. 

Daniel J. O'Connell 
N.J. State Leqislative Director 
United Transportation Union · 
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HOURS OJI' SERVICJ! 01' DRIVERS 

UNITED TRANSPORTATION UNION'S COMMENTS 

United Transportation Union ("Unl') respectfblly submits its comments regardingthe notic 

of intent to consider negotiated rulc:mak:ing proeess about hour&-ot-service of drivers. uru strong 

opposes any attempts to make any changes to the hours-of-service regulatiot11. 

Allowing drivers to operate for as many as twelve or thirteen hours with nine or ten hours c 

compared to the present ten hours of driving with eight hours off makes no common sense. Miu 

UTU members will be adversely affected, and their livea will be placed injeapardy by thMe° dnconh 

measures if implemented. These measures would make these jobs operated by unJ members m 

the roads considerably more dangerous. Moreover, the proposed rules would place the pnsense 

on buses and the 1eueral public in greater danger. 

In an era where the roads are already overcrowded and bus traaaportation is uMtw. 
alleviating that congesdo~ tbo Federal Highway Administration ahould bo work:iq toward& IMld 

the roads safer and pusensers feel more comfortable rather than diacounainl people fiom uli 

buses by causing drivers to be overworked and fatiauecl. Accordingly, my attempts to make bau 

of-service rules more onerous for drivers should be rejected. 



Respectfully submitted. 

United TranRportation Union 
14690 Detroit Avenue Detroit Avenue -
Cleveland, Ohio 44107 
(216) 228-9400 
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Good morning. My name is Norm Littler and I am Vice President of 

Government Affairs for the United Motorcoach Association. I wish to express my 

sincere appreciation to the Senate Transportation Committee Chair and the 

Honorable Committee Members for allowing me to speak this morning on behalf of 

the nearly 800 professional motorcoach company members of the United 

Motorcoach Association. 

The motorcoach industry was recently made aware of the New Jersey 

Senate's interest in certain bus safety issues including those relating to seat belts. 

Such a request is hardly surprising given the emotion surrounding the recent tragic 

bus crashes th.at occurred in New Jersey over the Christmas holidays. On behalf of 

the United Motorcoach Association and the entire bus industry, I wish to expr~ss 

our sincere condolences to the families of the victims. 

The reason that I come before you today is because there is a need to bring 

certain facts relating to the use, or lack of use, of seat belts on large buses. 

The issue of whether motorcoach type buses should be equipped with seat 

belts is not new. It is an issue I have had in depth experience with for many years. I 

have been employed in the commercial bus industry for over twenty years, 

seventeen of which were spent working with the engineering group at the Nation's 

largest manufacturer of motorcoaches -- MCI. (I also hold an Insurance Institute of 

America - Associate in Risk Management designation.) During my career I have 



worked been called by the National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) on a 

number of occasions to assist in investigations involving serious bus accidents. This 

included on-scene investigation of the "Sensational Golden Sons" bus crash outside 

of Action Park in Vernon, New Jersey in July of 1992. Inevitably, the question of 

whether passengers would have been provided enhanced protection if seat belts had 

been available arises. The problem that the regulatory, enforcement, and bus 

industry all face is a lack of evidence, either for or against seat belt use, due to a lack 

of compelling empirical data. A representative of the· National Highway Traffic 

Safety Administration was quoted recently in the New Jersey Star-Ledger. He stated 

that NHTSA has expressly determined that there is no safety benefit provided by 

requiring buses to be equipped with seat belts. NHTSA is the Federal Agency 

responsible for setting all U.S. vehicle safety performance standards. 

What is the justification for such a position? First, let's put commercial bus 

safety into perspective. The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, the 

Federal Highway Administration, and the National Safety Council statistics all 

indicate that travel by bus is the safest mode of surface passenger transportation.· 

Commercial buses accounted for over 28 billion passenger miles in 1996, the last 

year for which statistics are available. During that year there were just 2 passenger 

deaths rep.orted. (Selected statistics taken from the 1998 Edition of the National 

Safety Council publication "Accident Facts" is attached to this testimony.) While 

this number appears to be very small when compared to the 42,000 plus annual 

highway deaths on the Nation's road, it is one that is supported. Over the past 



twenty years, federal data shows that between 4 - 6 commercial bus passenger 

deaths occur on an annual basis. This equates to less than one-tenth of one percent 

of all fatalities that occur annually on the Nation's highways. Stated differently, you 

are almost 100 times more likely to be fatally injured while traveling in a passenger 

car than in a motorcoach. 

Second, the installation of seat belts appears on the surface to be a relatively 

simple procedure. After all they have been employed in passenger automobiles for 

over thirty years and no one argues that, when they are employed in this manner, 

they save lives. However, buses and passenger cars are not the same when it comes 

to a collision. Passenger vehicles are much lighter and seat far fewer persons than a 

commercial bus. NHTSA requires seat belts in passenger vehicles because, given the 

high crash forces encountered in serious collisions, they have been found to provide 

the greatest level of protection to the vehicle passenger. NHTSA has also determined 

that because of the large number of passengers that a bus carries and the much 

lower crash forces produced in most highway crashes, that compartmentalization of 

the passenger area is the most effective means of providing protection in the majority 

of crash situations. 

This is why NHTSA expressed its willingness to preempt the State of New in 

1992, under the provisions of the Supremacy Clause of the Constitution, when it 

attempted to legislatively mandate seat belts into commercial buses. Congress 

specifically designated the U.S. Department of Transportation as the agency 



responsible for promulgation of motor vehicle safety performance standards when it 

passed the National Highway Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966. In 

section 30103, "Relationship to other laws", Congress addressed the issue of 

preemption over the States by the following language ... " When a motor vehicle 

safety standard is in effect under this chapter, a state or a political subdivision of a 

State may prescribe or continue in effect a standard applicable to the same aspect of 

performance of a motor vehicle or motor vehicle equipment only if the standard is 

identical to the standard prescribed under .this chapter. However, the United states 

Government, a State, or a political subdivision of a State may prescribe a standard 

for a motor vehicle or motor vehicle equipment obtained for its own use that 

imposes a higher performance requirement than that required by the otherwise 

applicable standard under this chapter." 

-- Simply put, a State is prohibited from ma11dating seat belts, or any other 

safety system or device regulated by the NHTSA, if the vehicle(s) is not directly owned 

or its operatio11 is directly f u11ded by the State. --

Lastly, the National Transportation Safety Board is currently in the final 

stage of completing a three-year study on bus crashworthiness and passenger 

protection. During their investigation the issue of seat belts and other passenger 

protection options were reviewed in great detail. Sixteen expert witnesses from 

around the world were assembled and questioned with respect to the best means of 

protecting passengers in a range of crash scenarios. As one of those witnesses, I had 
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the opportunity to outline the same issues that I bring to you today. During the 

NTSB hearing it became quickly clear that no empirical crash data is available, let 

alone data that could either justify or refute the benefit of installing seat belts in 

buses. Real world crash data is so sparse that no meaningful conclusions can be 

drawn without the risk of potentially placing the public at increased risk. It is 

anticipated that the NTSB, in its conclusions and recommendations may call on the 

NHTSA to conduct a crash test program on commercial buses to determine if there 

are public benefits to be gained by incorporating passenger protection 

enhancements, of which seat belts are one option. It is expected that the NTSB 

report will be adopted and published sometime toward the end of February or 

beginning of March of this year. 

With respect to this Committee's examination of seat belts use in motorcoach 

type buses, I have attached a number of documents to my testimony that may be 

useful in your deliberations. These include letters from NHTSA refuting the 

usefulness of belts and their refusal to provide voluntary installation guidelines to 

the industry. Also a copy of their letter stating their legal opinion that they hold the 

exclusive right to preemption. I have also included a copy of my supplemental 

comments to my testimony to the NTSB following their public hearing of last year. 

These comments examine the issues relating to the lack of data and the technical 

problems relating to the vehicle structure. This concludes my statement. I will be 

happy to take any questions. 
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WHY DOESN'T MY NEW MOTORCOACH 
HAVE SEAT BELTS? 

We're happy you asked. It's one of the most prevalent questions in the American bus 
and luxury motorcoach business today. Indeed, the answer is just as straightforward. As a 
service to its more than 1,000 member companies, the United Motorcoach Association (UMA) 
has prepared this brief summary of the answer and the issues surrounding the installation and 
use of seat belts on coaches. 

The answer. 
We won't keep you in suspense. The quick answer is, "Because they aren't needed." 

That's not just our answer. It's the answer which is offered by the National Transportation 
Safety Board (NTSB), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the agency charged 
with vehicular safety and construction standards, the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA). NHTSA is the federal agency, by the way, which commonly uses a 
small graphic image of a safety belt at the foot of their own letterhead which says "SAFETY 
BELTS SAVE LIVES." It's on their letter of August 19, 1992, in which they respond to the 
common inquiry by saying, 

•NHTSA expressly determined that there is not a safety need for safety 
belts or another type of occupant crash protection at these seating 
positions (aboard commercial buses weighing more than 1 o, ooo pounds).• 

That message has been consistent. As late as December 1998, NHTSA 
spokespersons have repeated their belief that large buses simply wouldn't reap a safety 
benefit by placing seat belts throughout the seating compartment. 

While the answer is quick and easy, understanding it -- especially in an era when 
"Buckle Up!" is a universal and enduring campaign cry for millions of automobile motorists --
is the tough part. To understand how federal safety experts can suggest belts are the answer 
for everyone except motorcoach passengers, we need to go back to some of the lessons you 
probably forgot 20 minutes after your last high school physics exam. And we need to look at 
the basic construction of a modern motorcoach, rather than rely on what you already know 
about the Buick or Honda you might see on the road today. 

Before we begin, we should also offer one important observation: the commercial 
motorcoach of today is the safest form of highway transportation available, bar none. By 
NTSB's own count, an average of six coach passengers are fatally injured each year over the 
30-year span from 1968 to 1998. Compare that to highway death tolls ranging from 30,000 
to 50,000 automobile passengers annually, and we're faced with a basic question, "What 
problem would seat belts on coaches fix?" More on that later. First, the science refresher. 

What happens in a crash? 
First of all, please note that we, like the regulators and enforcement community, use 

the word "crash" to describe vehicle collisions. While "accident" is the more common term for 
most of us, it suggests that the collision happens virtually without avoidable cause. "Crash" 
makes no such judgement, it simply describes the event. 

In any vehicular crash, there are really three collisions taking place. The first is the 
impact of the vehicle against something else, a wall, another vehicle, a bridge, etc., which 
causes a rapid "deceleration impulse." The second collision is the impact of the person inside 
the vehicle against whatever object is there to stop him or her: a steering column, a 
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windshield, a belt or harness. The third collision is within the passenger, when organs slam 
against bones or other organs, causing most of the actual injuries. 

This is where we offer the high school physics refresher. Sir Isaac Newton explained 
with his laws of physics that passengers will tend to keep going forward when a vehicle stops 
suddenly. But those laws also help us understand that there are vastly different forces at work 
when large and small objects collide with something or with one another. It's apparent (and 
common knowledge) that when a large object and a small object collide, the larger object 
wins. What is less apparent, though, is the fact that the "G-forces 11 (one 11G11 is the force of 
gravity) exerted on the large object during that rapid deceleration are far less than those in 
the smaller object. A crash which exerts a 20-G force on an 4,000 pound automobile would 
exert less than a 7-G force on a 38,000 pound motorcoach. 

Seat belts, air bags and harnesses in automobiles are designed to accomplish one 
primary objective: to hold the passenger and the vehicle tightly together so that they react as 
a single object. That allows the much smaller passenger to take advantage of the much 
greater weight of the vehicle they're riding in to reduce the G-forces at work on his or her 
body during impact. Today's NHTSA load rating requirement for automobile seat belts is 20-
G's. 

Now the construction part. 
Today's motorcoaches aren't required to have seat belts. That's because regulators 

and highway safety experts have Jong recognized that existing bus design features work 
extremely well in protecting passengers from the vast majority of crash circumstances. 

First, passengers are "made part of the vehicle 11 in a motorcoach by the seating 
system's inherent ability to achieve 11compartmentalization." What belts accomplish in autos, 
compartmentalization accomplishes in today's motorcoach: it keeps the passenger "contained 11 

during crashes, like eggs in a carton. Passengers' forward movement is severely limited by 
the seat ahead of them. In the most common form of motorcoach crash -- head-on or 
sideswipe -- passengers essentially remain in the seated posture, striking the energy-
absorbing, high-back seat ahead of them. The force of the crash is spread over their entire 
upper body before they drop back into their seats, generally still in the seated posture. 
Indeed, the restraining effect of the forward seat is less immediate than seat belts would be, 
but at the large vehicle's lowered deceleration impulse force, the immediacy of the restraint 
is far less important. 

Today's motorcoaches are also built to absorb crash energies. While automotive 
engineers have spent years building "crush zones" into cars, motorcoaches have always 
enjoyed the advantage of an energy-absorbing construction. Using a "monocoque" or 
"unibody" design, coaches crush by small increments on impact. And rather than absorbing 
the entire crash impulse at the point of impact, monocoque construction ~llows crash forces 
to be distributed through the entire length of the body. 

[Sidebar: School bus construction is different. NHTSA has required that school buses 
are built with to be very rigid boxes which allow school buses to resist intrusions by outside 
objects, rather than absorb crash energy. Their rigid body construction makes school buses 
react to crashes differently than monocoque-built motorcoaches.] 

Compartmentalization also provides what might be the ideal "passive restraint" system; 
it delivers passenger protection without asking the passenger to take any action other than 
sitting in their seat. Air bags and automatic, sliding, seat belts were the automotive industry's 
answer to the biggest problem yet identified with seat belts: people just don't use them. As 
recently as January 1999, NTSB took a close look at automotive child restraint systems. It 
found that in 62-percent of the cases where restraints were present but serious injuries still 
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resulted, it was because the restraint device was not used, faulty or simply used incorrectly. 
By its dependence on compartmentalization and energy-absorbing construction, 
motorcoaches have also avoided an unpleasant side effects of belts: "soft tissue" injuries 
which are caused by belts themselves. 

Is there more we could do? 
Compartmentalization, monocoque construction, energy-absorbing, high-back seats 

and soft covered interior elements all contribute to the passenger protection of motorcoaches, 
but they are intended to work together as a "passenger protection system." There are some 
places, though, where every element of that system may not be present. In the United States, 
for instance, belts are currently mandated for coach drivers, a seating positions which doesn't 
benefit from compartmentalization. The NTSB has also been assessing the safety value of 
belts or other restraint devices such as exaggerated modesty panels in other "exposed" seat 
positions aboard coaches: the forwardmost seats, the center rear seat which faces an aisle, 
and seats behind desk or table installations. 

Another element of the protective "system" used in motorcoaches has come under 
question in recent years, as well. Investigations of fatal bus and motorcoach crashes over the 
past 20-years has shown that a passenger death usually occurs in one of two ways. The first 
is a massive intrusion into the passenger space. In a collision with a large vehicle or stationary 
object, passengers within the intrusion zone are at obvious risk. The second most prevalent 
cause of death is by ejection or partial ejection. There is strong evidence that most crashes 
are survivable when passengers stay inside the vehicle. That's drawn attention to FMVSS 
(Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards) §217 which determines construction standards for 
bus and motorcoach windows. 

Created in an era when gasoline engines were dominant in buses, FMVSS §217 
require manufacturers to install a window which could be opened for use as an emergency 
escape during a fire. Since that time, of course, virtually the entire motorcoach world has 
moved to diesel engines, significantly reducing the likelihood of a fire. At the same time, 
customer demands for a more "European design" have led to massive, panoramic, window 
sizes. In circumstances involving violent vehicle behavior, such as a rare rollover, the windows 
and latches required by FMVSS §217 may fail; the result can be passenger ejection. Even 
when they function as designed in an overturned coach, the weight of the large windows has 
proven difficult to many escaping passengers. In recent months, NHTSA has acknowledged 
to UMA has that there's a need to revisit its window design mandate. But its clear that window 
escape problems have accelerated discussions of seat belts. 

· Today's environment. 
We've seen that a motorcoach's size and its construction reduce G forces at crash and 

contain and effectively protect the passenger. And we know that the regulators and safety 
ex·perts have responded to the scientific facts by resisting the urge to apply ineffective (but 
the most popular) remedies, seat belts. But the politics of seat belts are far less clear. 

From the time of our child's first ride home from the hospital, proper restraint is 
drummed into our consciousness. Buckle Up campaigns dating back 30-years have effectively 
convinced drivers and auto passengers that belts are "The Answer." Attorneys for injured 
coach passengers accusingly point to the absence of seat belts in an attempt to capture an 
easy verdict for their client, despite the overwhelming evidence that belts wouldn't have 
helped. Emotion has overtaken the logic in many cases. Faced with very recent testimony 
from safety experts that lap belts in school buses may actually present a greater hazard to 
young bodies, many belt advocates continue to lobby for a school bus belt mandate. 

Politics, not safety, have driven lawmaking in Europe, as well. Seat belts have been 
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required in Europe at non-compartmentalized seating positions since 1988 and in all seating 
positions for the past two years. Testifying before the NTSB in the summer of 1998, though, 
European officials openly admitted that the installation of belts was a "political" decision, not 
one driven by safety research. Starting in Great Britain in response to a particularly bad crash, 
political winds carried the seat belt mandate across the Channel and throughout the European 
community. At the same time, they acknowledged vastly different driving conditions than 
American motorists encounter. For instance, motorcoaches are limited to highway speeds of 
about 65-miles per hour in Europe, even on highways with no speed limit on automobiles. The 
differential often leads to violent evasive maneuvers and a much higher incidence of rollover 
on European roads. In acknowledgement of the much different physics of the large vehicles, -
the European mandate requires only a 6.6-G seat belt load rating for full-sized coaches. It also-
requires only the use of two-point (lap) belts. 

Professional motorcoach operators in America have clearly established and accepted 
the evidence that seat belts would do little to advance the cause of passenger safety. And 
since NHTSA's 20-G load rating requirement remains the only standard in effect for seat belts 
in America today, the task would seem virtually impossible. Trying to install a 20-G seat belt 
on today's motorcoach could easily add another 10,000 pounds to the vehicle by forcing new 
securement structures. It would reduce also cargo and seating space, cut average fuel 
economy significantly and severely limit the seating configurations available. Europe's 
accepted 6.6-G belt load standard would clearly not meet existing NHTSA rules. 

The bottom line. 
Safety, above all else, is the primary goal of this Association and its members 

companies. After all, safety is good business. The numbers substantiate our belief that the 
motorcoach is the safest highway vehicle on the road today. But at the same time, we aren't 
smug in our confidence that today's vehicles can't be made even more safe. Neither NHTSA 
nor any other highway safety agency, public or private, has conducted definitive crash testing 
on today's motorcoaches. UMA stands eager to step up to the task as a cooperative partner 
if and when such testing is conducted. And we stand ready to promote significant safety 
enhancements when their value is proven. 

With its manufacturer associates, its safety specialists, its legal team and all of its 
resourcefulness and experience, UMA is also trying to help sort out the issues for you. We 
know that there are no easy answers, especially when you're faced by riders, parents, 
reporters and the inevitable phalanx of challenges to the "seat belts wouldn't help" response 
which is most honest of them all. 

The fact remains, however, that seat belts are not just "not mandated," today they're 
clearly "not the answer." Any reporter who believes that the issue has just been overlooked 
by Congress, NTSB, USDOT, NHTSA, OSHA or a long list of government and safety agencies 
just hasn't examined the record. 

If things change, we'll let you know. But until, then, brush up on your physics and 
settle in for a long explanation. Or ask your questioners to call us: (800) 424-8262. We'll even 
pay for the call. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transporiation 
National Highway 
Traffic Safety 
Administration 
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1 S AUG 1992 

CooT <Jina tor, Regulatory A.ffa.irs 
Mot.or Coach Industries 
~1:12 West Stutsman Avenue 
Pembina, North Dakota 5B271 

Dear Mr. Littler: 

400 Seventh Street. S.W 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter of May 25, 1992, concerning 
r··~ .. ~.sir-.le fed<:?.~·~l p.!:'0cmption cf.::-. t,j_ll th;:;it. hc't3 bssri 
introduc8d in the New York State legislature. The bill 
would require any intercity bus that is operated in the 
St.ate of New York manufactured on c1r after July · 1, 1993 to 
be equipped with safety belts at every seating position, 
unlE~ss the bus is operated by. a motnT carrier which does not 
operate anually more than 100 day.3 u.L more than 10, 000 
vehicle ntiles within the State of New York. After reviewing 
U1P COJ)Y of this bill enclos~d w:i.t li yc,ur letter, we have 
concluded that it appears to be p10empted by Federal law, to 
the ~31;.tpnt. that it requires t.he i1i::_::ta.llation of seat belts 
Cur pas3enger seats of buse::; t.haf-: l1ave a gross vehicle 
weiqllt. rating (GVWR) of more than 10,000 pounds and that are 
not ::;tate-owned vehicles. This <:'.(•ll'_·lusion is explained in 
detail below. 

Section 103(d) of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle 
Safety Act (the Safety Act; 15 u.s.c_ 1392(d)) states: 

Whenever a Federal motor vehicle safety standard ... is 
in effect, no State or political subdivision of a State 
shall have any authority either to establish, or to 
continue in ef feet, wi t.h respc::•r·t to any motor vehicle 
or i tern of motor vehic1 c..' equipment afly safety standard 
applicable to the same aspect r_,f performance of such 
vehicle or item of equipment wliich is not identical to 
the Federal standard. Nothi11r_1 in this section shall be 
C<)nstrued to prevent .. _ any .'::i:-.:~te or political 
subdi .. v .. ision thE•reof f~nw e.~::t: 1 l' I i shing a safety 
r·0r _ _rnirement applicabl<.:' t 1 ~) 1111:·1 · -1 -:,-,:-hicles or motor 
'.7'-:!hir~~lP L_~ 1~1uipntent. r'.1_'(.·<~'.11_1_E~d f", I i.1-~:: own use if such 
r 1.:·1.r11.i r'?me11t imr":is<.:'::·: ;1 Ji i 1 1be_1 _.., 1rvlarcl U1,_:n1 tb;:1t 
r·:~"-JU_i_r<:-~rJ tci curnpl '/ w_i_t_l1 t i1r~· ,., l1••1_1r1isc::- appLi.caJJlE~ 

J?o1_li=:•raJ ::::tanclard. 

-~~ 
~\o~ ~~getti•'' 
SAFETY BELTS SAVE LIVES 

77.,_ AUTO SAFETY HOTLINE 
(800) 424-9393 
Wash DC Area 366-0123 
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Section 103(d) preempts New York's proposed law if that law 
covers the same aspect of performance as an applicable 
Federal motor vehicle safety standard, and is different from 
the applicable Federal standard, with one exception. It 
would not preempt the law to the extent that the law imposes 
a higher level of performance upon vehicles procured for use 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions. 

In this case, Standard No. 208, Occupant Crash Protection 
(49 CFR 571.208) "specifies performance requirements for the 
protection of vehicle occupants in crashes." (Sl of Standard 
No. 208). Section S4.4 of Standard No. 208 specifies 
performance requirements for the protection of bus 
occupants. Accordingly, there is a Federal motor vehicle 
safety standard in effect and that standard establishes 
performance requirements for occupant protection in buses. 
The question then is whether the proposed New York State 
law, which applies to the same aspect of performance, is 
either identical to Standard No. 208's requirements. 

The applicable performance requirements for occupant 
protection at passenger seats in buses manufactured on or 
after September 1, 1991, differ, depending upon whether the 
vehicle has a GVWR of 10,000 pounds or less or a GVWR of 
more than 10,000 pounds. For buses (other than school 
buses) with a GVWR of 10,000 pounds or less, S4.4.3.2 of 
Standard No. 208 requires a lap/shoulder belt to be provided 
at every forward-facing outboard seating position, and 
either a lap belt or a lap/shoulder belt to be provided at 
every other seating position. New York's law, requiring 
seat belts at every seating position in buses, would not be 
preempted with respect to these small buses if it were 
interpreted to require the same types of safety belts as 
required under Standard No. 208. 

With respect to buses with a GVWR of more than 10,000 
pounds, manufactured on or after September 1, 1991, S4.4.3.1 
of Standard No. 208 requires compliance with either of two 
options for the driver's seating position, the installation 
of an automatic restraint or the installation of either a 
lap belt or lap/shoulder belt, and does not require any type 
of occupant protection system at any other seating position. 
NHTSA expressly determined that there is not a safety need 
for safety belts or another type of occupant crash 
protection at these seating positions. See, 39 FR 27585, 
July 30, 1974. With respect to these large buses, the New 
York bill would be preempted to the extent that it requires 
seat belts to be installed at seating positions other than 
the driver's seating position. 



I hope you find this information helpful. If you have any 
other questions, please contact Mary Versailles of my staff 
at this address or by phone at (202) 366-2992. 

7~ 

Paul Jack on Rice 
Chief Counsel 
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us. Deportment 
of Transporiotlon 
National Highway 
Traf fie Safety 
Administration 

Mr. R.W. Schreyer 
senior sales Engineer 
Transportation Manufacturing 
Box 5670 (R.I.A.C.} 
Roswell, NM 88202-5070 

Dear Mr. Schreyer: 

corp. 

400 Seventh Street. s· 
Washington. D.C. 20 

This responds to your letter to Mr. Harry ~hompson of this agency's 
Office of Vehicle Safety compliance, seeking an interpretation of 
Standard No. 210, seat Belt Assembly Anchorages (49 CFR §571.210). You 
posed two questions, which I will answer in the order presented. 

Fir3t, you noted that the State of Nevada will be procuring some prison 
buses, equipped with lap-only safety belts at the pa~senger seating 
positions. You correctly noted that no safety standard requires safety 
belts to be installed for passenger seating positions on buses, but asked 
if this agency could •provide.direction on what course of action [TMC] 
should take.• You asked particularly whether you should design the 
anchorages for the lap-only safety belts to conform with the requirements 
of Standard No. 210. 

NHTSA answered this question in a March 22, 1989 letter to Mr. Keith 
McDowell, a copy of which is enclosed for your information. As we said 
in that letter, NHTSA must decline to issue any •guidelines• beyond or in 
addition to the requirements set forth in the safety standards. 
Therefore, since standard No. 210 expressly exempts passenger seats in 
buses from the standard's anchorage requirements, Federal law leaves the 
question of how any such anchorages should be designed entirely uo to the 
~udgment of the bus manufacturer. Please note, however, tnat the State 
of Nevada is free to spec1ty certain design and performance criteria with 
which these anchorages must comply in its contract for these buses. 

second, you asked for a clarification of the testing conducted to 
determine compliance with Standard No. 210. section S4.2 of ·standard No. 
210 sets forth the strength test with which anchorages must comply. 
section S4.2.4 of Standard No. 210 reads as follows: •Except for common 
s~at belt anchorages for forward-facing and rearward-facing seats, 
floor-mounted seat belt anchorages for adjacent designated seating 

AUTO SAFETY HOTLINE 
(800) 4'._>4-91CJ1 
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positions shall be tested by simultaneously loading the seat belt 
assemblies attached to those anchorages.• You asked whether all seats in 
the coach must be tested simultaneously or whether a single seat would be 
tested, and then the next seat tested, and so forth. 

Please note that the only anchorages subject to a simultaneous testing 
requirement are •floor-mounted• anchorages for •adjacent designated 
seating positions.• Assuming that there is an aisle or some other 
separation between the seat assemblies in your buses, the only •adjacent• 
designated seating positions would be those common to one occupant seat. 
Therefore, no more than one occupant seat's anchorages would be tested 
simultaneously under Standard No. 210. Even those anchorages common t-0 
one occupant seat would be tested simultaneously only if the anchorages 
were floor-mounted. 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

Stephen P. Wood 
Acting Chief Counsel 



Kr. ••1th A. Mct>ovell 
Vice President - £ngineerin~ 
~ran•port&tion Product• Croup 
American SeAtin9 company 
901 Broadway, R.W. . 
oraod Rapi~•, MI 4950' 

~ar Mr. Mc.OO~ll 1 

MAH 2 2 1989 . 

Thi• re•ponda to your recent letter &Mking thi• agency to •proyid• 
9uidelinea tor the de•i9n and inatallation or •eat belt •••ellbli•• oa 
larqc buae• (over 10,000 pound• CVW).• You explained that you were 
interested in thia intor~ation tor p&aaen9er ••at• of lar9• ba•e• ueed in 
transit aervic•, not as •chool bu•ea. I &a happy to t>. able to explain 
our requirement• to you. 

standard Mo. 208, Occupant crash Protection (49 Cnt 1571.208) aeta forth 
the crash protection requirement• applicable to aoat •ehicl• typea. 
section s•.4 of that •tandard aeta forth the requirement• applicable to 
larq~ bu•~• other than achool buses. That aection requir•• lar9• ba .. a 
to have ~itber a coaplete auto~tic protection ayatea for the bu• 
driver's aeatinq poaition, or a eeat belt a•selRbly that confor .. ~itb 
St&ndard No. 209 at tbe driver'• a.atin9 pocition. Standard Mo. 208 does 
not ap-eci!y any re-quire:Mnt• for either an autOll'.atic protection ayat .. or 
eeat ~lt ••a•abli•• to be inatalled at any other •eating poaitione in 
lar9e bu•••· ., .. · ....... 
Standard Ro. 210 1 Seat Belt A8se!JWly Anchoragea (4t C~ 5571.210) also 
include& requir•~nta applicable to the anchora9•• for any belt 
aas•mbli•• inatalled at the driver'• seating poaition on large bu .. a. 
Sp•citically, section &4.1.2 ot Standard No. 210 provide• tbata •a.at 
belt anchorages for a Type l or Type 2 ••at belt asaeably aball be 
inatalled for each desi9nate-d ••&ting position, except a paeaenqer •••t 
in a bua or a deai9nated aeating position for which aeat belt aacbora9ea 
fot a Type 2 meat belt a&•e•bly ar~ required by 84.1.1.• Aa with 
Standard No. 208, Standard No. 210 exempts paaaenger •••t• in large bu••• 
!roe it• r~ireD1nta. 

P1nally, Standard Mo. 209, Seat Belt A~aer!lbli~a (49 CFR 1571.l09) ••t• 
forth require~nte applicable to •11 aeat belt aaaellbliea tor ua• in 
.ator vehicle•, includln9 larq• buees. Thua, any •••t belt aaae.ably 
inatalled at th• driver'• poaitlon in a lar9• bu• ~ould have to be 
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certi!ied aa coaplyinq with Standord ~o. 209, as vould any aeat belt 
a~s~rilily voluntarlly provld•d by a ~nufactur•r tor p&asen9er eeatin~ 
t>ositions in a lar9e bus. 

l 

In ~hort, our atandards do not r~uir• ••at ~lt eeael'\bli•• to be 
installed in paa•enqor aeata or large busoa, but any aeat belt a••embli•• 
tb~t Are in.stalled at those positions would have to coQply vitb Standard 
No. 209. Your l•tter in~icated that you were 9~nerolly eYare ot th• tact 
that ••at belt aase~bliea were not.r~quired to bo installed at pasaenger 
aeatin9 position• of large busea. Neverthelesa, you •ak•d ua to proYide 
you ~1th •guidelineg• !or auch installation8, in reapon•• to the 
continuing deso.and tor aucb inatallatioru1 by your cosnpany•a cu•to11era.· A.I 
a policy matter, NDTSA does not provide th• aort ot qoidelinea you have 
reque.sted. 

The NAtion&l Traffic And Hotor Vehicle Safety Act (15 o.s.c. 1381 ~ 
~) 5ets forth certA1n 8pecific requireaenta that aust be sati•tied by 
each o! t~ federal motor vehicle aa!ety atendards eatabli•hed by thia 
agency. Among the•~ requirellenta ar• that •ach a~fety etand~rd ahall be 
pr•cticAble, c~•t the need for ~tor vehicle aatety, and be •tated in 
objective term• (aection l03(a) ol the S•fety Act) and each ataQdArd 
ahall be reaaonable, practicable, and appropr1at~ tor the particular t~ 
ot vehicl• tor vhich it i• preecrit>.d (aection lOJ(f)(J) of th• S•f•tY 
Act). ~BTSA h•• determined that th• current r~quira .. nt• ot Standard• 
No. 208 an~ 210, which do not apply to paasen9er seat• in large bueea, 
~et all ot th• •tatatory criteria. 

The i5•uanc~ or •quidelinea• a~ci!yin9 aeaeur•• beyond tbo•• required by 
our standard5 could r•adily ~ mi•interpreted aa an a9ency deci•ion that 
tbeae additional ~esurea are neceaa&ry to satiafy the criteria o! the 
sarety Act, or indirectly tore• m.anu!ecturera to comply with the 
•guideline~,· in addition to the atandarda isaued under the 6afet1 Act. 
Either or both of these results voul~ be inappropriate !or paeaen9er 
aeate on large buaea, becauao the intor~ation currently available to 
NHTSA indicate• that no addition•! re~ireaent• are nec•8•ary in tbi• 
Ar••• 

Indeed, if the egency ver• to learn ot additional inforaatlo" au99e•ting 
th• current requireaenta oQ longer seet all th4 •tatotory criteria, and 
that requireaenta tor the in•tallatioo o! .. at ~lt ••••llbliea at 
paasenqer ••&t• of large achool buses would ~e6t all the atatutory 
criteria, we would have an obligation to conaider chan9in<J the eppl1cabl• 
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standards. Any such chango would be required to be made through the 
ordinary, notice-and-comment rul~making process, rather than through 
issuance of supplemental guidelines. 

I hope this information is helpful~ 

ref:208i209f210 

-----·----···· - -

Sincerely, 

Enka z. Jones 
Erika z. Jones 
Chief counsel 

,; 
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Ms. Jeanmarie Poole 
National Transportation Safety Board 
490 L' Enfant Plaza East, SW 
Washington, DC 20594 

Dear Ms. Poole, 

September 2, 1998 

Thank you for the opportunity to act as a motorcoach industry witness at the 
NTSB public hearing relating to "Bus Crash worthiness and Survivability". During the 
discussion I informed the_ Board that the United Motorcoach Association (UMA) would 
provide supplemental information relating to the issue under review. UMA requests 
that the attachments to this letter be considered with respect any motorcoach specific 
conclusions and I or recommendations put forward in the NTSB's final report. 

Sincerely, 

C. Norman Littler 
Vice President 
Government Affairs 

111 United g5 x 
•Motorcoach 

113 South West Street, 4th Floor 
Alexandria, VA 22314-2824 

Phone: 703-838-2929 Toi-Free: 1--800-424-8262 
FAX: 703-838-2950 

http://www.uma.org ASSOCIAT 0 N 



SUPPLEMENTAL COMMENTS 

· of the 

UNITED MOTORCOACH ASSOCIATION 

Relating To Issues Being Investigated By The 

NATIONAL TRANSPORTATION SAFETY BOARD'S 

PUBLIC HEARING 

ON 

"BUS CRASHWORTHINESS AND SURVIVABILITY" 

Submitted On September 11, 1998 



The United Motorcoach Association (UMA) commends the National Transportation 

Safety Board (NTSB) for conducting a public hearing on the issue of "Bus Crashworthiness 

and Survivability". For many years controversy has raged over the question of whether 

motorcoach type buses should or, or should not, be equipped with seatbelts or some other 

form(s) of passenger protection devices. The general public's belief in the ability of a seatbelt 

to save lives in passenger automobiles has led to a conclusion that all vehicles should be 

similarly equipped. This conclusion bears careful scrutiny. To the lay person this conclusion is 

reasonable because government and safety advocates have promoted seatbelt use for years. 

Unfortunately, the public has a less that adequate understanding of the physics, and the vehicle 

structural dynamics involved in the various possible sequences involving large vehicle crashes, 

like those of a motorcoach. There is also very little understanding of the concept of 

compartmentalization. Compartmentalization is relied upon, and has proven reliable, as the 

principal form of passenger protection for the majority of serious accidents involving large 

buses. 

The initiative displayed by the NTSB, in bringing together people from around the world, 

people who have both the technical knowledge and experience in the disciplines relating to data 

collection and analysis and technology research and development, was to UMA 's knowledge, a 

first ever occurrence. The worldwide approach taken by the NTSB in reviewing the current, 

collective level of knowledge relating to motorcoach passenger protection, is in UMA 's 

opinion the only way to approach this complex subject. 



Relatively early in the hearing it became very apparent that, in Europe and Australia at 

least, a decision to incorporate seatbelts on motorcoaches had been made, not as a matter of 

sound public policy, but based upon an emotional public outcry to the politicians. The political -

process should never take the lead in an issue of public safety if it is not fully supported by a 

preponderance of credible scientific evidence. It is the scientific evidence that guides a 

meaningful decision. In the European and Australian seatbelt programs it appears that data was 

screened for anomalies that would justify a predetermined political decision. Testing protocols 

were then developed which would allow the majority of motorcoaches to pass without major 

structural change. UMA does not believe that an issue as important as passenger safety should 

be treated in such a cavalier fashion. 

THE PROBLEM OF INSUFFICIENT DATA 

In a perfect world, the first step would be to determine whether a problem really exists. If 

it is determined that the problem exists, the next question that needs to be answered is what is 

the magnitude of the problem. The collection and analysis of credible, statistically meaningful 

data is key to examination of any problem. If data analysis indicates that a problem is of 

significant enough proportion to justify corrective action, then, and only then, should the 

legislative or regulatory processes come into play. The ordering and funding of a testing 

program to evaluate the best means for corrective action should be left to the lawmakers. The 

testing protocol and the development of an actual vehicle testing program should be left to the 

agency that has the role of vehicle safety performance regulatory oversight, in this case the 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA). 



If data is to be the driving force behind the d~velopment of meaningful passenger 

protection technology then, with respect to motorcoach type buses, then a problem becomes 

recognizable immediately. The National Safety Council (NSC) has determined that during an -

average year under ten passengers are fatally injured while riding in motor coaches. This 

number has been relatively stable for the past decade. In 1996, some 350 million people 

traveled over 1.6 billion miles on motor coaches. Annual passenger miles are currently in 

excess of 25 billion. The Federal Highway Administration (FHW A) estimates fatalities 

involving motor coaches accounts for less than 1/ 10th of 1 percent of all highway fatalities in 

any given year over the past decade. Within this percentage is a smaller fraction that represents 

passenger fatalities. By NTSB estimates, 192 motorcoach passengers died in crashes over a 30-

year period. This averages approximately 6 passenger deaths annually, which is consistent with 

the NSC data. 

What is not known is what is the contributing factor(s) involved in occupant deaths and 

serious injuries. No accurate or reliable data has been collected or analyzed to show precisely 

what is causing motorcoach passenger fatalities or injuries, nor what new or different vehicle 

safety features might lessen injury scaling in a catastrophic crash. When so few passengers are 

fatally injured in motorcoach crashes on any given year, it is of paramount importance that all 

of the relevant facts be collected and analyzed. Not only passenger fatalities, but also all AIS 

level 3 and 4 level injuries are needed if we are to develop a true picture of occupant crash 

dynamics in motorcoach accidents. 

Unfortunately, under the USDOT's Fatal Accident Recording System (FARS) and 

General Estimating System (GES) only fatalities are considered for when reviewing bus 

crashes. The NSC records both fatalities and injuries to the extent possible. However, the 



problem of collecting reliable data is systemic. There is no consistency in what data is 

collected at the federal, state or local level. This problem could be rectified by the Federal 

Highway Administration or, failing this approach, Congress directing that Motor Carrier -

Safety Assistance Program (MCSAP) funds be used to develop a national motor carrier 

accident data acquisition form. Data collected should at a minimum determine the vehicle 

type and age through the vehicle identification number (VIN), the service application at 

the time of the crash, detailed description of occ.upant injuries, and if possible where 

individual occupants were seated and with what did they come into contact with. 

Mandatory use of the forms, at the federal, state, and local level would be necessary if 

consistent data collection is to be achieved. (1) 

It is important that, when there is a bus accident, both the vehicle type and the service 

application be identified. For instance, a church is conducting a "for hire,, charter between 

points in different states. They are using a van or a school bus for the move. The bus is 

involved in a serious accident resulting in serious injuries, but no fatalities. Under the current 

system it is likely that this accident will not be recorded or evaluated at the federal or even at 

the state level. If, on the other hand, officers at the scene determined that the bus was an old 

school bus, being used in a "for hire,, application in interstate commerce. They would record 

an incident of a private carrier, having no federal operating authority, and conducting a service 

in a non-FMCSR compliant vehicle. 

UMA has attached a copy of a relevant article from the Commercial Vehicles Safety Alliance newsletter, 
The Guardian and a copy of the Bureau of the Census, 1997 Vehicle Inventory and Use Survey. Both' items may 
serve to describe data items infrequently recorded with respect to buses as well as other commercial vehicles. 



Even if the officers at the scene were unaware of the violations, appropriate state or 

federal agencies would flag the event. If these events continued with any regularity then a 

pattern would emerge and appropriate counter-measures could be developed. Without data 

input at the front end, the problem can grow unchecked until a catastrophic occurrence 

galvanizes public attention and then an emotional knee-jerk reaction takes over. Such is the 

case with the seatbelt issue we are now confronted with. 

VEHICLE TYPES AND STRUCTURAL CHARACTERISTICS 

All motor vehicles have characteristics that are unique to their design. Passenger cars 

react differently in an accident form a sport utility vehicle or a van. They same differences 

apply when examining a bus structures ability to react the extreme loads that occur during a 

collision. For comment purposes, only the two major forms of bus construction will be 

examined. 

BODY ON CHASSIS CONSTRUCTION 

The "body-on-chassis" construction method, as found in the school bus, will be 

described. School bus manufacturers construct a coach body that in effect is a self-contained 

occupant shell. Upon completion bolts attach the shell to a modified truck chassis. The chassis 

typically consists of two longitudinal steel u-channels that run the length of the vehicle. The 

longitudinal frame members are kept in parallel by bolting or welding two or more lateral 

channels between the u-channels. To the chassis are bolted the engine, transmission, fuel 

tank(s), axles, and associated running gear components. The chassis, without the body shell 

attached, is capable of being driven. A school bus chassis in and by itself is a very strong, 
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roll sequence is not know because they have never been subjected to dynamic testing. In fact, 

the current school bus rollover test standard calls for only a static roof loading. Similarly, in 

the question of seatbelts, it would be extremely negligent to use school children as de-facto test-

subjects. 

SEMI-MONOCOQUE BUS CONSTRUCTION 

For approximately the last fifty years intercity type motorcoaches have utilized a 

construction method that differs significantly to the cheaper body-on chassis construction 

method. The so-called semi-monocoque bus structure evolved from the construction methods 

of the aircraft industry. The motorcoacb is in reality a uni-body structure. This means that all 

running gear and associated components are attached directly to the body. The frame is 

constructed of hundreds of longitudinal, lateral, and vertical welded steel tubes and gussets. 

Sheet metal or fiber composite body panels are either riveted or bonded to the tubular 

structure. The entire structure is not only very strong, but it is also very flexible. Flexibility is 

absolutely essential in a vehicle that may see several million miles in a twenty to twenty-five 

year service life. The motorcoach must operate in highway applications, in environmental 

extremes, and on all types of roads. 

Over many years the resiliency of a motorcoaches' monocoque structure, coupled with 

a high back seat system that deforms in a controlled fashion when struck by an occupant, have 

proven their ability to protect occupants in the even the most severe frontal collisions. (2) 

2 The question of how to best protect occupants in exposed, non-compartmentalized seats should be treated 
as described in the data acquisition and analysis section above. The majority of motorcoach related passenger 
fatalities and serious injuries, tend to occur by either massive intrusion into the occupant area of the vehicle, or 
when people are ejected, or partially ejected, through windshields or through the push-out type side windows. We 
have attached a copy of a paper that was co-authored by Dr. D. Keeman and presented to UMA at the NTSB 
hearing. The information relates to a new seating system that incorporates a three-point seatbelt into a standard 
motorcoach seat. The ability of the seat to yield under the impact of an unbelted occupant is a key issue in the 
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Over 90 percent of the serious, potentially injury producing, crashes that involve motorcoaches 

annually, are of the frontal or frontal oblique type. The trip induced rollover crash, although 

rare, is without any doubt the most serious crash event that a motorcoach can be involved in. -

Motorcoaches tend to absorb the first hit forces through upper structure deformation. This is 

why a motorcoach seldom rolls completely over. They tend roll up onto the roof structure and 

then fall back onto the side. While the roll sequence is interrupted by the upper structure 

deformation, if, during the sequence, an occupant(s) is ejected through a side window, the 

chances are that they will be crushed when the coach drops back onto its side. The question 

that needs to be examined first is whether existing motorcoach componentry, such as window 

latching mechanisms can be improved to withstand the high twisting forces encountered during 

a trip induced rollover. During the last decade the NTSB has investigated a number of t~ip 

rollovers of motorcoaches. Where crush deaths and serious injuries have occurred due to full 

or partial ejection the question of window securement and glazing strength has come into 

question. 

The history relating to motorcoach side window systems found in today's motorcoach 

bears a closer look. In 1952, the Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC) implemented the first 

push-out window standard. Windows were required under the regulations to be fixed to the 

window frame by means of a soft rubber grommet type seal. The push-out seal allowed an 

occupant to push the window out of the coach in the event of an emergency. In 1952 most 

intercity buses were still gasoline-powered and had the engines mounted in the front under the 

"seatbelt equation". What is of particular importance is the paper's discussion of the testing criteria, in that G 
forces are applied that are entirely appropriate to a vehicle with the mass of a motorcoach. 



driver, somewhat similar to the school bus. The threat of passengers being trapped on board 

during a fire was a real possibility. 

Over the years, the motorcoach side window safety has undergone only one substantive-

change. In 1965 the ICC allowed manufacturers to push glazing out by means of a hinged 

metal sash frame that was secured by a latching mechanism. With the creation of the· 

Department of Transportation in 1966, control of safety standards for bus side "push-out" 

windows was assumed by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. The window 

standards were reclassified under 49 CFR Part 571.217 of the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety 

Standards. Of particular note is the stated purpose of Part 217 . . . "to minimize the likelihood 

of vehicle occupants being thrown from the bus and to provide ready means of occupant 

evacuation ". 

As mentioned above, during a trip-induced rollover, the motorcoach structure under 

goes tremendous twisting forces. The semi-monocoque structure, being highly flexible, is less 

able to inhibit momentary twisting deformation through the longitudinal axis. Part 217 requires 

the window latch to be mounted no more than 2 inches above a seat armrest or no more than 5 

inches above the seat reference point. The restrictive nature of the safety standard means that 

manufacturers are extremely limited in which plane the latch can be located. For example, a 

latch mounted vertically with a window also hinged vertically might be better able to remain in 

place when reacting high longitudinal twisting forces. Similarly, automotive glazing standards 

were developed with passenger cars in mind. It is interesting to note that the Federal Railway 

Administration has a very different test standard for passenger rail cars glazing than that found 

in the FMVSS for large buses. Large buses have a great deal more in common with rail 

passenger cars than they do with light passenger automobiles. These observations and 



suspicions can only be verified through data acquisition, analysis, and testing. Intuitive 

guesswork has no place other than as a starting point. 

As pointed out during the hearing, by the time data is gathered and analyzed, testing is 

conducted, a rulemaking occurs, engineering and manufacturing changes are made, many 

years will pass. In the case of a motorcoach a further twenty to twenty-five years will pass 

before the change will appear throughout the fleet. First, we must determine if there really is a 

problem. Second, will a solution provide increased protection in all circumstances, or will 

safety be decreased in some situation? Third, will the benefits to society outweigh the costs? 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

In light of the fact that past history, based on known data, accident investigations, as 

well as anecdotal information indicates motorcoaches provide significant occupant protection. 

The lack of compelling data underscores UMA 's belief that motorcoach transportation is 

inherently safe and that there is no need to mandate the inclusion of seat belts into 

motorcoaches. 

If on the other hand we are to subject the riding public to a politically motivated guess 

as to what is in the public IS best interest regarding their safety' when they ride in a motorcoach 

or a school bus, then we had better hope that the politicians have guessed right. If they guess 

wrong, we will end up with another "air bag" like fiasco. 

Vice President for Government Affairs 
United Motorcoach Association 
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CHAPTER VI 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Increasing passenger protection is of the utmost importance to vehicle safety 

experts, governmental agencies, and the general citizenry. The April 11, 1992, 

accident involving an intercity charter bus in which two Long Island students were 

ejected and tragically killed as the bus rolled over, resulted in a proposal by 

Governor Mario M. Cuomo to mandate the instalJation of, but not the use of, seat 

belts on all intercity buses that travel in New York State for more than 100 days or 

more than 10,000 miles per year. The type of seat belt required, either lap or lap-

shoulder, was not specified in the Governor's proposal. While the Governor's 

Program Bill is well intentioned, the provision for seat belts on intercity buses is 

illusory because it is predicated upon federal standards for passenger seat belts on 

intercity buses that do not exist. NHTSA has issued s~andards for passenger motor 

vehicle restraints, child restraint seats, dummies used in motor vehicle crash tests 

and school bus seating systems and restraining barriers, but has not issued 

standards for passenger seat belt systems--the belt, seat, and seat anchorages or 

attachments--on intercity buses and continues to decline to do so. Seat belts have 

been required by the Federal Government in passenger vehicles since the mid-1960s 

and for all bus drivers since 1972, but not for bus passengers. 

Furthermore, the Governor's provision is not based upon adequate study. 

Only two studies, the Indiana University and Al-Kazily California State University 

studies, have been conducted on the subject of passenger restraints on intercity 

buses during the last two decades. Both studies utilized accident reports--as 

opposed to on-site visits--to formulate conclusions with respect to the need for such 

restraints. Crash testing was not conducted during either study. The two studies 

recommended against installing seat belts on intercity buses because there would not 

be a marked reduction in deaths or injuries and high costs would be involved. In 
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addition, the reports concluded that standards for installing seat belts were 

unavailable and would need to be developed and tested before a final determination 

could be made. 

Federal vehicle safety agencies have refused to issue standards for seat belts, . 

anchorages, and attachments for intercity buses, and neither NHTSA rior the 

intercity bus industry have conducted crash tests to determine the proper types of 

seat belts (if any) and anchorages for use in intercity buses. The New York State 

Public Transportation Safety Board recommended that NHTSA immediately review the 

feasibility of conducting crash tests on intercity buses for passenger restraints 

because inadequate research and testing has been conducted on intercity bus 

passenger restraints. Though New York State has required all large school buses 

manufactured after July 1, 1987 to be equipped with seat belts at all designated 

passenger positions, New York State's school bus seat belt standards cannot be 

extrapolated to intercity buses because the design, seating systems, and 

distribution of forces in a crash are different for each type of bus according to two 

Federal Government and two bus industry experts. 

The Commission staff interviewed fifteen motor vehicle safety experts on the 

engineering aspects of installing seat belts on newly manufactured and existing 

intercity buses: four with the Federal Government, one with the Canadian 

Government, six associated with academic research organizations, and four with the 

intercity bus industry. 

Seven of the twelve motor vehicle safety experts from the Federal and 

Canadian Governments, academic research organizations, and bus industry 

questioned by the Commission on the issue of installing seat belts on newly 

manufactured intercity buses stated that before seat belts can be installed, more 

research and crash testing should be conducted to ensure seat belts will afford 
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passengers additional protection. Five of the experts from the Federal Government 

and bus industry added that testing is also necessary because the existing standards 

used for passenger vehicles should not be extrapolated to large vehicles, such as 

intercity buses. Since the forces from an accident are distributed differently in a 

bus than in an automobile, serious injuries could result in an accident from_ 

implementation of such an extrapolation. The majority of experts from the Federal 

and Canadian Governments, academic research organizations and bus industry 

agreed that the bus, seat structures, and flooring would have to be redesigned and 

crash tested in order to accommodate seat belts and ensure passenger safety. The 

absence of federal standards or guidelines for installing passenger lap belts on 

intercity buses thwarts the process. If crash testing were--to determine that seat 

belts increase passenger protection, then NHTSA, the intercity bus industry, or 

seating manufacturers would have to develop a uniform set of standards for 

installation on newly manufactured buses which, as previously noted, NHTSA 

ref uses to do. 

Four out of five experts from the Canadian Goyernment and academic research 

organizations agreed that lap seat belts would be beneficial in rollover accidents. 

A rollover accident involving a bus can have deadly consequences because 

unrestrained passengers would be more apt to be ejected from the bus as human 

projectiles or bounced around inside the bus. 

While lap belts may be beneficial in rollover accidents, three experts from the 

Canadian Government, an academic research organization, and bus industry 

contacted by the Commission were concerned that lap belts, when used in reclining 

or non-reclining seats, may cause increased head and abdominal injuries in certain 

types of crashes. For example, the experts stated that in a frontal collision a lap 

belted passenger's hips would remain stationary while his head would be propelled 
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forward in to the seat back in front of him. An unbelted passenger would still 

contact the seat back, but may sustain less severe injuries because the passenger's 

entire body, instead of just his head, would move forward and absorb the forces of 

the impact. 

Four experts from the Federal and Canadian Governments, an academic 

research organization, and bus industry were also concerned that unbelted 

passengers may be thrown into and injure belted passengers. To prevent a collision 

between belted and unbelted passengers, seat belt use should be made mandatory. 

However, according to Federal and Canadian Government vehicle safety experts and 

bus industry representatives, bus companies would have to install a warning light 

system in the driver's panel to indicate to the driver that seat belts were not in use 

and/or hire a monitor to enforce usage and maximize safety benefits. The passenger 

also would have to be instructed in the proper use of seat belts to ensure the belted 

passengers would not be injured in a crash from an improperly worn seat belt. For 

example, two experts explained that when a passenger reclines, his lap belt will 

move up on his body thereby greatly increasing his chances of "submarining" or 

slipping through the belt. 

According to two experts from the Federal Government and an academic 

research organization, seating location within any bus is the most important factor 

in determining the number and severity of injuries. Since the force of a collision on 

a bus passenger depends on where he is seated in the coach, as well as the type of 

collision (frontal, rear-end, side, etc.), standards for seat belt systems would have 

to be developed that would protect all passengers seated anywhere in a bus in all 

types of collisions. For example·, if a seat belt or anchorage standard was developed 

to provide maximum protection to a passenger seated immediately behind the bus 

driver in a frontal collision, would a different type of belt or anchorage or floor 

/0/~ 
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reinforcement be required to protect a passenger in the rear of the bus against a 

side or rear-end collision? 

Three experts from academic research organizations and the bus industry 

believed that lap-shoulder belts may reduce head and abdominal injuries perceived 

to be caused by the use of a lap belt alone, but more testing of lap-shoulder belts i~ 

required before such a conclusion could be validated. 

On the other hand, two of the academic research organization experts 

contacted by the Commission believe that the engineering problems associated with 

installing either lap or lap-shoulder seat belts on newly manufactured intercity buses 

and the increased head injury risk can be mitigated, thereby making seat belts 

beneficial. 

According to two academic research organization experts, the actual cost of 

installing seat belts on new intercity buses is not prohibitive and the potential 

financial liability associated with seat belt use or non-use can be waived by the 

Legislature and Governor in the enacting legislation. 

Since requiring seat belts on newly manufactured intercity buses would cover 

few buses initially and exempt the existing fleet of older buses, the issue of 

installing seat belts on older buses (retrofitting) was examined. Retrofitting 

existing buses with seat belts was not endorsed by any safety expert contacted by 

the Commission staff because of engineering, structural, and cost restraints. 

Furthermore, the arguments made regarding the potential injuries caused by seat 

belts and the potential financial liability from passengers ignoring seat belt use 

requirements on newly manufactured buses were likewise raised regarding existing 

intercity buses. 

The overwhelming majority of Federal and Canadian Government, academic 

research organization, and bus industry experts interviewed by the Commission 
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have raised substantial safety and other questions regarding the possible installation 

of seat belts on new and existing intercity buses. According to the experts, more 

testing and research on intercity bus seat belt systems is necessary before a final 

determination can be made regarding the installation of seat belts on new intercity :_ 

buses. In light of the experts' concerns, only the Federal Government has the 

resources necessary to conduct the testing and other related actions necessary to 

resolve the safety and other related issues and concerns so that the unintended 

potential for serious injuries or death will not occur from requiring seat belts on 

newly manufactured intercity buses. 

In addition to the testing, engineering and safety concerns, the proposed New 

York State law requiring seat belts on intercity buses may very well violate the 

Constitution of the United States. The proposed State law may transgress the 

Commerce Clause and/or the Supremacy Clause. 

The Commerce Clause grants Congress the power to regulate commerce--

including transportation--with foreign nations, among the States, and with Indian 

Tribes. Requiring seat belts on intercity buses may impose an undue economic 

burden on interstate carriers because seat bel~s may not fulfill a legitimate safety 

need. The courts have not been entirely consistent in ruling on the validity of state 

safety laws in light of the Commerce Clause, but Commission Majority Counsel Joanna 

King, the Federal Government vehicle safety experts, and bus industry executives 

believe that the proposed law would violate the Commerce Clause on the grounds that 

the burdens imposed would outweigh the safety benefits. 

The Supremacy Clause forbids states to enact laws or promulgate regulations 

in areas totally preempted by the Congress. The National Traffic and Motor Vehicle 

Safety Act of 1966 assigns exclusive responsibility for regulating motor vehicle 

safety to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA). Federal 

/63)'. 
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Motor Vehicle Safety Standard §571. 208 regulates occupant protection on buses and 

requires seat belts for drivers only. NHTSA and bus industry representatives 

concluded that the proposed State law would violate the Supremacy Clause because 

FMVSS §571. 208 covers all aspects of occupant protection, and given that the 

standard does not require restraints at passenger seating positions on buses ovet 

10, 000 pounds, the Governor's proposal would therefore be preempted. 

Commission Majority Counsel Janis Veeder disagreed with NHTSA 's and the 

bus industry executives' rationale. She argues that the proposed law would not be 

preempted because there is neither a federal standard regarding passenger seat 

belts on intercity buses, nor do the federal regulations expressly forbid such seat 

belts. Furthermore, even though there is a federal regulatory scheme dealing with 

some aspects of occupant protection, the United States Supreme Court has 

previously ruled that federal regulations covering a limited field would not extend 

beyond the boundary the regulations established. Therefore, Ms. Veeder believes 

the proposed law would not be preempted because there is no indication in this 

instance that the federal regulatory scheme was intended to cover seat belts on 

intercity buses. 

The United States Constitution is not violated by New York State's regulations 

for seat backs and seat belts on school buses which are stronger than the federal 

standards for school buses. Because the buses are owned or contracted by the 

State's school districts, State regulations in this area do not violate the Supremacy 

Clause or Commerce Clause of the Constitution of the United States due to a savings 

clause in the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 which permits 

more stringent state requirements for state-owned vehicles. 

Increasing intercity bus safety is of the utmost importance to vehicle safety 

experts, governmental agencies, intercity bus manufacturers and operators, and the 
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public as a whole. It is essential that increased testing, research, and discussion 

of this vital issue begin immediately in order to facilitate an informed and appropriate 

strategy for action. Therefore, based upon its research, the Senate Majority Staff -

of the Legislative Commission on Critical Transportation Choices offers the following 

recommendations. 

I. The New York State Legislature should adopt a resolution memorializing the 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) to conduct scientific tests 

of intercity bus collisions to determine the feasibility of equipping all intercity buses 

with either lap belts or lap-shoulder belts. If testing demonstrates that the safety 

of intercity bus passengers is enhanced by restraints, NHTSA should promulgate 

Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards for such seat belts, seat anchorages, and 

the design and engineering of the interiors of intercity .buses. 

The safety of intercity bus passengers is clearly a Federal Government 

responsibility. In order to prevent litigation involving the Federal Government, New 

York State, and/or others and to provide national standards for seat belt installation 

on intercity buses, it is essential that NHTSA conduct crash testing of intercity 

buses under various accident scenarios. The New York State Public Transportation 

Safety Board recommended that NHTSA immediately review the feasibility of 

conducting crash tests on intercity buses. NHTSA has the extensive financial and 

scientific resources necessary to conduct these tests. Furthermore, through the 

public comment phase of the rulemaking process, NHTSA can solicit opinions from 

all national and world-wide vehicle safety experts on this issue. 
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II. Retrofitting intercity buses with seat belts should not be required given the 

safety, structural, and engineering concerns raised by the vehicle safety experts 

contacted by the Commission. 

All eight of the Federal and Canadian Government, academic research 

organization, and bus industry vehicle safety experts surveyed by the Commission_ 

on the issue of retrofitting did not endorse equipping existing buses with seat 

belts. Older buses may not be able to handle the forces or load that the seat belts 

would place upon the seat and seat anchorages, and, therefore, seat belts might 

increase injuries to passengers. The questionable safety benefits of retrofitted seat 

belts would be ou_tweighed by the structural reinforcements and interior 

modifications that would be necessary to ensure that the restraints and seating 

systems could handle the forces of a collision. 

III. The New York State Legislature should adopt a resolution memorializing the 

Federal Government to review the feasibility of testing occupant restraints for other 

modes of passenger transportation that currently lack restraint systems including, 

but not limited to, passenger trains. 

The Federal Government should demonstrate an interest in protecting 

occupants from accident injuries in all types of passenger transportation. Passenger 

trains, like intercity buses, do not provide passengers with seat belts or other types 

of restraining devices that will protect them in any type of accident (i.e. , rollover, 

frontal, side, rear-end, etc.) . Increased passenger protection research by the 

Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

is especially imperative for the train travel of the future given the advent of high 

speed rail which will increase the likelihood of death or injury if a rail crash does 

occur. 
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Improving interstate passenger protection in all modes of transportation is 

clearly the responsibility of the Federal Government and the Legislative Commission 

on Critical Transportation Choices urges NHTSA, FRA, and FT A to adopt this 

report's recommendations in order to prevent senseless tragedies in the future. 
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Testimony of Joshua N. Bennett, President of the 

Atlantic Ci.ty Bus Operator' Association (ACBOA) before the 

New Jersey State Legislature, Senate Transportation 

Committee hearing held on February 11, 1999. These 

comments are in response to the issues related to Bus Safety 

in New Jersey. 

Contact : 

Atlantic City Bus Operator's Association 

Andrea C. ~lalamut, Executive Director 
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609-665-3200 



As President of the Atlantic Cir:· Bus Operator· s Association. I stand before 

you today as an advocate for bus safety. Our association was established in 1981. Our 

mission is to promote safe and enjoyable travel by motor coach to the Casinos located 

in Atlantic City, and to be the liaison between our members and regulatory agencies. 

We represent approximately 70 commercial motor coach operators, operating over 

2000 buses. We receive support from every one of the Atlantic City Casinos and 

various suppliers to our industry. 

I am also the President of Capitol Traihvays of Harrisburg, PA. I have been 

involved in the operation of various intercity bus companies for nearly 30 years. My 

highest priority has always been to assure the traveling public a safe journey. As 

evidence of my advocacy. and as a result of the efforts .of the management and 

drivers. Capitol has one of the best safety records in the industry. · 

I am here, today, to tell you the commercial motor coach industry is one of the 

safest forms of transportation available to the traveling public. To bolster that 

statement I will quote statements made in an article in USA Today, on Thursday. 

February ..i.. 1999. According to Steve Barber, Coordinator of the Federal Department 

of Transportation's, National- Motorcoach Program. "'Interstate bus safety is very 

good ... " He further stated the frequency of bus accidents occurring in 1998 was an 

""anomaly". An anomaly is defined as an irregularity. something abnormaL not a trend. 

I do not believe the frequency of accidents involving a bus in the state of New Jersey 

was any thing other than an anomaly. I am here to teil you. today. the ·owners and 

drivers of commercial buses operating into and within the State of~ e'v Jersey. have 

in the past. and. vrill in the ~:i~ur~. ic ~-:·er:.·:hing in :he:r ?CW-e!" :o ?r~~:e!H :,us :-elated 

ac~ idenrs. 

In eYidence of our \·c:-acity. A .. C30_-A. :a ;oorciiaanon 'nth Soutl1 Je:-sey 

Transportation Authority. held four i .+ i --Bus driver- safety refresher seminars·'. in 



\Vere. representatives of the ~e·.v Jersey Seate Police. Arlan.tic City Police Department. 

NJ Turnpike~ NJ Department of Motor Vehicles and Department of Transportation 

Commercial Inspection Unit. the United States Department of Transportation. and 

representatives of Atlantic City Casino· s. bus operations departments, These federal. 

state and local enforcers and regulators provided the bus drivers with a very focused 

perspective of the responsibilities to provide the traveling public with safe and 

courteous transportation to Atlantic City. It is the opinion of both ACBOA and SJT A 

that this format was an important addition to the ongoing programs. sponsored by the 

individual commercial bus companies. and we have decided to offer similar programs 

in the future. (A press release, dated February 3, 1999 is available with this 

testimony.) 

The bus safety refresher program was an excellent opportunity for drivers to 

be reminded of issues involving safety on the highway. It was also· an opportunity to 

acknowledge the efforts of the bus industry on behalf"of traffic safety. I am here 

today to emphasize the commercial bus industry's rec-ognition of the importance of 

safe driving .. I applaud the South Jersey Transportation Authority for its initiative in 

coordinating these safety refresher courses. 

It is the motor coach Industry· s primary responsibility to assure the public it 

will receive a safe and uneventful trip over America's highways. Management of 

motor coach companies must take the initiative in driver training. (In the question and 

ans-..ver period at the January 6th driver safety seminar. I was asked the question by a 

driver ... if my company does not offer driver training. how can I get more training?"" 

Sec ti on ~ 90. ~ < e i of :he : ede~3l \foror C .1r:1er R.eg'..ll3tions states: ""EYery em p ioyer 

sh ail oe kno'v iedge3bie or Jnd ~ompiy \nth ail reguiations ~onrained in this 

suochapter. w nici"l :.ue applicable t0 ihat motor :arrier. s operations ... Part .390 . .31 e ! ~ 

states ·"Ever:v· driver and employee shall be instructed regarding. and shall comply 



experience. training. Or both. safeiy Operate the type of COnlmercial Yehicle he; she 

drives"'. It is my opinion and my interpretation of the regulations. it is the obligation 

of every motor coach company to properly train each driver and the best way to do so 

is to offer company safety seminars. It is the responsibility of motor coach companies 

to train their drivers to operate the motor coach safely in accordance with federal and 

state regulations. Federal oversight demands it. 

The commerciai bus industry is heavily regulated. Both drivers and buses a·re 

under close scrutiny. All commercial bus operators must adhere to stringent safety 

regulations. Drivers must pass strict physicals, every two years. It is a requirement of 

the state of New Jersey that all drivers with a Commercial Driver·s License (CDL) 

registered in the state present a current physical at the time of license renewal. A 

requirement in excess of Federal regulations. All commercial drivers mu_st pass 

random drug testing and at least an annual review of their Motor Vehicle Records by 

bus company offi~ials. 

All buses must pass frequent safety inspections by Federal and state 

inspectors, whether at a roadside inspection or in the garage. New Jersey has very 

strict inspection requirements. New Jersey Department of Transportation officials 

safety inspect all commercial motor coaches once a year and require self inspection 

six months prior to the state inspection. New York State· s safety inspection 

procedures are similar while Pennsylvania requires biannual self-inspection of all 

motorcoaches by 3 certified mechanic. Frequent on road safety inspections are 

conducted by the ~ew Jersey State Police and Department of Transportation. These 

inspections may include J ··:~"':e~ J:~=-- :ns;;e:::::cn. whic:-t :s ~he toughest form roadside 

safety inspection. Ther~ 1s :io c·:1denc~ ~ie .:ommerc::.li cus industry is ~"l;,ig::-::rnrl~; 

abusrng rhe puolic. 5 trus.t :n :he .sa.:·ety JI :r~Yei ay :noror .::0aci. 

To effectively support the statement that travel by bus is a very safe form of 
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The ~ew Jersey Tur?pike Authority reports that for the period of 1993 to 

1998. bus traffic represented 1.2% of the total volume of traffic. While total traffic 

volume has increased over the six years the percentage of bus accidents has remained. 

on average around 2% of the total number of vehicular accidents occurring on the 

turnpike. During that six-year period there have been 159 fatalities. none of these 

fatalities occurred on a bus. 

The Garden State Parkway reported an increase in traffic volume of 5.43% 

over the past six years, through November 1998. During that time bus accidents 

remained at approximately 1.2% of the total vehicular accidents. During the six-year 

period there were three fatalities as a result of accidents involving buses. only one of 

which was an occupant of the bus. 

The statistics of the South Jersey Transportation Authority for 1998 continue 

to support the· statement that travel by bus is the safest form of transportation 

available to the traveling public. Over 50 million toll transactions occurred on the 

Atlantic City Expressway in 1998. of which 399,001 were buses. There were only 22 

bus accidents. in which there was one fatality (not an occupant of the bus) and 16 

injured. This number of accidents is only 3 more than in 1997 which is consistent 

with the increase in traffic volume year over year. 

The Atlantic City Police Department reported 2 91 bus accidents in 1997 and 

only 244 in 1998. There were two fatalities in 1998 none were occupants of a bus. 

Considering the approximate 4-00. 000 buses that come to Atlantic City. annually. the 

number of accidents involving buses is minute. 

One faraiiry is too :n~rny. Bur :ertJi:Jly t!1ese Jc:ident statistics do not appe3r 

to present a trend of increased cnmmerc1al bus accidents over prior years. >ior do 

:hese stat1st1cs :-epresenr Jny reJson Io bdieYe that traYel by bus is dangerous. 

Certainly there are more fatalities occurring as a result of traYel by automobile and 

11~~ 



The fatalities that occurred on the Garden State Parkway in late December 

1998. certainly have been a wake up call to the commercial bus industry. Commercial 

bus operators and their drivers must focus on what can happen if the rules of safe 

driving are ignored or abused. But it is my position the average bus driver is a 

careful. considerate and professional commercial motor vehicle operator. He is aware 

of the inherent dangers and is aware of his/her responsibilities to the traveling public. 

Every driver I have met understands that responsibility and understands the la,vs 

governing the operation of a commercial motor vehicle. They want to operate that 

vehicle in accordance with the law using the knowledge gained in over the road 

experience and in safety training programs, such as those recently offered by SJT A 

and ACBOA. The traveling public expects that of them and they know they owe it to 

the passenger. 

We can be proud of the bus industry's safety record. In fact the National 

Safety Council along wit_h government agencies have agreed that travel by motor 

coach is the safest form of passenger transportation. This is especially impressive 

since over 10 million passengers travel by bus to Atlantic City each year in over 

~00.000 buses. while millions more travel safely by bus to other popular tourist 

destinations throughout the US and Canada. 

In summation. it is the opinion of ACBOA that the current level of regulatory 

oversight has proven to be sufficient to assure the traveling public a safe journey. 

believe safety reguiations and oversight procedures. currently in place. assure 

compliance. Because so many buses operating within the State of New Jersey emanate 

from 0ther srates. aw; .:b.ang~s i:i driYe:- Jnd bus vper:n::ig safery regulations .::nusr 

come from. the fed.erai gove:-:J.ment. Changes made ro tile ;::urrent safety reguiarions. 

must :ome JS J resuit Jf st:-:c: studies. and musr be uniform :n e:ifor~emenr .:-eg:udless 

of the origin of the motor coach trip. 

: ~viil : ant 1 :i ue :o '1:-2;; :he :n oto r : J ac:1 :nr:Jers :ma :nan a ge:n e :n. lilC 
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unfortunate series of bus accidents. ,,-i thin New Jersey. into. an opportunity to 

heighten their awareness and resolve to increase the industry· s efforts to drive safely. 

It is up the bus company management to train the driver and it is up to the bus 

driver. to sharpen hisiher safety. knowledge and to strive to be the safest driver on the 

road. By those efforts and with the industry's assistance, traveling by motor coach 

will continue to be the safest mode of transportation. 

11 'f ;< 
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PRESS RELEASE 
Wednesday, Febrwl1y 3, 1999 

Peter Hartt, Commmlity and Media &emiona Otlicer · 
(609) 965-6060 

. SITA to Continue Bus-Safety Program 

P .. 01 

Safety Classes Drew 1,000 Last Month. More than 800 Drivers Issued Certiticatel, 

Relpoadiaa to the embuliam af bul drlvn and bath ..... federal fllUlatan, the South Jeney 
Transportation Authority ammum:ed plans today to bold additional Bua Driver .Rehlher Courses in 1999. 

A seri• orrcur llfi:ty clmm lut month dmv approximltely 1,00011t~ with 836 bu drivers 
receiving Ce:tfficates of Completion ibr their panicipatimL Courte topim ~ bus mapeciion regimes and 
regulaUons, safo.drivina tipa and m ategi~ and bmeS IUCb u nuuttlon and drive" fatigue. · 

"The reftaber program is just one part. but potemially a wry eB"eGtive pan, of the larger state and federal 
effcn ic make bUJ ~mm safer' than·it is today .. " aid J1111e9 A.. Crawfmd, SJT A executiYe dircdor. "Tbe 
emhusium otboth driwn and regnlators -gem dJat the prtJgtam is welt 'WOlth repeating. Additioml refresher 
sessions, 111)1CiaJly wilb !mile s:heduled for mpuime er on the wa::kend, Wl11 help u&·teadz rnme drivers than we 
have already.~ 

The Authodty piam tkreo mere sessions, in April, JulJ and Oetabcr. Final dates will w 11~ afta-
conaultation with the bus industry. · 

1n written comaaentl ta the Audmrity aftllr the most remit sessinns, bus dri9ers said 1he counes helped fill 
some gaps in their knowledge of regulations and reiafim;ed their existing cmumitment to the safety of paamgers. 
Driven 11Jpreciatcd 1he recognition thy received for being plrt of wlm ii llreldy aae of tfae afut forma or 
trampcrtation in the nr.cn. tn addr111ms 1he driven~ Mr. CrawfOrd and othei" &pelkn allC noted tbe vital role 
that 1hs bus industry plays m the New Jersey economy, e!peeially the oconomy of the Greater Adantic City region. 

Mr: Crawfbrd lllid the program's summ hal been due to the cocpcntion of sewrm agencies and 
organizatio-. inc1udmg M'IDOT , US.DOT'.: New Jersey Su.te Police. Atfantic City Police Dep~ New Jersey 
Tum~ke Authority .. New Jeraey Highwa'y Authority, Allm'..ic City Ccr.'\lCIJtion and VJSitcrs Authority. Atlamic 
City Bus O,arators A.ociatio~ Uld the more than 50 participating bus~. 

1'We were able to orpnize and ccnduc:t the~ training Jellion jut E day&. dar the bus safety-issue came 
to the fore of public cancems," Crawford Slid. KWe wouldn't him: been able tD do tbBl without the tremenclcua 
enera.v dd commitmem:·af wr pll'tntt'J."' 
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SEAT BELTS AND MOTOR COACHES 

Motor coaches providing fixed route, charter and tour, and other transportation services have an 

extraordinary record of safe operation. According to the National Safety Council, during the last 

decade for which statistics are available, 1987-1996, interstate motorcoach travel accounted for an 

average of 4.3 fatalities per year compared to an average of 44,080 persons per year killed in all 

highway fatalities during this period. For these 10 years, the motorcoach fatality rate was .018 per 

100 million passenger miles. 

This record has been achieved by motor coach operators and manufacturers through their own 

efforts to promote the highest standards of safe design and operation and through their compliance 

with stringent federal and state safety regulations. Motor coach operators and manufacturers actively 

support strong safety ru1es for all classes of commercial motor vehicles, provided that there is a 

rational, scientific basis for them. 

Federal and state motorcoach safety regulations do not mandate seat belts on motorcoaches because, 

despite several studies, no rational basis for such a mandate has been established. Government 

studies in Indiana and California both recommended against installing seat belts on motorcoaches 

because there would not be a marked reduction in deaths or injuries while there would be a high cost 

of installation. Furthermore, other studies have shown that bus occupants wearing lap belts, the only 

kind of belt that can be appropriately anchored with current bus design, may incur more severe head 

and neck injuries than unbelted occupants. 

Similarly, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration has recently indicated that "belts 

have no safety benefit in buses" and such belts "would prevent very few, if any fatalities, and the 

cost would be very high". 

Motorcoaches are specifically designed to maximize the safety of its passengers. They are designed 

to protect passengers with compartmentalization, that is, protection from the seats in front of 

passengers. These seats are specially designed to fold forward and inward on impact so that 

passengers are cushioned on impact, while at the same time, they are protected from being ejected 

from their seat in a crash. This design has contributed to the extraordinary safety record of 

motorcoaches. 
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Motorcoach operators and manufacturers are always ready to consider ways to enhance the safety of 

motorcoach passengers, provided those methods have been shown to make a substantial contribution:.. 

to safety. In the case of seat belts, there has been no such showing. Furthermore, there has been no 

standard established for a motorcoach seat belt design that will enhance safety. Until such study has 

been done and design standards based on the study results developed, it makes no sense to require 

seat belts on motorcoaches. 
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February 8, 1999 

Mr. John Strachan 

AM-SAFE COMMERCIAL PRODUCTS, INC. 
240-C North 48th Avenue Phoenix, AZ 85043 

PH: (602) 233-3322 • FAX: (602) 233-1133 

Senate Transportation Committee 
Senate Majority Office 
State House, State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Dear Mr. Strachan, 

I am sending this information based upon my conversation with Mr. Jack Meister whom 
you have spoken to recently. I have included information below about our Type 2 
seatbelt with a shoulder height adjustment feature. Furthermore, I also included data that 
demonstrates the safety benefits of our airbag seatbelt system under development for your 
consideration. Please see below for further details on both products. 

Type 2 Seatbelt 

The effects on safety of the Type 2 system would be significant. This type of system 
offers good occupant protection in the majority of crash scenarios. It is also the very 
similar to the restraint technology currently used in automotive applications. 

The administrative/compliance burdens of this type of system would be twofold. Since 
this system may be attached to the seat and includes a lap and shoulder belt there would 
be additional performance requirements for the seat structure. Currently the seat is only 
designed to accept the loads of a lap belt and would require additional strength to accept 
torso loading. Additionally the shoulder portion of the seatbelt would necessitate a height 
adjustment feature that would allow for specific occupant positioning to include a wide 
range of body sizes. 

Testing would have to be performed in conjunction with seat and seatbelt manufacturer. 
With the seat changes required to accommodate _the shoulder strap, testing would have to 
be performed on the seat and seat belt concurrently. We normally perform validation 
testing internally and assume the cost for the seatbelt portion of these tests. 

The cost of the Type 2 system will be more than the current lap belt due to the 
complexity of the retractor and additional hardware components. It may also require 
changes to the seat and floor structure to accommodate the aforementioned loads . 

......... 
MARMON 
I I a. A member of The Marmon Group of companies 



In review of the Type 2 lap and shoulder belt system This system will require seat and 
floor structure enhancements that could add costs to the seat and vehicle. Of more 
concern is to determine the best method to adjust the shoulder portion of the seatbelt to 
accommodate all occupants that would not include school bus driver intervention. The 
Type 2 seatbelt is a good common sense approach to this issue but may involve 
significant efforts from the seat and vehicle manufacturer. 

Seatbelt Airbag System 

Our Airbag Seatbelt is currently undergoing qualification testing in our Arizona facilities. 
This system is being qualified for aircraft applications and will be commercially available 
in late 1999. Aircraft seating environments are very similar to the school bus where the 
current restraining device is a Type 1 static lap belt. The airline industry is also engaged 
in improving passenger safety and that is what prompted this significant project. 

The effects on safety of this system are unmatched by any Type 1 restraint in the industry 
today by combining an airbag with a standard lap belt. As you can see frpm the enclosed 
videotape, this system can offer unparalleled protection in aircraft and bus type seating 
environments. Unlike typical airbags, this system is designed to deploy the airbag away 
from the occupant and towards the seat or bulkhead directly in front of the passenger. 
This creates a cushion around the occupant significantly reducing head-injury-criteria 
(IIlC) from the forward seat or bulkhead and can also reduce lateral body movement. 

This system looks like a traditional Type 1 lap belt that is currently utilized in school bus 
applications. It can also be self-powered requiring no vehicle power to operate making it 
an exact replacement stand-alone seatbelt for school buses with certified seatbelt 
attachment points. Another feature is the airbag will not deploy unless the seatbelt 
buckle is engaged to protect against inadvertent deployment during a crash event when 
not in use. The airbag portion of the Seatbelt has also been designed specifically not to 
twist always providing proper airbag inflation direction away from the occupant. 
Furthermore, the seatbelt airbag has been engineered to offer protection for a wide range 
of occupants from small children to large aduhs ~erefore it may not require additional 
seat structure changes. 

The cost effectiveness of this system is unknown at this time due to factors that will be 
resolved during further discussions with the appropriate parties. We will use these to 
determine the cost factors that include airbag configuration, inflator and power source 
type. Traditionally airbag systems add more cost to the vehicle due to the addition of 
these safety components. However, some of these costs can be offset because the seatbelt 
airbag may not require changes to the current school bus seat or floor structures. 

In review of the airbag seatbelt system we must first look at safety. This system has 
proven to provide occupants unequaled protection in the majority crash scenarios. The 
enclosed CD-ROM provides excellent support that the airbag seatbelt will be extremely 
effective in this particular environment. Even more important, the airbag seatbelt can 
exceed your requirements with no unusual adjustment necessary by either the occupant or 



bus driver. Although the airbag seatbelt itself will cost more than the current belt it may 
not require changes to the current seat and floor structures of a typical school bus. The 
airbag seatbelt looks like a normal seatbelt but provides the protection of an airbag with 
the added benefit of deploying the airbag away for the passenger. 

Please review this information and let me know if I can be of further assistance. 

Sincerely, 

David Merrill 
Director of Sales & Marketing 

cc: Jack Meister 
Enclosures: Videotape with promotional and dynamic testing information 

CD-ROM with dynamic testing 
Marketing brochures 
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